Gresham-Barlow School District

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Regular Board Meeting / Business
AGENDA

July 12, 2012




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.

BOARD OF EDUCATION
July 12, 2012

Executive Session — 6 p.m.
Superintendent’s Evaluation ORS 192.660 (2)(i)

Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m.

Public Safety and Schools Building
1331 NW Eastman Parkway, Gresham, OR

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II. ROLL CALL

Dale Clark, Chair Jim Schlachter, Superintendent
Matt O’Connell, Vice-Chair Jerry Jones, Chief Financial Officer
Carla Piluso, Director

Dan Chriestenson, Director

Kathy Ruthruff, Director

Kent Zook, Director

Kris Howatt, Director

1. COMMUNICATION FROM THE AUDIENCE

Time has been set aside later on the agenda for Citizens’ Requests of the Board. If
anyone in the audience wishes to address the board this evening, there are yellow
“Citizens” Requests of the Board” forms on the table in the back of the room; please
complete a form and give it to our board secretary, Ms. Cook.

IV. APPROVE MEETING AGENDA

V. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed below are matters considered by the board to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
member of the board or persons in the audience requests specific items be removed
from the consent agenda and placed on the regular agenda.

1. Minutes from Budget Hearing and Special Meeting
Minutes from Regular Business Meeting
Personnel Changes

AGSA and Confidential Memorandums of Understanding
Superintendent’s 2012-2015 Employment Agreement
Disposal of Obsolete /Surplus Items

Student Accident Insurance and Health Coverage Renewal

June 14, 2012
June 14, 2012

AL

VI. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS

None



Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10 Jt.
Agenda - Regular Board Meeting

July 12, 2012

Page 2

VII. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

VIII. BOARD REQUESTS & REPORTS

IX. DAC REPORT

District Advisory Council (DAC) Report Vadnais

Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation (GBEF) Report Vadnais

XI. ASSOCIATIONS” REPORTS

XII. CITIZENS” REQUESTS OF BOARD

XII. ACTION ITEMS

First Reading

9. Election of Chair and Vice-Chair Schlachter
10. Annual Procedural Business Jones
11. Evaluation of the Superintendent_______..._ . ] O’Connell
12.  Open Meadow Alternative School Contract ... ... . . Jones
13. Financing Energy Efficiency Projects Jones
Second Reading
14. Alternative Education Programs for 2012-13 . Hiu
15. Tuition and Fees for 2012-13 Hiu
16. Date, Time and Place of 2012-13 Board Meetings ... ... . . Schlachter
17.  Public Charter School Renewal: Gresham-Barlow Web Academy . . . Drilling
18. Public Charter School Renewal: Lewis & Clark Montessori Growth Plan____Drilling
19. Public Charter School Renewal Update: Gresham Arthur Academy . Drilling

XIV. INFORMATION /DISCUSSION ITEMS

None

XV. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Aug. 8-9,2012: Administrators Retreat — Time TBA

Center for Advanced Learning (CAL)

Aug. 9, 2012: Board Planning Session (Day 1 of 3) - 4 p.m. to 6 p.m.

Board /New Administrators Dinner
Location TBA



Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10 Jt.
Agenda - Regular Board Meeting

July 12, 2012

Page 3

Aug. 10,2012:  Board Planning Session (Day 2 of 3) — 8 a.m. to 4 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning (CAL)

Aug. 11,2012:  Board Planning Session (Day 3 of 3) — 8 a.m. to 12 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning (CAL)

Sep. 13, 2012: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m.
Council Chambers
Public Safety and Schools Building

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

Note: The board may, by majority vote, take action on items listed under first reading or information.

JS:1¢:7/9/12:5:03 PM



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.

Minutes of Budget Hearing
and Special Board Meeting

June 14, 2012

The Gresham-Barlow School District Board of Education held a budget hearing and special
meeting on Thursday, June 14, 2012, in the council chambers of the Public Safety and Schools
building, 1331 NW Eastman Parkway, Gresham, Oregon.

The budget hearing was called to order at 6:07 p.m. by the chair, Dale Clark. Other board
members in attendance were Matt O’Connell, Kris Howatt, Kathy Ruthruff, and
Dan Chriestenson. Carla Piluso and Kent Zook were absent.

The following central office administrators were present:

Jim Schlachter Superintendent
Jerry Jones Assistant Superintendent and Chief Financial Officer
JamesHivw Director of Secondary Education
Anita Harris__________ Director of Elementary Education
Randy Bryant Director of Human Resources
Tim Drilling Director of Student Achievement and

Principal of Gresham-Barlow Web Academy
Teresa Ketelsen_ Director of K-12 Curriculum
Janell Black ..~ Director of Student Support Services
Athena Vadnais Director of District and Community Relations

There were no budget committee members present.

INTRODUCTORY COMMENTS (6:08 p.m.)

Chair Clark explained that the purpose of the budget hearing was to receive
public testimony and respond to questions concerning the 2012-2013 budget,
pursuant to ORS 294.430 and Board Policy DBG/DBH.

Mr. Jones reviewed a letter from the Tax Supervising and Conservation
Commission regarding the 2012-2013 approved budget. (Refer to the agenda
packet.) He noted that the Commission certified, by a majority vote, that it has
no objections or recommendations to make with respect to the budget. Estimates
were judged to be reasonable for the purposes shown, and the document was
found to be in sustainable compliance with Local Budget Law.

The budget estimates and levy amounts, as shown in the approved budget, were
as follows:

Gresham-Barlow School District — Budget Hearing and Special Board Meeting, June 14, 2012



MOTION 90

MOTION 91

Gresham-Barlow School District — Budget Hearing and Special Board Meeting, June 14, 2012

Budget Unappropriated

Estimates Portion
General Fund___ $100,073,106 $0
Debt Service Fund_____ 6,829,906 1,001,206
Capital Projects Fund_______ ... .. .. 6,934500 0
Food Service Fund 4189000 0
Federal Grants Fund 8,993,164 0
State & Other Grants Fund 1,037,000 0
Other Special Revenue Fund_____ .. .. 3,800,105 0
Early Retirement Fund ... .. . . _ 1,781,000 0
Total Budget Estimates______ . .. .. | $133,637,781 $1,001,206

Property Tax Levies:
Permanent Rate, Education Category

The district must file an adopted budget with the Commission no later than
July 16, 2012.

PUBLIC TESTIMONY (6:10 p.m.)

There being no public testimony, the hearing was closed at 6:15 p.m.

SPECIAL MEETING (6:15 p.m.)

The special meeting was then convened at 6:15 p.m. for the purpose of adopting
the budget, making appropriations, and imposing taxes for 2012-2013.

RESOLUTION 1113-01, ADOPTING THE 2012-2013 BUDGET

It was moved by Matt O’Connell, seconded by Kris Howatt and carried 5 to 0 to
ratify Resolution 1113-01, Adopting the 2012-2013 Budget, as presented.

Director O’Connell read the resolution into the record as follows:

“Be it resolved that the Board of Directors of the Gresham-Barlow School District
hereby adopts the budget for the fiscal year 2012-2013 in the total of $133,637,781
now on file at the District’s Office of the Chief Financial Officer, located at 1331
NW Eastman Parkway, Gresham, Oregon.”

RESOLUTION 1113-02, MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR 2012-2013

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Matt O’Connell and carried 5 to 0 to
ratify Resolution 1113-02, Making Appropriations for 2012-2013, as presented.

Director Howatt read the resolution into the record, which stated the following;:

“Be it resolved that the amounts for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012, and for
the purposes shown are hereby appropriated.”



MOTION 92

Submitted by:

Gresham-Barlow School District — Budget Hearing and Special Board Meeting, June 14, 2012

RESOLUTION 1113-03, IMPOSING AND CATEGORIZING TAXES

It was moved by Matt O’Connell, seconded by Kathy Ruthruff and carried 5 to 0
to ratify Resolution 1113-03, Imposing and Categorizing Taxes, as presented.

Director O’Connell read the resolution into the record as follows:

“Be it resolved that the Board of Directors of the Gresham-Barlow School District
hereby imposes the taxes provided for in the Adopted Budget at the Permanent
Rate of $4.5268 per $1,000 of assessed value for General Fund operations. And,
to impose taxes in the amount of $5,868,822 for bonded debt; making these taxes
hereby imposed and categorized for the tax year 2012-2013 upon the assessed
value of all taxable property within the District.”

ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:19 p.m. An
executive session followed for the purpose of discussing personnel and litigation,
pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2)(b) and (2)(h) respectively.

At ) Code

Linda J. Cook
Administrative Assistant e Superintendent and
Board of Directors




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting

June 14, 2012

The Gresham-Barlow School District Board of Education met in regular session on Thursday,
June 14, 2012, in the council chambers of the Public Safety and Schools building, 1331 NW
Eastman Parkway, Gresham, Oregon.

The meeting was called to order at 7:03 p.m. by the chair, Dale Clark. Other board members in
attendance were Matt O’Connell, Kris Howatt, Kathy Ruthruff, Carla Piluso, and
Dan Chriestenson. Kent Zook was absent.

The following central office administrators were present:

Jim Schlachter Superintendent
Jerry Jones .. Assistant Superintendent and Chief Financial Officer
JamesHivw Director of Secondary Education
Anita Harris___________ Director of Elementary Education
Randy Bryant Director of Human Resources
Tim Drilling Director of Student Achievement and

Principal of Gresham-Barlow Web Academy
Teresa Ketelsen_ Director of K-12 Curriculum
Janell Black ..~ Director of Student Support Services
Athena Vadnais Director of District and Community Relations

The chair led board members, administrators and all those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

MOTION 93

MOTION 94

Gresham-Barlow School District - Regular Board Meeting, June 14, 2012

MEETING AGENDA (7:04 p.m.)

Chair Clark announced that Item 4, Classified Collective Bargaining Agreement,
will be moved from the consent agenda and placed on the meeting agenda for
discussion purposes.

It was moved by Matt O’Connell, seconded by Kris Howatt and carried 6 to 0 to
approve the meeting agenda as amended.

CONSENT AGENDA (7:05 p.m.)

The following items were included on the consent agenda:

1. Minutes from Regular Meeting .. . May 3, 3012
Minutes from Budget Committee Meeting . May 7, 3012
Minutes from Work Session____ May 17, 2012
Minutes from Work Session____ May 31, 2012

2. School District Financial Summary

3. Personnel Changes

4. ifi i (moved by board
motion from the consent agenda to the meeting agenda)

5. Disposal of Obsolete /Surplus Items

6. Nutrition Services: Food Services Agreement Renewal, Sodexo America, LLC



7. Nutrition Services: MESD Programs: Alpha High School, Arata Creek,
and Pathways
8. Nutrition Services: Metropolitan Family Service SUN Program
9. Nutrition Services: Private Schools, Portland Lutheran School
10. Nutrition Services: Public Charter Schools: Center for Advanced Learning
Gresham Arthur Academy, and Lewis & Clark Montessori
11. Nutrition Services: Summer Food Service, Federal Child Nutrition
Program
12. Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Matt O’Connell and carried 6 to 0 to
approve the consent agenda as amended.

PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS (7:06 p.m.)

Gresham High School Drama Students, First Place Winners: The board
recognized the achievements of Gresham High School drama students for their
“First Place Group Musical” win at the state level. The students performed
“One Short Day” from the musical, “Wicked.”

The students were recognized were as follows:

Devon Bailey Mikayla Monnie Taylor Johnson
Ashley Lloyd Lara Horine Austin Siliang
Carrie Chupp Annie Nedelisky Austin Joseph
Kevin Miller Sarah Huyll Cajsa Strommer
Andrew De La Paz Nicole Norton Ryan Leveque
Chelsea Vaughn

Taylor Johnson, Gresham High Choral Soloist, First Place Winner:
Taylor Johnson, a senior at Gresham High School, was recognized by the board
for placing first in the state choral soloist division. Mr. Johnson is the OSAA
State Champion Soprano.

Maddie Childs, Sam Barlow Flute Soloist, First Place Winner: The board
recognized the accomplishment of Maddie Childs, a Sam Barlow High School
student, who placed first in the state on flute.

Lanny Ball, Celebrate Literacy Award Recipient: The board recognized
instructional coach, Lanny Ball, for receiving the Celebrate Literacy Award.

RECESS/RECONVENE (7:20 p.m.)

The meeting was recessed at 7:20 p.m. and reconvened at 7:27 p.m.

GRESHAM-BARLOW EDUCATION FOUNDATION REPORT (7:27 p.m.)

Foundation reports are typically presented every-other-month. Accordingly,
there was no Foundation report this month.

Gresham-Barlow School District - Regular Board Meeting, June 14, 2012



SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT (7:27 p.m.)

Superintendent Schlachter announced that Mark Ross, Sam Barlow High School
principal, will be leaving the district at the end of the school year. He has been
appointed principal of Heritage High School in Vancouver, Washington. The
district is working on next steps to find a replacement for Mr. Ross.

Mr. Schlachter reviewed that two years ago the district created a new mission
statement and the following tagline based on feedback from students, staff,
parents, and the community: “Every Student Prepared for Success.” With the
new mission in mind, the district identified six themes that define the work of
the school district:

e Teaching and Learning ¢ Learning Opportunities
* Balanced Assessment e Community Engagement and Partnerships
e Accomplished Educators ¢ Planning and Resource Management

This past school year, the district advanced six educational initiatives and six
board / executive projects.

Three projects produced recommendations that will guide the district in the
future. A committee recommended that the district move to a seven-period day
at the high school level and that the district adopt a K-12 Collaboration Calendar.
A Long-Range Planning Committee will soon report to the board on its
recommendations for school facilities.

In addition, negotiations with the district’'s two unions was a reminder that
everyone in the district must be dedicated to building trusting relationships.
Those relationships will enable us to work together to provide an education for
our students that will help them lead productive and successful lives.

Superintendent Schlachter ended his remarks by sharing that he looks forward to
2012-13 and focusing staff on advancing the district’s vision.

DAC REPORT (7:36 p.m.)

Athena Vadnais and Kris Howatt reported on the May 10, 2012, DAC meeting,
which was held at Springwater Trail High School.

BOARD REPORTS (7:39 p.m.)

Board members summarized various meetings and other activities they
participated in during the month.

CABINET REPORTS (7:58 p.m.)

There were no cabinet reports this evening.

ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS (7:58 p.m.)

Sharon Barney, an EA (educational assistant) at East Gresham Elementary
School, reported on behalf of Oregon School Education Association (OSEA)
Chapter 8 employees.

Gresham-Barlow School District - Regular Board Meeting, June 14, 2012



MOTION 95

MOTION 96

Gresham-Barlow School District - Regular Board Meeting, June 14, 2012

Jean Black-Groulx reported on behalf of the Gresham-Barlow Education
Association (GBEA).

CITIZENS’ REQUESTS OF THE BOARD (8:03 p.m.)

Teri Knight, a Gresham-Barlow School District teacher, shared that she is
concerned about the time resource methods teachers have to plan and prepare.

Erica Warren, a Gresham-Barlow School District teacher, expressed concerns
about the time resource methods teachers have for case management.

Superintendent Schlachter explained that the district has heard the concerns
expressed about changes to the amount of time resource methods teachers have
for case management. District administrators are looking at possible cost-neutral
options for addressing those concerns.

CLASSIFIED COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012-2015 (8:17 p.m.)

Randy Bryant reviewed that a tentative agreement with the classified association
was reached on May 25. The two bargaining teams met for eight hours each day
beginning May 23 to develop the agreement. They used an interest-based
approach to bargaining that focuses on determining shared interests and then
working together to identify solutions based on those interests. The process
fostered honest and open discussions between the two teams. It was facilitated
by a neutral party called Community Dynamics.

Following discussion, it was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Carla Piluso
and carried 6 to 0 to approve the Classified Collective Bargaining Agreement
2012-2015 as presented.

ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION PROGRAMS FOR 2012-13 (8:35 p.m.)
The board reviewed a list of alternative education programs for 2012-13 as
presented for first reading. Adoption will be considered at a subsequent

meeting.

TUITION AND FEES FOR 2012-13 (8:41 p.m.)

The board reviewed a proposed list of student tuition and fees for 2012-13. The
list will be presented for second reading and adoption at a subsequent meeting.

DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF 2012-13 BOARD MEETINGS (8:44 p.m.)

The board reviewed a proposed schedule of 2012-13 board meetings, which
included DAC and budget meetings. The schedule will be presented for second
reading and adoption at the July meeting.

ACHIEVEMENT COMPACT WITH THE OREGON EDUCATION
INVESTMENT BOARD (OEIB) FOR 2012-13 (8:47 p.m.)

It was moved by Matt O’Connell, seconded by Carla Piluso and carried 6 to 0 to
approve the Achievement Compact for 2012-13 as presented.



MOTION 97

MOTION 98

MOTION 99

PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL RENEWAL: GRESHAM-BARLOW WEB
ACADEMY (8:50 p.m.)

Tim Drilling reviewed a proposed public charter school renewal with the
Gresham-Barlow Web Academy for 2012-2017. This renewal was presented for
tirst reading. Adoption will be recommended at a subsequent meeting.

Mike Harris, co-principal of the Gresham-Barlow Web Academy, was present to
respond to questions if called upon.

PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL RENEWAL: LEWIS & CLARK MONTESSORI
GROWTH PLAN (8:54 p.m.)

The board reviewed a key change in the revised contract with Lewis & Clark
Montessori that will permit significant enrollment growth over the next five
years. Currently, the school enrolls 180 students in grades K-5, and the proposed
growth plan would increase the enrollment to as many as 353 students in grades
K-8 in 2016-17.

Scott Kilgo, board chair, and Melissa Harbert, administrator, were available to
answer questions on behalf of the Lewis & Clark Montessori Public Charter
School.

The board will be asked to approve a five-year charter school renewal with
Lewis & Clark Montessori, which will include the growth plan, at the July board
meeting.

SCHOOL CALENDAR AMENDMENT (8:57 p.m.)

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Matt O’Connell and carried 6 to 0 to
adopt the amended 2011-12 Academic Calendar as presented for second reading.

SCHOOL YEAR CALENDARS: 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15 (8:59 p.m.)

It was moved by Matt O’Connell, seconded by Kris Howatt and carried 6 to 0 to
adopt the 2012-13, 2013-14, and 2014-15 School Year Calendars as presented for
second reading.

POLICY REVISION: JGAB, USE OF RESTRAINT AND SECLUSION (9:02 p.m.)

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kathy Ruthruff and carried 6 to 0 to
approve revisions to Policy JGAB, Use of Restraint and Seclusion, as presented
for second reading.

MOTION 100 POLICY REVISION: IGBA, IGBAF, IGBAH, AND IGBAJ (SPECIAL

Gresham-Barlow School District - Regular Board Meeting, June 14, 2012

EDUCATION POLICIES) (9:04 p.m.)

It was moved by Kathy Ruthruff, seconded by Kris Howatt and carried 6 to 0 to
approve revisions proposed for the following policies as presented for second
reading;:



IGBA Students with Disabilities — Child Identification Procedures

IGBAF . Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)

IGBAH ____ Special Education — Evaluation Procedures
Special Education — Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE)

CLASSROOM DISCIPLINE AND SCHOOL SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT
(9:06 p.m.)

Janell Black reported on work completed by the Classroom Discipline and School
Safety Committee. The committee’s research was conducted in response to a
request from the school board chair and the superintendent regarding safety and
discipline issues described by representatives of the GBEA during negotiations.
The committee was asked to conduct interviews and surveys; compile data;
identify trends and patterns by grade level, buildings, time of day and year; and,
compare positive and negative situations to the practices in place.

Kathy Ruthruff and Carla Piluso volunteered to participate on the committee as
board representatives.

A follow-up report will be provided in the fall.
SUPERINTENDENT’S ANNUAL GOALS PROGRESS REPORT (9:10 p.m.)

As a part of the superintendent’s evaluation process, Mr. Schlachter presented an
annual goals progress report for 2011-12. Board members will next complete an
evaluation rating form and turn it in to the board secretary. A summary
describing results of the completed rating forms will be completed by
Matt O’Connell, who has been assigned by the board to work on the
superintendent’s evaluation process. The summary will be presented at a
subsequent board meeting.

Superintendent Schlachter also described some changes to cabinet titles and roles
that will be implemented in the 2012-13 school year as part of the district’s
leadership development. Names, faces, and the number of people will not
change; however, the following titles and adjustments have been made:

e Jerry Jones, who has been filling two positions as assistant superintendent and
chief financial officer, will return to filling only one position as the district’s
chief financial officer.

e Two deputy superintendents have been identified:
Teresa Ketelsen, Deputy Superintendent of Teaching and Learning
James Hiu, Deputy Superintendent of Secondary Education and Operations

e Tim Drilling’s responsibilities have been adjusted to include monitoring all of
the district’s charter schools, in addition to working with the Gresham Web
Academy. He will also be working on the Achievement Compact and all
things related.

¢ Angie Kautz, who has been a Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA) through
Title II funding, will continue in a similar role but will now have some
administrative responsibilities. For this reason, her classification has been
changed to administrator, and her title will be director of teaching and
learning.

Gresham-Barlow School District - Regular Board Meeting, June 14, 2012



ANNOUNCEMENTS (9:19 p.m.)

[une 18, 2012:  Long-Range Facility Planning Committee - 6 p.m.

Room 220

Center for Advanced Learning (CAL)

[uly 4, 2012: Independence Day Holiday

Schools and Offices Closed

July 12, 2012:  Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m.

Council Chambers

Public Safety and Schools Building

ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:21 p.m.

Submitted by:

Linda J. Cook

Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent and

Board of Director

Gresham-Barlow School District - Regular Board Meeting, June 14, 2012



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Randy Bryant
DATE: July 12, 2012
RE: No. 2 - Personnel Changes: Resignations/Terminations and New Hires
EXPLANATION: The following resignations have been accepted, or terminations

processed:
Administrative Resignations/Terminations

Ross, Mark, Principal, Sam Barlow High School. Notice of
resignation received June 14, 2012, effective June 30, 2012.

Licensed Resignations/Terminations

Nancy Hill, 2" Grade Teacher, Highland Elementary School.
Notice of retirement received June 7, 2012, effective at the end of
the 2011-2012 school year. PERS retirement scheduled for
July 1, 2012. 60-day notice waived.

Leah Molseed, Physical Therapist, Student Support Services.
Notice of resignation received June 14, 2012, effective at the end of
the 2011-2012 school year.

Julia Schrader, Speech Language Pathologist, Student Support
Services. Notice of resignation received June 13, 2012, effective at
the end of the 2011-2012 school year.

Classified Resignations/Terminations

Pauline Eckman, Educational Assistant-Classroom and Title One,
Highland Elementary School. Notice of retirement received
June 8, 2012, effective at the end of the 2011-2012 school year.
PERS retirement scheduled for July 1, 2012. 60-day notice waived.

Patricia Smith, Educational Assistant-Grades 1-5, Hogan Cedars
Elementary School. Notice of resignation received June 14, 2012,
effective at the end of the 2011-2012 school year.




Board of Directors

Re: No. 2 - Personnel Changes: Resignations/Terminations and New Hires

July 12, 2012
Page 2

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

RHB:pd:lc

In compliance with district policy, the following personnel are
being recommended for employment:

Administrative New Hires

David Atherton, Principal, Clear Creek Middle School. Replacing
Nicki Hudson who has retired.

Lori Bennis, Assistant Principal, Clear Creek Middle School.
Replacing Tadd Gestrin who has been reassigned.

Elise Catanese, Principal, West Orient Middle School. Replacing
Timothy Tutty who retired July 1, 2011 and has worked back for
the 2011-2012 school year.

Michelle Cook, Principal, Powell Valley Elementary School.
Probationary Contract. Replacing Rebecca Kadrmas who has been
reassigned.

Tadd Gestrin, Assistant Principal, West Orient Middle School.
Replacing Elise Catanese who has been reassigned.

Rebecca Kadrmas, Principal, Highland Elementary School.
Replacing Terri Bothwell who has retired.

David Lovelin, Principal, Sam Barlow High School. Probationary
Contract. Replacing Mark Ross who has resigned.

Licensed New Hires

Katharine McGillem, Special Education Teacher, Highland
Elementary  School. Probationary  Contract. Replacing
Sarah Ludlow who was reassigned.

Randy Bryant

None
None

Consent agenda approval



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Randy Bryant

DATE: July 12, 2012

RE: No. 3 - AGSA and Confidential Memorandums of Understanding

EXPLANATION: As the board knows, the administrative and confidential staff
bargain their employment agreements through a “meet and
confer” process. This results in a Memorandum of Understanding
that is signed by the parties. Accordingly, the district and the two
groups engaged in the meet and confer process, and agreements
were reached for both groups.
The memoranda are included with this executive summary for
board review and approval.
Note: The administrative group is formally called the Association
of Gresham School Administrators, or more commonly referred to
as AGSA.

PRESENTER: Randy Bryant

SUPPLEMENTARY 1. Memorandum of Understanding Between Association of

MATERIALS: Gresham School Administrators and Gresham-Barlow School

District #10]Jt. 2012-2013
2. Memorandum of Understanding Confidential Staff Members
2012-2013

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends ratification of the above
documents as presented.

REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval

e



Gresham-Barlow School District #10Jt
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, Oregon 97030

A WORLD-CLASS EDUCATION
< FOR ALL STUDENTS -

Memorandum of Understanding
Between
Association of Gresham School Administrators
and
Gresham-Barlow School District #10Jt.

2012 - 2013

A. Purpose and Authority. The purpose of this agreement is to establish the terms
and conditions for employment of an administrator within the meaning of ORS
342.815(1). By the signature of the undersigned Board Chair to this agreement,
the district represents that its Board of Directors, with the advice of its legal
counsel, concurred in the terms of this agreement by an action duly taken and
recorded during public session, the Board's Chair has the authority to execute
this agreement on behalf of the district and that it intends to be bound by its
terms. The Board Chair's signature represents that he/she has consulted with
legal counsel to the extent deemed necessary and intends to be bound by the
terms of this agreement.

B. Parties. The parties to this contract are the Gresham-Barlow School District
#10Jt. (hereafter, "district") and the Association of Gresham School
Administrators (hereafter, "administrator".)

C. Term. The term of the agreement is one (1) year commencing July 1, 2012, and
ending June 30, 2013, or until such later date as may be established by the
parties. Any modifications to this agreement will be determined in consultation
with the AGSA Executive Board and the Board of Education.

D. Compensation and Benefits

1. Salary

a. Salary Schedule

Administrative salary columns will not be increased for the 2012-2013 fiscal
year.

No step increases will be granted in 2012-13.

The 2012-13 salary schedule will be adjusted to reflect the reductions



associated with the five (5) budget reduction days.

Work Year, Holidays, & Non-Contract Days

Administrators shall work from July 1st through the following June 30th.
The number of workdays (including holidays) shall be as follows:

District Office Administrators: 230-240 as determined by

superintendent
Elementary School Principals: 230 days
High School Assistant and Middle School Principals: 235 days
High School Principals: 240 days
Middle School Asst Principals: 230 days

Of the contract days shown above, five (5) days will be designated as
"on-call" days taken during regular student vacation periods. On these
days an administrator may not be required to report to the school or office
unless specifically requested to do so by his/her supervisor.

2. Benefits

a.

d.

AGSA Agreement
2011-2012

Paid Holidays

July 4™ 6. Christmas Day

Labor Day 7. New Year's Day
Veteran's Day 8. Martin Luther King Day
Thanksgiving Day 9. President’s Day

Day following Thanksgiving 10. Memorial Day

o=

Vacation Days (Non-Contract Days)

Those days not designated above as workdays shall be considered
"vacation" days or “non-contract” days. An administrator, with the
superintendent’s approval, may carry over up to ten (10) vacation (non-
contract) days not taken by July 1% of the succeeding year. Those days
must be taken, however, before the next June 30™.

Administrators are required to take at least one vacation period annually
at a minimum of five (5) consecutive days.

Sick Leave

All administrators shall be granted one day of sick leave per contract
month: 230-day to 240-day contract = 12 days of sick leave annually.

Paid Leaves

1. Bereavement Leave. Up to five days leave with pay shall be




authorized by the district in the event of death of any member of the
immediate family. Up to one day of paid leave shall be granted for
attending the funeral of a friend. The definition of immediate family
shall be the same as that found in the licensed staff collective
bargaining agreement.

2. Family lliness. The administrator shall be allowed five working days
per contract year. This leave shall not accumulate. Maximum feasible
prior notice of intention to take such leave shall be given to the
superintendent. The definition of immediate family shall be the same
as that found in the licensed staff collective bargaining agreement.

3. Personal Leave. The administrator shall be granted three days per
contract year for personal reasons such as health, family
emergencies, business matters, and other reasons. This leave shall
not accumulate.

4. Jury Duty. If an administrator is summoned to serve on a jury, the
district shall grant the administrator permission to serve, without loss
of his/her regular salary, provided that if the administrator receives a
fee for these services, the fee shall be submitted to the district.

5. All other leave types will be submitted to the superintendent in
advance for his/her consideration and/or approval.

e. Professional Growth

The Board of Education encourages each administrator to engage in
continual professional development. Each administrator is expected to
develop a professional growth plan with his/her supervisor that is reviewed
and adjusted at least annually. In support of administrator professional
growth and targeting district resources toward key district initiatives,
$30,000 has been designated to support targeted staff development. The
District Instructional Team, in consultation with the AGSA board, will
identify specific administrators and staff development opportunities that
support the district’s key initiatives. An attempt will be made to provide
targeted opportunities to all administrators over the period of three to four
years. Those administrators not identified to participate in a targeted staff
development opportunity for a particular year shall receive $250 for
professional growth. The purpose of these funds is to support attendance
at conferences, workshops, or seminars that have relevance to an
administrator's professional growth plan.

Tuition costs for courses required for basic or standard administrative
licensure will be pre-paid by the district. Full district payment will be made
for courses prescribed for administrators by the building principal or
superintendent. An administrator who resigns his/her position will not
receive tuition payment for summer coursework of that calendar year.

AGSA Agreement
2011-2012 3



f.

AGSA Agreement
2011-2012

Professional Dues

The district will pay annual dues for COSA and appropriate affiliate
organizations as approved by the administrator’s supervisor.

Insurance

Each administrator may enroll in group medical (including RX), vision,
and/or dental insurance offered by the district through OEBB. As of the
date of the signing of this Memorandum, the maximum district
contribution will be $950.00 per month. The amount of the monthly cap
shall be $1,010 for the 2012-2013 school year. In the event the total cost
of the plans elected by the administrator is less than the monthly
insurance cap, the balance shall be used to create a pool. Administrators
opting for health insurance coverage with premiums exceeding the
district-paid contribution cap shall have the excess premium cost paid by
the insurance pool to the extent pool money is available.

Each administrator working a minimum of .5 FTE will be enrolled in term
life and long-term disability insurance programs with the premiums paid
by the district outside the limits of the maximum district contribution set
out above.

If deemed appropriate, an insurance review committee made up of

AGSA-appointed representatives and board-appointed representatives
may be convened to review insurance benefits and market trends.

Term Life Insurance

A term life insurance policy for each administrator will be purchased
by the district in the amount of $50,000 death benefit, $50,000
accidental death or dismemberment benefit. Retired administrators
may continue to participate, to age 65, at their own expense, subject
to carrier approval.

Long-Term Care Insurance

The district will pay monthly premiums toward basic long-term care
coverage for each administrator. Individual administrators may
purchase additional coverage offered by the insurance company
subject to eligibility terms and conditions of the carrier. All premiums
for additional, voluntary coverage will be at the expense of the
administrator. Administrators may continue coverage on a self-pay
basis after their retirement subject to carrier eligibility rules.



Tax deferred account

Each administrator will receive a contribution toward a district-paid
403(b) or a 457 program in the pro-rated amount of $250 per month, or
$3,000 per year. The district will deposit contributions directly into the
program selected by the administrator from the list of programs district-
approved for payroll deduction. Once the district deposits the
contribution into the account, the district has no further responsibility
for the investment decisions, earnings, or losses of the funds, and the
funds are immediately vested and owned by the administrator. It is the
responsibility of the administrator to enroll in the selected program. No
retroactive payment will be made if the administrator delays the
enrollment.

Mileage and Expense Allotment

The district shall pay a monthly allotment for mileage and expenses
within the tri-county area in the following amounts:

High School Principals: $230.00
High School Assistant Principals: $200.00
Elementary/Middle School Principals: $150.00
Middle School Assistant Principals: $150.00
SSSO Directors: $150.00
Facilities Director: $235.00
District Office Cabinet: $235.00
District Technology: $150.00
Accounting Supervisor: $150.00
Director of Federal Programs: $150.00

Other Administrators:  Determined by the superintendent

Outside the tri-county (Multhomah, Clackamas and Washington
counties) area, reimbursement shall be at the then current IRS rate.

An expense account may be available for some administrators, as
determined by the superintendent.

A stipend of $80.00 per month for cell phone data plans provided (see
detailed plan).

E. Early Retirement

1.

AGSA Agreement
2011-2012

Eligibility

In order to be eligible for early retirement from the district, the
administrator must be retired and receiving benefits under the Oregon
Public Employees Retirement System, and the administrator must have
completed at least 10 years of service from last date of hire (first day



AGSA Agreement
2011-2012

worked) with the Gresham-Barlow School District. An administrator
planning to take early retirement must give written notice to the
superintendent at least 60 calendar days prior to his/her retirement date.

If an administrator previously served as a Gresham-Barlow School District
teacher, once the administrator serves in an administrative capacity for
eight (8) years, the previous years of teaching may be added to the
administrative years in order to make the administrator eligible for benefits
under the plan. (Example: eight years of administrative service and seven
or more years of teaching service in this district will entitle an administrator
to the benefit level described in number 3 below for fifteen years of
service). Administrators who were previously teachers in the district and
who have less than eight years of administrative service retain eligibility
for the licensed staff early retirement program, if otherwise eligible under
the licensed collective bargaining agreement.

Sunset Clause

Administrators who were hired by the Gresham-Barlow School District
prior to July 1, 2005, and who choose to retire under PERS, will receive
benefits as set out in this section E, Early Retirement, if the administrator
meets the eligibility requirements set out above.

Stipend

When an administrator retires under the provisions of PERS, the district
shall make a stipend payment of $350 per month if the retired
administrator meets all eligibility requirements and has completed 10
years of consecutive service with the district or $400 per month if the
retired administrator meets all eligibility requirements and has completed
15 years of service with the district. Monthly stipend payments shall be
terminated at the end of the month in which the retired administrator dies,
qualifies for social security benefits at age 62, or when a total of 48
payments have been made, whichever comes first.

Insurance

For administrators hired prior to July 1, 1994, and who meet the eligibility
requirement under Section E 1 above, the maximum period for district-
paid one- or two-party medical, vision, and/or dental insurance benefits
will be ten (10) years or to a maximum of the last day of the month prior to
the month in which the administrator reaches age 65 or qualifies for
Federal Social Security Medicare coverage, whichever is earlier. If eligible
for Medicare earlier than age 65, due to disability, timely notification to HR
is required. Coverage for spouse/domestic partner is subject to the same
age restrictions and eligibility rules as the administrator. Coverage for
dependents is subject to carrier eligibility rules.



For administrators hired on or after July 1, 1994, and who meet the
eligibility requirement under Section E 1 above, the maximum period for
district-paid one- or two-party medical, vision, and/or dental insurance
premiums benefits will be seven (7) years or to a maximum of the last day
of the month prior to the month in which the administrator reaches age 65
or qualifies for Federal Social Security Medicare coverage, whichever is
earlier. If eligible for Medicare earlier than age 65, due to disability, timely
notification to HR is required. Coverage for spouse/domestic partner is
subject to the same age restrictions and eligibility rules as the
administrator. Coverage for dependents is subject to carrier eligibility
rules.

For administrators retiring before July 1, 2008, the monthly district-paid
health insurance benefit will be capped at the amount of the district’s
contribution to active administrations. For administrators retiring after June
30, 2008, the monthly district-paid health insurance benefit will be capped
at the amount of the district’s contribution at the time the administrator
retires; subsequent increases granted to active administrators will not

apply.
5. Self-pay/COBRA

If district-paid insurance benefits cease prior to age 65, retired
administrators (and spouse, if the spouse is a covered party at the time of
the administrator’s retirement) may continue to participate in medical,
vision, and/or dental programs, to the last day of the month prior to the
month in which the administrator turns age 65, or Medicare eligibility,
whichever comes first, at their own expense, subject to carrier approval.
Participation in continuation coverage in the early retiree group extends for
a longer period than required by COBRA. By continuing coverage in the
early retiree group the administrator (and spouse, if the spouse is a
covered party at the time of the administrator’s retirement) acknowledge
and agree that they waive their right to COBRA continuation. A retired
administrator, subject to insurance carrier approval, may participate at
his/her own expense in the district's group term life insurance program up
to age 70.

Once a retired administrator is no longer eligible to receive a post-
retirement paycheck or the monthly retirement stipend, premium payment
for term life insurance, and any medical/vision/dental premiums that
exceed the district-provided allotment, must be submitted directly to the
district payroll department by the 10" day of each month for insurance
coverage to continue to be effective as of the first day of the following
month.

F. Accrued Service. As of July 1, 1999, if an administrator has served the district
in an administrative capacity for five consecutive years, in the judgment of
district's superintendent, he/she has three years successful teaching experience

AGSA Agreement
2011-2012 7



in Oregon within the meaning of ORS 342.845(5).

G. Goals and Evaluation for Contract Administrators. Administrators will be

evaluated consistent with the current Management Evaluation and Professional

Development Handbook.

H. Notice of Non-Extension for Contract Administrators. The district may non-

extend an administrator’s contract consistent with Oregon Statutes.

l. Release. The parties agree that an administrator may be released from the
terms of this contract upon sixty (60) days prior written notice.

J. Addresses of the Parties. For purposes of this contract, any notice to the district
shall be sufficient if mailed or delivered to the district address. Notice to an
administrator shall be sufficient if mailed or delivered to his/her home address

listed with the district.

K. Severability. The parties agree that if any provision of this agreement is found
to be invalid, that provision shall be severed from the agreement and all
remaining portions shall be enforced.

K. Modification. The terms of this contract may be modified only by mutual
agreement of the parties fully set forth in writing.

Revised this day of

2012

For the District:

Chair, Board of Education

Date Signed

Jim Schlachter, Superintendent

For AGSA:

Date Signed

Jason Bhear, President

AGSA Agreement
2011-2012

Date Signed



Gresham-Barlow School District
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 9030-3825

A WORLD-CLASS EDUCATION
= FOR ALL STUDENTS -

Memorandum of Understanding
Confidential Staff Members
2012-2013

A. Work Year, Holidays & Vacation

Confidential staff members shall work a 260-day work year from July 1, 2012,

through June 30, 2013.
1. Paid Holidays

1. July 4 6. Christmas Day

2. Labor Day 7. New Year’s Day

3. Veterans Day 8. Martin Luther King Day
4. Thanksgiving Day 9. Presidents Day

5. Day Following Thanksgiving 10. Memorial Day

2. Vacation: Each confidential staff member will earn, on the anniversary of his or

her employment, paid vacation days as listed below, beginning with his or her
first anniversary of employment. A maximum of 10 of these vacation days may
be carried forward from one year to the next with the year starting on the
anniversary date.

After 1 year of employment . . 12 days
After 2 years of employment . 14 days
After 3 years of employment . 16 days
After 4 years of employment . 18 days
After 5 years of employment 20 days

In addition, each confidential employee hired prior to July 1, 1996, will earn five
additional days of vacation each July 1. These days will be
pro-rated in the event the confidential employee resigns prior to June 30.

B. Paid Leave

1.

2012-2013 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: Confidential Staff Members

Sick Leave: All confidential staff members shall be granted one day of sick leave
per month to accrue on the first paycheck of the fiscal year. Accrual is unlimited.

Bereavement Leave: Up to five (5) days of paid leave per year shall be granted
by the district in the event of death of any member of the immediate family.
Immediate family shall be defined as: spouse, children, parents, mother- and
father-in-law, grandchildren, grandparents, step children, step parents, siblings,
and others living in the household.

Page 1 of 5



The district retains the right to require the confidential staff member to supply
proof of death and/or relationship of decedent as well as justification of time
required for bereavement-related activities.

3. Funeral Leave: Up to one (1) day of paid leave per year shall be granted for
attending the funeral of a friend or non-immediate family member.

4. Emergency Leave: Each confidential staff member shall be eligible for
emergency leave with pay and may be granted such leave upon approval of the
superintendent.

5. Family Illness: Up to five (5) days of paid leave per year shall be granted for
illness of a member of the confidential staff member's immediate family (see
definition contained in 2 above).

In the event that emergency conditions arise, an extension of this leave may be
granted by the superintendent as determined upon individual merit.

6. Jury Duty: If a confidential staff member is summoned to serve on a jury, the
employer shall grant the confidential staff member permission to serve, without
loss of his/her regular salary, provided that if the confidential staff member
receives a fee for these services, the fee shall be submitted to the district.

The confidential staff member will give as much advance notice as possible of
intended use of jury duty leave and will provide the district human resources
office with a copy of the summons.

7. Legal Leave: Up to three (3) days of paid leave per year shall be granted in the
event a confidential staff member is subpoenaed or summoned to appear in a
legal proceeding in which the confidential staff member is not a plaintiff or
complaining party.

The confidential staff member will give as much advance notice as possible of
intended use of legal leave and will provide the district human resources office
with a copy of the subpoena or summons.

8. Personal Leave: The district will grant up to three (3) days of paid leave per year
for personal business that cannot be conducted outside the regular workday.
Personal leave cannot be used for recreational or leisure activities, nor to extend a
holiday or vacation.

C. Professional Growth

Confidential staff members will have the opportunity to attend professional
seminars/conferences at district expense and receive tuition pre-payment or
reimbursement for college courses based on approval of the superintendent.

D. Early Retirement

When a confidential staff member retires under the provisions of PERS, the district
shall offer an early retirement program that provides a monthly payment of $200 for
a maximum of 48 months, in accordance with the following conditions:

2012-2013 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: Confidential Staff Members Page 2 of 5



The confidential staff member must be retired and receiving benefits under the
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System.

Monthly "early retirement payments" shall be terminated at the end of the month
in which the retired confidential staff member dies, qualifies for social security
benefits, or when a total of 48 payments have been made, whichever comes first.

In order to qualify for benefits, the confidential staff member must have
completed at least 15 years of continuous service from the last date of regular
hire (first day worked in a regular, non-temporary, assignment) with the
Gresham-Barlow School District and must be in the employ of the Gresham-
Barlow School District at the time of PERS retirement. Exceptions to continuous
employment will be allowed for confidential staff members who were on
authorized, unpaid leaves of absence or layoff; however, those periods of
absence shall not be counted as time employed.

A confidential staff member planning to take early retirement must give notice to
the human resources director at least sixty (60) calendar days prior to his/her
PERS retirement date.

Two-party district-sponsored group medical/RX/vision insurance coverage or
one-party district-sponsored group medical/RX/vision and one-party district-
sponsored group dental insurance (at the staff member's option) for a
confidential staff member who meets the above conditions and opts for early
retirement will be provided by the district to a maximum of the last day of the
month prior to the month in which the confidential staff member reaches age 65
or qualifies for Federal Social Security Medicare coverage, whichever is earlier. If
eligible for Medicare earlier than age 65, due to disability, timely notification to
human resources is required. Coverage for spouse/domestic partner is subject to
the same age restrictions and eligibility rules as the confidential staff member.
Coverage for dependents is subject to carrier eligibility rules.

Once district-paid premium payment has begun, the confidential staff member
cannot change the payment option originally selected (two-party
medical /RX/ vision or one-party medical /RX/vision/dental insurance).

The confidential staff member, subject to insurance carrier approval, may
participate at his/her own expense in the district-sponsored group term life
insurance program up to age 70.

Sunset Clause: Confidential staff members who are hired into the confidential
group of the Gresham-Barlow School District after June 30, 2009, will not be
eligible to receive the benefits of this article.

E. Insurance

1.

2012-2013 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: Confidential Staff Members

Health Insurance: Each confidential staff member may enroll in group medical
(including RX), vision, and/or dental insurance offered by the district through
OEBB. The amount of the monthly cap will not change for the 2012-2013 school
year; it shall remain at $1,010. In the event the total cost of the plans elected by
the confidential staff member is less than the monthly insurance cap, the balance
shall be used to create a pool in combination with the administrative and
supervisory group. Confidential staff opting for heath insurance coverage with
premiums exceeding the district-paid contribution cap shall have the excess
premium cost paid by the insurance pool to the extent pool money is available.

Page 3 of 5



2. Term Life Insurance: The amount of the current policy has a $50,000 death
benefit, and $50,000 accidental death and dismemberment.

Each confidential staff member working a minimum of .5 FTE will be enrolled in
a term life insurance program with the premiums paid by the district outside the
limit of the maximum district contribution set.

Retired confidential staff may continue to participate, to age 65, at their own
expense, subject to carrier approval. Life insurance is not subject to COBRA.

3. Long-term Disability Insurance: The current policy pays up to 60% of the
confidential staff member's monthly income (maximum payment of $3,000 per
month) with a 60-day waiting period for benefits after becoming totally disabled.
Long-term disability insurance is not subject to COBRA.

Each confidential staff member working a minimum of .5 FTE will be enrolled in
a long-term disability insurance program with the premiums paid by the district
outside the limit of the maximum district contribution set.

4. Long-term Care Insurance: The district will pay monthly premiums toward
basic long-term care coverage for each confidential staff member. Individual
confidential staff members may purchase additional coverage offered by the
insurance company subject to eligibility terms and conditions of the carrier. All
premiums for additional, voluntary coverage will be at the expense of the
confidential staff member.

Retired confidential staff members may continue coverage on a direct-pay basis
by making the necessary application through OEBB, provided this coverage is
still offered.

F. Tax Deferred Account

Each confidential staff member will receive a contribution toward a district-paid
403(b) or a 457 program in the pro-rated amount of $250 per month, or $3,000 per
year. The district will deposit contributions directly into the program selected by the
staff member from the list of programs district-approved for payroll deduction.
Once the district deposits the contribution into the account, the district has no
further responsibility for the investment decisions, earnings, or losses of the funds,
and the funds are immediately vested and owned by the staff member. It is the
responsibility of the staff member to enroll in the selected program. No retroactive
payment will be made if the staff member delays the enrollment.

G. Mileage
Reimbursement shall be at the current IRS rate for all authorized travel.

H. Salary Schedule

Confidential salary columns will not be increased for the 2012-2013 fiscal year, which
is consistent with the AGSA Memorandum of Understanding for 2012-2013.

No step increases will be granted in 2012-2013.

The 2012-2013 salary schedule will be adjusted to reflect the reductions associated
with the five (5) budget reduction days.

See attached salary schedule.

2012-2013 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: Confidential Staff Members Page 4 of 5



I. Overtime/Compensatory Time

Confidential staff members shall be compensated for all work performed beyond 40
hours per week at the rate of 1.5 hours per hour worked. The first choice for
compensation for this work shall be time off. The second choice shall be paid
compensation. The confidential staff member shall be paid for this work only if time
off cannot otherwise be arranged. The district shall make the choice of method of
compensation. The confidential staff member shall make every reasonable effort to
use accrued compensatory time off within ninety (90) days after the date it is earned.

J. Inclement Weather

A confidential staff member's attendance may not be required when school staff
attendance is not required due to inclement weather. Confidential staff members,
who are approved for and able to work on "snow days," shall be compensated at a
later date by receiving time off or compensation at the rate of 1.5 hours per hour
worked.

FOR THE DISTRICT:

July 12, 2012

Dale R. Clark, Chair Date Signed
Board of Education

July 12, 2012
Jim Schlachter Date Signed
Superintendent
FOR THE CONFIDENTIAL STAFF MEMBERS:

July 12, 2012
Lynne Hill Date Signed

Budget Analyst

JS:le 07/09/2012

Note: Corrections or amendments to this 2012-2013 Memorandum of Understanding, if any, are to be
completed only by the office of the superintendent and presented to the board of directors for
approval.

2012-2013 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: Confidential Staff Members Page 5 of 5



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Dale Clark
DATE: July 12, 2012
RE: No. 4 — Renewal of the Superintendent’s 2012-2015 Employment Agreement
EXPLANATION: The final step in the annual superintendent’s evaluation process is

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

e

to renew the superintendent’ employment agreement for another
year. In preparation for this renewal, board members
Dale Clark and Matt O’Connell met with the superintendent to
review terms of the agreement.

In summary, there have been no substantive changes to the
previous 2012-2015 employment agreement, except for the
extension of one year; the new agreement, therefore, will be for
the years 2012-2015. Compensation and terms of the agreement
will remain as previously approved.

Provision of the superintendent’s employment agreement are in
accordance with the board’s desire to have compensation and
other terms that reflect the superintendent’s scope of
responsibility, current market conditions, comparison data with
other districts, and job performance.

Dale Clark

The 2012-2015 Employment Agreement Between Gresham-Barlow
School District 10JT. and James A. Schlachter as Superintendent
will be provide at the board meeting.

The board chair and vice chair recommend approval of the
2012-2015 Employment Agreement between Gresham-Barlow
School District 10 Jt. and James A. Schlachter, Superintendent.

Consent agenda approval



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Jerry Jones

DATE: July 12, 2012

RE: No. 5 — Disposal of Obsolete / Surplus Items

EXPLANATION: The administration circulates the availability of items to all
schools before asking the board to declare them obsolete or
surplus. The items are then disposed of in the most cost-effective
method according to state administrative rules and statutes.
There is no current or future need for the items listed in the
supplementary material. There are no immediate plans for an
on-site surplus sale or auction. The administration, therefore,
requests that the board declare the items specified as surplus and
allow for their disposal through an off-site surplus sale, parent
sale, private competitive sale, or as a non-profit or public
donation, according to district practice. All items separately are
valued at $200 or less.

PRESENTER: Jerry Jones

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: List of Obsolete/Surplus Items

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the board declare the items
noted in the supplementary materials as surplus and allow for
their disposal in the most cost-effective method.

REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval

e



F-867

P.002/003

T=-0M

5034926707

FROM-CLEAR CREEK MIDDLE SCHOOL

02:16PM

06-27-2012

Surplus/Obsolete ltems
{School: Clear Creek Person completing form: _Helfrich Date: 6/21/42
Condttion (Fair,
Poor, Outdated,| Serial Number |{School or FAS
temn Description Quantity | In-Operable) (if applicable) Number

1@: 1 Outdsted 'YM1179K6KLX 17870
iMac 1 Ouldated YM11BAH3KLX 17871 o
PPC 5500 1 Outdated TY740E8L9GC 04675
PPC 5500 1 Outdated TY740E2G9GC 04670
PPC 5500 1 Ouldaled TY72304A8GC 04647
Performa 550 1 Outdated LL4370N32TT NIA

PPC 5500 1 OQutdated TY470DQROGC 04678
PPC 5500 1 Outdated TY740ESKIGC 04865
PPC 5500 1 Outdated TY7242819GC 04554
iMac 1 Outdated YM172N1KLX 17862 _
PPC §500 1 Outdated TY740ATT9GC 04668

12

13

14

15

Facilities Approval: Date: 11 m
Board Approval: Y or N \ Date:

T poo H““Wﬂzjﬁ

Gresham-Barlow School District Lt booKs
@ Surplus/Obsolete items
School: C/Q«CM. Cnecle__ [person co eting form: M Hueds on. |pate: 6/ 2,7'/]9-
Condition ¥ | Serial Number | School or FAS
item Description Quantity Qperable) (If applicable) Number
1. Netth d Crommer B | feir Cems
2. rtviee /P eentiss Hall 45 | fair Cems
3. Lt [ M Dovgall Litkl]| 4G fair Lcms
s, HisPvy of Bua e " _CCMS
s. Hrstory/Teachsvfacks|  ja_— I CCMS
5. Uit/ Teacher Packs L " cecMmg
7.
8.
9.
10.
1.
12,
13.
14.
- Textboolc frcyclen]
o0 C
Facilities Approval: Date: { 41-nl, A p,(ded&o( (/7
BoardApproval: Y or N 1B Date: 4 ’[W

Page Number.



T-071  P.003/003  F~857

5034926707

FROM-CLEAR CREEK MIDOLE SCHOOL

06-27-2012  02:16PM

.. Beoks
Gresham-Barlow School District ”'”MMM?/
g Surplus/Obsolete ltems
. . . . &/,
school:  (lean Crenfe Person completing fo.rm.ijd’w Date: / 21/12)
g,?;,‘gilmg ,a,‘:' Serial Number | School or FAS
Item Description Quantity Operable) {If applicable) Number
1. Scott Foregman Math C | 55 Fair ccms
2. n Y C2. 50 H eeMs
3, 73 5= n cems
4.
5.
5.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11,
12,
13.
14.
15.
0 0 noes: Tepctbooll Ko cyclon
Facilities Approval: Date: . (., /1%]'{,(){-0:( ﬂ/&j/s,e,
BoardApproval: Y or N ! Date: W .,/ ( ! / 2/
Page Number.
Gresham-Barlow School District
@ Surplus/Obsolete items
School: ﬂd/ df Person completing form:\f\/.ﬂ [{L’U{,UUJ Date:
Condtion ™% | Serlal Number | School or FAS
item Description Quantity Operable) (if applicable) Number
1. Aac / udAalid)| XA 947 SBTHE0 824 5
2. M % t Y 494731, 54VE1524 D
5.V 7 mounduediby | o RNH4SUehcl | 08239
4. 7 ” l o XADI620ETES | 1594 (
5. Qharcoad, ¢Mag) ! inopahghls, XA0OT075HZ8| /6057 |
8. iﬂd"gg ¢ Mac, l vide bod  lymi1353R)/RG| —7
7. “ { ottdaled. [ymao8zRkeRE LIS S
8.
9.
10. ]
11. . N
12.
13,
14.
15,
0 0] Notes:
Facilities Approval: 7" |pate: {/, (2]
IBoardAQprovaI: Y o N { Date:

Page Number.



Gresham-Barlow School District

2

{School:

SurplusiObsolete items

Quantiy

[Date: 47’75’/ (%

Serial Number

(f ampiicable)

School or FAS
Number

n e ervhle

0010339

———r

arpiecter S48y |
eihi 00 E [ML,a(."‘?‘

cuthiated

Qr126(TQAGZ

L2495

GLRL
YHH30 FepTAu

/7373

citdid

wnetdafid

Y A3(05YLES

130158

RN i145DT29

15765

(47} fdﬂ/f_; df

RNCITERIZ T

Yin2o3Z2sCRLA

1594 ¢

1)

Y LI7SQFKLX

17359

5

DL

w»a’n‘é/w

Page-Nurnber.




Gresham-Barlow School District

4o

—_— Surplus/Obsolete ltems .

School: .Oou)d\\ \Ia,[\e_g Person completing form: G,Of 5 Sthoch Ipate: lo{ (2] 12

S&ng:;eff: Serial Number | School or FAS

Item Description Quantity O (if applicable) Number
1. Maole. Molar { addab A XORIGIWIDHD 1465
2. Agple. Mplar L ardated Basoymad 520k
5. Mrtsubishy, TV L |odstodd  103-9610R 65590
4. Yanazon YHS olauer (lowddated [E91 A4DN0O
5. L4l VD Rom~ O \ |esddatadl Q>
6. Apat Tdwerkns € 1 suddoted |QTE3¢PIMYKE
7. P\ oo s | meddotecl [QTasf gqK HxE
ﬁﬁmwm L eeddatrd | B-KOP1D
9. N\ | | 78-Kwze>
10. \ | \ | 75 -AXYRN
1. / ) /| 78 A X
12. 1 - 18- KIDEAZ
13, [ ) [ ng A XXDA
14, \ | \ 8- A XNTQ
15, ~ ] Y 18- AXxVH
Notes:
Facilities Approval: i Date: 3 (]
BoardApproval: Y or N Date:
Page Number. l
= 06 2
Gresham-Barlow School District
@ Surplus/Obsolete items .

Schooll T 14000 Vall 01(1), Person completing form: 0,0') ]&Lﬁb 0h Date: (o’/ {1!_!& 1

B tion 2%, | Serial Number | School or FAS

Item Description Quanti 0 ) {If applicable) Number
1. /o Thimkgadl ! tuddated | 18 -AXWD XT
2. ' Hatrd 7§—A,xsz =577
3':QWW' () i mﬁ‘zm | 087850 IKYAL o)
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
Notes:

Facllities Approval: Date;
Board Approval: Y or N Date:

Page Number.




Gresham-Barlow School District

@

d

Surplus/Obsolete ltems

Schook: ), £S o MS |Person leting form: " <. |Date: ﬂzﬁ
E;ngzag ,a,z Serial Number | School or FAS
Item Description Quantity Operable) (If applicable) Number
1. Ousdatecl bales, T | Outdated | W/A Cems |
2. 325 | Vs |
3. 25200 \ ™S
4. 1840, \ DeBS
5. 1855 \ \ oS |
6 2eHD | \ Mes |
7. 1 WS
le. 25 HOES
9. 222 WATES
10. (S Sy ¥ess
1. =17 EfemS
12. 122 aViza)
13. \ 239 NV
14, \ 1 / 1072 | \ EES
15. 9 V HOES
Notes:
Facilities Approval: Date: (] ?'7 N
‘B;oard Approval: Y or N Date: v

PageNumber__ ]

Gresham-Barlow School District

@; Surplus/Obsolete ltems
school: AW\ ES & g {Person completing form: (S Tigha n: 1. E2ums|pate: 5_/2.6,
g::,‘ﬁ:,:f,‘: Serial Number | School or FAS

Item Description Quantity Operable) {If applicable) Number
1. S Oudrladed TS
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9
10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.

Notes:

Facilities Approval: " Ipate: (131 2]
BoardApproval: Y or N Date:

Page Numbar_z-*




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway

Gresham, Oregon 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Jerry Jones

DATE: July 12, 2012

RE: No. 6 — Student Accident Insurance and Health Coverage 2012-13 Renewal

EXPLANATION: As a service to our parents and to make additional protection
coverage available for our students, the district offers voluntary
participation student accident insurance and health coverage.
Attached is a brochure outlining the voluntary student accident
and health insurance programs being offered for 2012-13 by
Myers-Stevens & Toohey. The plans are underwritten by ACE
American Insurance Company.
Myers-Stevens & Toohey increased the premiums by
approximately 9.2% for student accident insurance.
The administration is confident that Myers-Stevens & Toohey will
continue to provide the quality services desired. The district has
established a good working relationship with Myers-Stevens &
Toohey and hopes to continue this partnership.

PRESENTER: Jerry Jones

SUPPLEMENTARY Myers-Stevens & Toohey Student Accident and Health Insurance

MATERIALS: Programs for the 2012-13 School Year

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends continued use of Myers-Stevens
& Toohey & Co., Inc., to provide voluntary student accident and
health insurance programs for 2011-12.

REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval

JJ:mkh:lc



26101 Marguerite Parkway
Mission Viejo, CA 92692-3203
(949) 348-0656 Fax (949) 348-2630

myers | stevens | toohey

June 11, 2012

Re: Student Accident & Sickness Insurance — 2012/13 Renewal

Thanks very much for giving us the opportunity to be of service to your district and its families this past
year. Your 2012/2013 student insurance renewal packet is enclosed.

Normally, we would have had your materials to you much sooner but a number of factors slowed the
process this year. For the most part, it involved continuing heavy pressure on the program. Claim
frequency and severity are up, medical costs are up and the percentage of our insured students with
other, underlying health or similar coverage is down. Another factor is the increasing trend towards year-
round sports. Even so, as we want our plans to minimize out-of-pocket costs to parents, we were
pleased to have been able to negotiate no reductions in benefit levels with relatively modest rate
adjustments.

There are a couple of changes that we do want to point out. These changes resulted from our
underwriting company’s need to re-file the policy forms that support our plans.

“STUDENT ACCIDENT & SICKNESS PLAN" —

In addition to our accident only plans, we’ve long given your parents the option of covering their kids for
getting sick as well as getting hurt. Previously, this was done under a plan referred to as “Student Health
Care”. For 12/13, parents can enroll their students in our “Student Accident & Sickness Plan” regardless
of health status. It offers excellent, pay-as-you-go coverage for injuries as well as illness 24/7. Since
many parents and schools are especially concerned about sports injuries, it also covers all
interscholastic sports (except high school tackle football....available separately) with up to
$200,000/injury.

USE OF “SCHOOL RETURN” ENROLLMENT FORMS —

In years past, schools wanting to confirm that insurance was in place prior to allowing participation in
certain activities (typically interscholastic athletics) would generally use an enrollment form option we
referred to as “School Return”. The enroliment envelopes with premium would first come through the
applicable school where time and date of receipt was required to be recorded and then forwarded to our
offices within 15 days of receipt by the school. These record keeping and timely forwarding requirements
helped protect the program from fraud.

Unfortunately, because we are no longer able to make coverage contingent upon any record keeping
requirements and/or timely or even actual receipt at our end of an enroliment form with proper payment,
we can no longer make coverage effective on the date forms are turned into the school. Parents must
mail us their enroliment forms using either credit cards, checks or money orders for payment. Immediate
coverage can also occur using faxed credit card information or a scanned check.

Enrollment on line will also be available.



June 11, 2012
Page Two

We understand that many schools will continue to look for confirmation of coverage prior to allowing
students to participate in certain activities and that many parents will continue to bring enroliment forms
with payment (sometimes cash!) at the 11" hour to the school to enable sports participation. Under such
circumstances, contact us and we can probably work out an arrangement for effected schools using
scanned School, Booster Club or ASB checks or PO numbers.

Your schools will be given login codes to be able to confirm real time the enroliment status of their
students in our system. Parents will also be mailed 2 computer generated ID cards to confirm coverage.

OUT OF SEASON SPORTS -

As referred to above, the trend continues for school coaches to train their kids year-round. For us and the
districts we work with, the big question is whether or not such out-of-season sports programs are
considered by the district involved to be “officially school sponsored and supervised”. We've found that
the answer varies widely from district to district. We strongly encourage each of our districts to provide
formal guidance to coaches and parents on this matter before an injury occurs. Whatever your district’s
position is, we have a solution!

IMPORTANT...For us to offer high reimbursement at the most affordable rates, it’s vital that schools
avoid practices leading to adverse selection against the insuring company. As such, the parents of every
student must receive the student insurance materials on or before the resumption of classes. Although
forms will also be made available electronically, electronic availability cannot be used as a replacement
for physical distribution. Your cooperation will also allow us to provide your district the various blanket
coverages described within i.e. One Day Field Trip, Accidental Death, Felonious Assault Counseling, etc.
at no additional charge.

To help us deliver your materials in time and in the proper quantities, please return your completed
paperwork as soon as possible. If you have questions or need help with your paperwork, please call us
at (800) 827-4695. Thank you in advance for your continued confidence!

Sincerely,
MYERS-STEVENS & TOOHEY & CO., INC.

Sean Toohey
Executive Vice President

P.S. — Look for additional information concerning our high limit, low cost catastrophic injury coverages for
students & volunteers to come shortly under separate cover.



Student Accident
Insurance

myers | stevens | toohey

122-0R






ABOUT OUR COMPANY

Myers-Stevens and Toohey offers insurance with the individual
in mind, global awareness with local access and state-of-the-art
technology matched with well-founded personal service.

Founded in 1970, we are a fully licensed broker/administrator
providing insurance solutions to a wide variety of educational
systems throughout the Western and Midwestern States including:
School Districts, Private Schools, Risk Management Pools, JPA’s,
Universities, Colleges and Specialty Risk Groups.

Why Student Accident Insurance Is Important

Many students enrolled in your district currently have little or
no accident & sickness insurance. As such, districts generally
use our programs to:

e Facilitate compliance with relevant sections of State law or
Board policy where applicable;

® Lessen financial barriers and improve lower-income
students’” access to extra curricular activities;

¢ Reduce the likelihood of otherwise uninsured School-
related injuries and legal costs to the district; and

e Offer a community service to families.

Company Highlights
e Full Service Administration
e Bilingual Customer Service
¢ On-Site Claims Adjudication
® Loss Analysis & Claims Reporting ‘ \a

e Group & Individual Billings ‘\k
e Student Accident and Sickness
Plans

e Multiple Student Accident-Only
Plan Options and Benefit Levels

¢ Conveniences to Parents- easy payment options and
verification cards issued to every enrolled student

e Custom Plans - Tell us what you need, we'll provide
a quote

e Catastrophic Injury Plans
¢ Exchange Student Worldwide Medical Plans
® Industry Leader for over 42 years




VOLUNTARY PARTICIPATION

We offer two distinct schedules of benefits for the District to choose from (detailed on pages 7 & 8). Each schedule
includes several levels of accident coverage: a School-Time, Full-Time (24/7) or Tackle Football only basis. In addition,
we offer a Student Accident & Sickness Plan and Dental Accident Plan. Coverages are described below and enrollment
instructions are described on page 11.

Tackle Football Accident Plans

Covers injuries caused by accidents occurring:
e While practicing or playing in interscholastic high school tackle football activities which are School-sponsored and
directly supervised, including spring practice and summer conditioning, weight training and passing league; and

e While traveling for football in a School Vehicle or traveling directly and without interruption between School and off-
campus sites for such activities provided travel is arranged by and is at the direction of the School.

NOTE: Football coverage can be made effective as early as the first day of spring practice, May 2012.
Order your materials now!

Full-Time (24/7) Accident Plans

Covers injuries caused by accidents occurring 24 hours a day, anywhere in the world, except while
participating in interscholastic tackle football.

School-Time Accident Plans

Covers injuries caused by accidents occurring:
e While on School premises during the hours and on the days when the School’s regular
classes are in session, including one hour immediately before and one hour immediately
after regular classes, while the Covered Person is continuously on the School premises; and

e While participating in or attending School-sponsored and directly supervised activities
including interscholastic athletic activities and non-contact spring football (except
interscholastic high school tackle football); and

e While traveling directly and without interruption: to or from residence and School for
regular attendance; or School and off-campus site to participate in School-sponsored and
directly supervised activities provided travel is arranged by and is at the direction of the
School; and

e While traveling in School Vehicles at any time.

Dental Accident Plan

Covers injuries to teeth caused by accidents occurring anywhere in the world, 24 hours a day,

including participation in all sports and all forms of transportation. The “Benefit Period” under the dental plan provides
accident dental benefits for up to one year from the date of first Treatment. However, the benefit period for an Injury may be
extended each year, provided that: coverage is renewed prior to October 1, the student remains enrolled in grades P-12, and
written notice is received by the Company at the time of injury that further Treatment will be deferred to a later date.

Coverage is not limited to treatment of sound, natural teeth. We pay up to 100% of the Usual, Customary and Reasonable
charges for Treatment of injured teeth, including repair or replacement of existing caps and crowns. (We do not pay for
damage to or loss of dentures or bridges or damage to existing orthodontic equipment.)

Accident Plan Rates (One-Time Payment Per Student for Entire School Year)

Network Benefit Package Scheduled Benefit Package
COVERAGE OPTIONS Low-Option  Mid-Option High-Option Low-Option  Mid-Option High-Option
Interscholastic Tackle Football $227 $281 $304 $192 $257 $342
Full-Time (24/7) $218 $275 $296 $200 $249 $343
School-Time $55 $66 $70 $56 $72 $87

Dental Accident Coverage is $22 if purchased separately or $18 when added to any purchased Plan(s).




Student Accident and Sickness Plan

Covers Injuries sustained and Sickness (subject to the Pre-existing Conditions Limitation) during the period of time for which
coverage has been purchased. Coverage protects your student 24 hours a day, anywhere in the world, including participating
in all interscholastic sports, except high school tackle football. Repatriation and Medical Evacuation benefits are included.

$200,000 maximum coverage per Injury ¢ $50,000 maximum coverage per Sickness ® $10,000 accidental death benefit
There is a $50 deductible per Injury or Sickness.

Any student of a participating School or School District, age 4 through 22, is eligible to purchase the Student Accident and
Sickness Plan. The initial payment provides coverage for the remainder of the month premium is received by the Company plus
the following month. Thereafter, premium is billed and payable every two months. If subsequent payments are not made for

any reason, the student’s coverage under the Student Accident and Sickness Plan will end. However, the student will be covered
under the School-Time Low-Option Plan, with a $1,500 maximum per injury, for the remainder of the School Year.

Rates: $160 First Payment covers the remainder of that month in which it was paid and
the month following

$280 Subsequent payments cover additional two-month periods

Effective Dates

Coverage begins at 11:59 pm on the day that the Company receives a completed enrollment
form and payment of premium. Coverage for all plans may begin as early as May 1, 2012.

Termination Dates

Full-Time (24/7) and Dental coverages end at 12:01 am on the date School begins regularly
scheduled classes for the 2013-2014 School Year. Interscholastic High School Tackle Football

and School-Time coverages end at 11:59 pm on the closing date of regular classes for the 2012-
2013 School Year. Student Accident and Sickness coverage ends at 11:59 pm on the last day of
the month for which payment has been made. Coverage may be continued for up to 12 calendar
months, or through September 30, 2013, whichever comes first, provided the required payments
are made.

Additional Benefits

Accidental death, dismemberment, loss of sight, paralysis and psychiatric/psychological
counseling benefits (applies to all voluntary plans except the Dental Accident Plan).

In addition to medical benefits, if, within 365 days from the date of Accident covered by
the policy, bodily injuries result in any of the following losses, we will pay the benefit set
opposite such loss. Only one such benefit (the largest) will be paid for all such losses due to any one Accident.

e Accidental Death $10,000
e Single dismemberment or entire loss of sight in one eye $20,000
e Double dismemberment or entire loss of sight in both eyes or paraplegia or hemiplegia or quadriplegia $30,000

e Counseling - In addition to the AD&D benefits, we will pay 100% of the Usual, Customary and
Reasonable costs of psychiatric/psychological counseling needed after covered dismemberment, loss
of sight or paralysis up to: $5,000




VOLUNTARY BENEFITS

The Network Benefit Package
(applies to all voluntary plans except the Dental Accident Plan)

We will pay benefits only for covered Injuries sustained or covered Sicknesses while insured under this School Year’s plan. Applicable
benefits mandated by Oregon are included as covered expenses. Benefits payable will be based on the Usual, Customary and
Reasonable Charges incurred for covered medical and dental services, as defined by the Policy, subject to exclusions, requirements
and limitations. We do not pay for a service or supply unless it is Medically Necessary and listed in the Description of Benefits,
below.

Parents may take their child to any provider they choose; however, seeking treatment through a Beech Street contracted provider
may reduce out-of-pocket costs.

To find participating Beech Street medical providers nearest you, call 800-877-1666 or log on to www.beechstreet.com.
PERCENTAGES SHOWN BELOW ARE PERCENTAGES OF USUAL, CUSTOMARY AND REASONABLE CHARGES.

LOW OPTION

MID OPTION

HIGH OPTION

STUDENT ACCIDENT &

SICKNESS PLAN
Plan Name MAXIMUMS PER ACCIDENT $50,000
TACKLE FOOTBALL ACCIDENT PLAN $25,000 $50,000 $75,000 Maximum per Sickness
FULL-TIME (24/7) ACCIDENT PLAN $50,000 $100,000 $150,000 $200,000
SCHOOL-TIME ACCIDENT PLAN $25,000 $50,000 $75,000 Maximum per Accident
Deductible - per condition $250 $100 $50 $50
COVERED EXPENSES BENEFIT MAXIMUMS BENEFIT MAXIMUMS

Hospital Room & Board (Semi-Private Room Rate) 80% 80% 90% 80%
Inpatient Hospital Miscellaneous Charges 80% to $2,000/Day 80% to $2,500/Day | 90% to $3,000/Day 80% to $4,000
Intensive Care Unit 80% to $2,000/Day 80% to $2,500/Day | 90% to $3,000/Day 80%
Hospital Emergency Room

(room & supplies) incurred within 72 hours of an injury 80% 80% 90% 80%

Qutpatient Surgical
(room & supplies)

Doctor Non-Surgical Treatment and Examination

(excluding physical therapy); including

Consultation (when referred by attending doctor)

Surgeon Services

Assistant Surgeon Services

Anesthesiologist Services

Physiotherapy (includes related office visits)
When prescribed by a doctor

X-Ray Examinations (includes reading)

Diagnostic Imaging -

Ambulance (from site of an emergency directly to the hospital)
Lahoratory Procedures, Registered Nurse Services,

MRI, Cat Scan

and Rehabilitative Braces
Durable Medical Equipment

Out-Patient Prescription Drugs (for injuries only)
Dental Services (including dental x-rays) for treatment due

to a covered accident

Eyeglass Replacement (for replacement of broken eyeglass
frames or lenses resulting from a covered accident

requiring medical treatment)
Medical Evacuation & Repatriation

80% to $2,000

80%
80%
80%
80%

80% to $400
80% to $400
80%
80%

80%
80% to $400
80%
80%

$300
$0

80% to $2,500

80%
80%
80%
80%

80% to $750
80% to $750
80%
80%

80%
80% to $750
80%
80%

$300
$0

90% to $5,000

90%
90%
90%
90%

90% to $1,000
90% to $1,000
90%

90%

90%

90% to $1,000
90%
90%

$300
$0

80% to $4,000

80%
80%
80%
80%

80% to $2,000
80%
80%
80%

80%
80% to $1,000

80%

80%

80%
100% to $10,000




The Scheduled Benefit Package

(applies to all voluntary plans except the Dental Accident Plan)

We will pay benefits only for covered Injuries sustained or covered Sicknesses while insured under this School Year's plan. Benefits
payable will be based on the Usual, Customary and Reasonable Charges incurred for covered medical and dental services, as defined
by the Policy, subject to exclusions, requirements and limitations. We do not pay for a service or supply unless it is Medically
Necessary and listed in the Description of Benefits, below. Applicable benefits mandated by Oregon are included as covered expenses.
Parents may take their child to any provider they choose.

PERCENTAGES SHOWN BELOW ARE PERCENTAGES OF USUAL, CUSTOMARY AND REASONABLE CHARGES.

STUDENT ACCIDENT &

COVERED BENEFITS LEVELS LOW OPTION MID OPTION HIGH OPTION SICKNESS PLAN
Plan Name MAXIMUMS PER ACCIDENT $50,000
TACKLE FOOTBALL ACCIDENT PLAN $25,000 $50,000 $50,000 Maximum per Sickness
FULL-TIME (24/7) ACCIDENT PLAN $50,000 $100,000 $150,000 $200,000
SCHOOL-TIME ACCIDENT PLAN $25,000 $50,000 $50,000 Maximum per Accident
Deductible - per Covered Accident/Sickness $0 $0 $0 $50/$500*
COVERED EXPENSES BENEFIT MAXIMUMS BENEFIT MAXIMUMS

Hospital Room & Board - Paid up to 60% 80% 100% 80% Semi Private Room Rate
Inpatient Hospital Miscellaneous Charges $600/Day $900/Day $1,600/Day 80% to $4,000/Day
Intensive Care Unit $1,500/Day $1,800/Day $2,500/Day 80%
Hospital Emergency Room

(room & supplies) incurred within 72 hours of an injury 60% 80% 100% 80%
Outpatient Surgical

(room & supplies) $600 $900 $1,500 80% to $4,000
Doctor Non-Surgical Treatment and Examination

(excluding physical therapy):

First Visit $40 $50 $75 80%

Each Follow Up Visit $25 $35 $45 80%

Consultation (when referred by attending doctor) $150 $200 $250 80%
Surgeon Services 50% to $12,000 70% to $12,000 90% to $12,000 80%
Assistant Surgeon Services | ... 25% of Surgical Allowance. . ........... 80%
Anesthesiologist Services | ... 25% of Surgical Allowance. . ........... 80%

Physiotherapy (includes related office visits)

When prescribed by a doctor $30/Visit to $500 $45/Visit to $600 $55/Visit to $700 80% to $2,000
X-Ray Examinations (includes reading) 60% to $500 70% to $500 90% to $500 80%
Diagnostic Imaging MRI, Cat Scan 80% to $500 80% to $700 80% to $1,000 80%
Ambulance (from site of covered loss directly to hospital) 60% 80% 100% 80%
Laboratory Procedures, Registered Nurse Services,

and Rehabilitative Braces 60% 80% 100% 80%
Durable Medical Equipment 60% to $300 80% to $500 100% to $700 80% to $1,000
Out-Patient Prescription Drugs (for injuries only) 60% 80% 100% 80%

Dental Services (including dental x-rays) for treatment due
to a covered accident 60% 80% 90% 80%

Eyeglass Replacement (for replacement of broken eyeglass
frames or lenses resulting from a covered accident
requiring medical treatment) $300 $300 $300 80%

Medical Evacuation & Repatriation $0 $0 $0 100% to $10,000




The following coverages are offered in conjunction with the voluntary participation student accident and sickness
insurance program. They are intended to provide additional protection to students in the district and help facilitate
district compliance of Education Code requirements (where required by law). Premium for these coverages will be
waived in consideration of the districts diligent efforts to provide voluntary Student Accident Coverage materials to
the parent/quardian of every student in the district and maintenance of a proper system of signed waiver/proof of
insurance (where required by law).

NOTE: To receive these coverages, please complete the Limited Activities Agreement attached to the
application.

Interscholastic Sports Oversight Coverage

Covers injuries to interscholastic athletes who: 1) did not purchase student accident insurance because district personnel
inadvertently failed to offer student accident insurance plans to the injured athlete as required by Education Code (where
applicable), 2) did not file a Waiver of Student Insurance, and 3) participated in interscholastic athletics without any
insurance coverage. Benefits are paid at 100% of Usual, Customary and Reasonable charges up to a maximum of $1,500
per Accident.

Non-Competing Participants Coverage

Covers injuries occurring while traveling in a School Vehicle to and from athletic events for which they have been selected
by the School to directly assist in the noncompetitive activities associated with the events, e.g., members of school bands,
cheerleaders, pompom girls and team managers. Benefits are paid at 100% of Usual, Customary and Reasonable charges up to
a maximum of $1,500 per Accident.

One-Day Field Trip Coverage

Covers injuries which occur while your students are attending or participating in School-sponsored one-day field trips which
are under the direct and immediate supervision of the School.

Benefits are paid at 100% of Usual, Customary and Reasonable charges up to a maximum of $1,500 per Accident.
Students attending or participating in interscholastic athletic events are not covered under this plan.

Blanket Accidental Death Coverage

Provides a $2,500 accidental death benefit for all of your students and district employees for loss resulting from covered
injuries occurring while attending School or participating in School Activities during the regular School Year, including all
sports and while being transported in a School vehicle.

Felonious Assault (Counseling Benefit) Coverage

Provides up to a $1,500 psychiatric or psychological counseling benefit for all of your students for counseling required after

a felonious assault. Benefits are provided for any student whose injury occurs during the regular School Year while: traveling
directly to or from School; participating in a School-sponsored and supervised activity; or on the School's premises. A felonious
assault is an act of violence directed against a student, which results in a bodily Injury for which a student requires and seeks
medical Treatment, and the School files a written report with the police within 24 hours of the assault. Benefits are paid at
100% of Usual, Customary and Reasonable charges.




OPTIONAL COVERAGES

The following Blanket (100% participation required) coverages are available for District/School
purchase. You may call our office for applicable coverage enrollment forms.

School-To-Work Coverage

Covers students for injuries which occur while at an approved worksite and under direct supervision, and
while traveling directly and without interruption, at the direction of the School, between School and the
worksite and between the worksite and home.

Benefits:  100% Usual, Customary and Maximum per Injury $25,000
Reasonable charges for covered expenses
Rate: $6.00 per participant Minimum premium required: $250

Short-Term 24-Hour Coverage

Both the frequency and severity of injuries tend to increase when students are not directly
supervised. Covers students round-the-clock when participating in School-sponsored, but not
necessarily directly supervised activities, such as: ski trips, camping, overnight, amusement parks,
etc.

Adult chaperones may be added at the same rate.

Benefits: 100% Usual, Customary and Maximum per Injury: $25,000
Reasonable charges for covered as underwritten by ACE American Insurance Co.
expenses Additional catastrophic benefits of up to

$1,000,000 excess medical and up to $500,000

cash benefit as underwritten by ACE American

Insurance Company*.

Maximum per emergency sickness: $500
Rate: $1.65 per person per day Minimum premium required: $35

NOTE: Includes Benefits for Emergency Sickness, Remains Repatriation and Medical Evacuation!
* Refer to separate enrollment form for further details.

Interscholastic Tackle Foothall Tryout Coverage

Covers all students trying out for interscholastic high school tackle football, including non-contact
spring football practice and/or while traveling in a School Vehicle to and from football practice.

Benefits: 100% Usual, Customary and Maximum per Injury: $1,500
Reasonable charges for covered expenses
Rate: $6.00 per person per coverage term Minimum premium required: $50
Powder Puff Foothall Coverage | _
Covers students participating in Powder Puff Football activities. Coverage provides for up to two weeks of q O ,U
practice and one game. \ Ay
Benefits: 100% Usual, Customary and Maximum per Injury: $1,500 5
Reasonable charges for covered expenses a
Rate: $10.00 per participant Minimum premium required: $50 A

Elementary Competitor's Team Coverage l

Covers students for injuries which occur during elementary level after-school team sports while participating
in School-sponsored and School-supervised interscholastic athletics. Coverage is provided for after-school
sports practice, sports contests, and travel in School-provided and operated vehicles to and from sports
practice and contests.

Benefits: 100% Usual, Customary and Maximum per Injury: $1,500
Reasonable charges for covered expenses
Rate: $5.00 times estimated number Minimum premium required: $200

of participants in grades K-8




11

“Voluntary" Plans

We consider ourselves to be in a partnership with your district and want to help you meet your student insurance needs by
decreasing the number of uninsured injuries to your students.

We will provide your schools with brochures/enrollment forms detailing many options. Every parent of every enrolled student
must receive an enrollment form on or before the start of the School Year for optimal results.

We take pride in delivering your materials in an efficient and timely manner and offer the following services:
e Convenient packaging by school site - our boxes are clearly labeled as Accident & Sickness materials

e Choose the enrollment form that is best for your schools and parents (described below)

e Materials are delivered when and where you indicate - individual sites, district office or district warehouse

® Real-time tracking - instant confirmation of shipment status including date, delivery address and signature verification
Our materials include enrollment envelopes, instruction forms, listing sheets, postage-paid envelopes and claim forms.

Enroliment Forms

® “Mail-Back” enrollment forms: These forms instruct the parent to mail their enrollment form directly to our Mission Viejo
office. Students’ coverage will become effective at 11:59 p.m. on the date the enrollment form and premium are received in
our office.

® Spanish language enrollment forms: These forms are available as needed in the “Mail-Back” format.

Enroliment Instructions

Enclosed you will find your Order Form for the Student Accident and Sickness Insurance program. Please review the
pre-printed information and make any necessary changes.

1.Please make sure your district name, address, phone and other information is correct.

2.Indicate your estimated enrollment for the 2012-2013 School Year and the dates when School begins and ends for next
year. Should your district have year-round schools please indicate accordingly.

3.Important: please indicate your choice of package type (Network Benefit Package or Scheduled Benefit).

4. Answer all “yes” and “no” questions. Note: If your high schools participate in interscholastic tackle football, your Order
Form must be received prior to “Spring Training” to ensure a timely delivery of your materials.

5.S5ign and date.
6. Please complete or update each supply order form where necessary, and provide a requested ship date to receive materials.
7.Complete the Limited Activities Agreement. Please read the statement on the Agreement carefully, sign and date.

Your completed Order Form may be faxed to (949) 348-2630, mailed to our office or emailed to yestrada@myers-stevens.com.

Avoid misdirected mail and supplies by instructing your School personnel to destroy all “old” enrollment forms
relating to the 2011-2012 School Year before they have received their new shipment of supplies for the 2012-2013
School Year.

Need help completing your form? Call our Marketing Department at 800-827-4695 *612.




EXCLUSIONS

Benefits are not payable for any of the following or loss that results from them:

1. Damage to or loss of dentures or bridges or damage to existing orthodontic equipment.

2. War or any act of war, whether declared or not.

3. Participation in a riot or insurrection; fighting or brawling, except in self-defense; commission of or attempt to commit a felony; violating
or attempting to violate any duly enacted law.

4. Suicide, attempted suicide or intentionally self-inflicted injury.

5. Injury contributed to by the use of alcohol or drugs unless taken in the dosage and for the purpose

prescribed by the Covered Person’s doctor. (This is an exclusion under the Accident-Only plans.)

Injury caused by, attributed to or resulting from the Insured's being legally intoxicated as defined by

the laws of the state in which the Accident occurs or use of illegal drugs, or any drugs or medicines

that are not taken in the dosage or for the purpose prescribed by the Insured’s doctor. (This is an
exclusion under the Student Accident & Sickness Plan.)

7. Practice or play in interscholastic high school tackle football (unless separate football coverage is
purchased), intercollegiate sports, semi-professional sports, or professional sports. (Does not apply
to the Dental Accident Plan.E

8. %)njur covered by Worker's Compensation or Employer's Liability Laws, or similar occupational

enefits.

9. Treatment, services or supplies provided by the School's infirmary or its employees, or doctors who .
work for the School, or by any member of the Covered Person’s immediate family; Covered medical -
expenses for which the Insured would not be responsible for in the absence of tﬁis Policy. Any exclusion of benefits for expenses which the
Insured is not legally required to pay does not apply to charges made by a Hospital owned or operated by the State of Oregon.

10. Mental or nervous disorders (This is an exclusion under the Accident-Only plans.)

11. Sickness, disease, bodily or mental infirmity, bacterial or viral infection or medical or viral infection or medical or surgical treatment thereof,
except for any bacterial infection resulting from an accidental external cut or wound or accidental ingestion of contaminated food.

12. The diagnosis and Treatment of non-malignant warts, moles and lesions, acne or allergies, including allergy testing. (This is an exclusion
under the Student Accident & Sickness Plan.)

13. Injury sustained as a result of riding in or on, entering or alighting from, a two or three-wheeled Motor Vehicle. (Applicable to Student
Accident & Sickness Plan.)

14, Treatment of detached retina (unless directly caused by an Injury), osteomyelitis, or pathological fractures or hernia. (This is an exclusion
under the Accident-Only plans.

15. Treatment of congenital weakness. (Applicable to Accident-Only Plan)

16. Applicable to Accident-Only Plans - Expenses payable by any automobile insurance policy without regard to fault.

17. Benefits are not payable under the Student Accident & Sickness Plan for a condition that is a “Pre-existing Condition” (a condition for which
the Covered Person received medical treatment, care or advice within 6 consecutive months before being insured under the Policy.) But, this
exclusion does not apply after the Covered Person had been insured under the Policy for 6 consecutive months. A new six-month pre-existing
condition limitation will not be imposed in subsequent School Years after the first, unless there is a separation of a period of more than one
school term or semester break.

(@)

This insurance does not apply to the extent that trade or economic sanctions or regulations prohibit Us from providing insurance, including but
not limited to, the payment of claims.

Requirements & Limitations under Accident-only Plans

Applicable to Accident-Only Plans: Aggravations of Injuries which did not occur while insured under this plan are paid up to $500 maximum benefit
per policy term. Injuries sustained as a result of riding in or on, entering or alighting from or being struck by a Motor Vehicle are limited to a
$5,000 maximum benefit (up to $10,000 if vehicle is a School Vehicle). Some Motor Vehicle injuries are not covered - see Exclusions above for
details. School-Time and Interscholastic High School Tackle Football injuries must be reported to the School within 72 hours of the date of injury.
The first doctor’s visit must be within 120 days after the accident or sickness. A claim form must be filed with Myers-Stevens & Toohey & Co.,
Inc. within 90 days after the date of loss or as soon as reasonably possible. The plan pays for covered expenses incurred within a year from the
date of the first doctor’s visit. However, should the injury sustained require the removal of surgical pins, continued treatment for serious burns,
or treatment of a non-union or mal-union fracture, the benefit period will be extended to 104 weeks. Each covered condition may be subject to
a deductible - see plan details.

Facility of Payment (applicable only to Accident-Only Plans{:
Whenever payments that should have been made under the Policy are made by any other policy, the Company reserves the right, to pay over to
any plan making such other payments, any amounts the Company determines are warranted in order to satisfy the intent of this provision. The
amounts paid are considered benefits paid under the Policy and, to the extent of such payments, the Company shall be fully discharged from
liability under the Policy. In no event will the Company pay more than the benefits payable under the Policy for all policies providing the same
or similar benefits issued to the Policyholder and underwritten by the Company.

Excess Provision (applicable only to Accident-Only Plans):

In order to keep premiums as affordable as possible, these plans pay benefits on a non-duplicating basis. This means, if a person sustains a loss
covered under these plans that is covered under any other valid and collectable insurance or health agreement, any amount payable or provided
by the other coverage will be subtracted from the covered expenses, and we will pay benefits based on the remaining amount.

Important Notice

This brochure contains a brief description of the benefits available under the insurance programs. It is not a contract of insurance. The terms
and conditions of coverage are set forth in the policies delivered in the state under form numbers AH-11648a and AH-29600. Complete details
may be found in the policies.

12




Plans arranged and administered by:

Myers-Stevens & Toohey & Co., Inc.
CA License #0425842
www.myers-stevens.com

myers | stevens | toohey

All plans underwiritten by:

2012 Best rated A+ (Superior)
(A.M. Best Rating ranges from A++ to D)
® This rating is an indication of the company’s
ACE American Insurance Company finz?ncial strength and ability to meet obligations to
436 Walnut St., Philadelphia, PA 19106 its insureds.

Mission Viejo Roseville

26101 Marguerite Parkway 212 Judah Street

Mission Viejo, CA 92692 Roseville, CA 95678

(800) 827-4695 (800) 827-4695
myers | stevens | toohey Fax (949) 348-2630 Fax (916) 772-0697

www.myers-stevens.com



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Athena Vadnais
DATE: July 12, 2012
RE: No. 7 - District Advisory Council (DAC) Report
EXPLANATION: The last DAC meeting of the fiscal year was held on May 10, 2012,

PRESENTER:
SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:
RECOMMENDATION:
REQUESTED ACTION:

e

and a report was presented at the June board meeting. For this
reason, there will not be a DAC report this evening.

In preparation for the new school year, the board will be
presented with a list of proposed 2012-13 DAC meeting dates and
locations, and given an opportunity to select which meetings they
wish to attend as board representatives.

Note: A list of topics for 2012-13 DAC meetings is being
developed, and board members will receive an update upon
completion.

Athena Vadnais

A proposed list of 2012-13 DAC meetings will be presented at the
board meeting.

This summary is being provided as information only.

No action is required.



Gresham-Barlow School District
2012-13 DAC Meetings

DAC meetings begin at 7 p.m. (except the May meeting which starts at 6:30 p.m.)

Location

Board Representation

West Gresham

School Board Meet-n-Greet

13 Sept. 2012 Elementary School ALL

15 Nov. 2012 ng Barlow Achievement Compact
High School

17 Jan. 2013 EIemgr?gr(;/alsechool TBD

21 Feb. 2013 Middle Schoo TBD

14 Mar. 2013 eSS TBD

11 Apr. 2013 Elem:i'lgtg:;nsdchool TBD

9 May 2013 Kelly Creek ALL End-of-Year BBQ

Elementary School

Planning for Next School Year

* Topics are subject to change

:Ilc 06/26/2012




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Athena Vadnais
DATE: July 12, 2012
RE: No. 8 — Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation Update
EXPLANATION: Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation updates are typically

presented every-other month, with the exception of June, July and
August. Accordingly, there will not be a Foundation report this
evening.

The next Foundation report will be presented in September. In
the interim, the following dates for upcoming Foundation events
may be of interest to board members:

Summer Social (6 p.m.)
____________ “Scramble 4 Students” Golf Tournament (10 a.m.)
02/25-28/12____ Phone-a-Thon

TBD Bagels & Books

More information will be provided as the dates draw nearer.

PRESENTER: Athena Vadnais

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: None

RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only.
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

e



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM.: Jim Schlachter

DATE: July 12, 2012

RE: No. 9 - Election of Board Chair and Vice-Chair

EXPLANATION: Board policy requires the election of the board chair and vice-chair
at the first meeting of the school year.

PRESENTER: Jim Schlachter

SUPPLEMENTARY None

MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the board elect a chair and

vice-chair for the 2012-13 fiscal year.

REQUESTED ACTION: Open nominations and elect from the nominees a chair and
vice-chair for 2012-13.

:lc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway

Gresham, Oregon 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Jerry Jones
DATE: July 12, 2012
RE: No. 10 - Annual Procedural Business Resolutions
EXPLANATION: The resolutions listed below represent the routine beginning of

PRESENTERS:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

the year board designations which allows the district to transact
its normal business activities. To comply with the requirements of
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) and other regulations, the Board
of Directors for the Gresham-Barlow School District shall appoint
a school district clerk, deputy clerk, and budget officer; designate
a custodian of school funds; appoint a financial auditor, designate
such bank or banks within the county or counties in which the
district is located, as the board deems safe and proper depositories
for school district funds; designate district officials authorized to
apply for and accept Federal, State and other grants; designate
newspaper of record; appoint agent of record for insurance
policies both liability and workers’ compensation; appoint TSA
(tax sheltered annuity) and Deferred Compensation Compliance
agent; and direct superintendent and chief financial officer to
designate ending fund balances in accordance with GASB 54
requirements.

Jim Schlachter / Jerry Jones

None

The administration recommends the Board of Directors take
action to approve the designations listed below for the 2012-13
fiscal year.

Move to approve by one motion the following resolutions for
fiscal year 2012-13:

BE IT RESOLVED that Jim Schlachter, Superintendent, is hereby
appointed to serve as Clerk of Gresham-Barlow School District for
fiscal year 2012-13, and that Jerry Jones, Chief Financial Officer, is
hereby appointed as Deputy Clerk for the fiscal year 2012-13.



Board of Directors

Re: No. 10 — Annual Procedural Business

July 12, 2012
Page 2

BE IT RESOLVED that Jerry Jones, Chief Financial Officer, is
hereby designated the Budget Officer for the fiscal year 2012-13.

BE IT RESOLVED that, in accordance with the provisions of
ORS 328.441, the school board designates Jim Schlachter,
superintendent; and Jerry Jones, chief financial officer as
custodian of funds for the 2012-13 fiscal year. BE IT FURTHER
RESOLVED that, in accordance with the provisions of
ORS 328.441, school district obligations may be paid by check
bearing the original signature or any custodian of funds or the
custodian’s facsimile signature. Alternatively, school district
obligations may be paid by bank wire transfer.

BE IT RESOLVED that Pauly Rogers and Co. P.C., be and hereby
are appointed to serve as financial auditors of Gresham-Barlow
School District for the fiscal year 2012-13.

BE IT RESOLVED the following attorneys are hereby designated
as legal counsel for the 2012-13 fiscal year:

Firm Service
The Hungerford Law Firm_______
Ball Janik LLP_____ Construction _Real Estate

Hawkins Delafield & Wood Bond Counsel

Mersereau & Shannon LLP Labor, Education & Employment

Garrett Hemann Robertson Special Education

BE IT RESOLVED that US Bank, Bank of America, Clackamas
County Bank, Key Bank, Merchants Bank, On Point Credit Union,
Umpqua Bank, West Coast Bank, Wells Fargo, Seattle Northwest,
State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool and Piper
Jaffray (or their successor banks) are hereby designated as
depositories for the fiscal year 2012-13.

BE IT RESOLVED the board of directors hereby directs the
superintendent and the chief financial officer to designate 2011-12
ending fund balances in accordance with GASB 54 requirements.

BE IT RESOLVED the board of directors hereby approve the
following designations:



Board of Directors

Re: No. 10 — Annual Procedural Business

July 12, 2012
Page 3

:lc

Service Designee

Newspaper of Record . .. .. The Gresham Outlook
Insurance Agent____ Beecher Carlson Insurance
Workers” Comp Agent .. LaPorte

Vol. Student Accident Ins. Myers, Steven, Toohey & Co.
Tax Sheltered Annuity____ . Carruth Compliance Consulting

Deferred Compensation Carruth Compliance Consulting

BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Directors authorizes the
Superintendent and Chief Financial Officer to enter into contracts
obligating district funds for products, materials, supplies and
services that are in the current budget appropriations in
accordance with District Policy DJA — District Purchasing.

AND, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Directors designates the
Superintendent and Chief Financial Officer as Officials for
Federal, State and other grants.



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Matt O’Connell

DATE: July 12, 2012

RE: No. 11 - Evaluation of the Superintendent

EXPLANATION: Board policy states that the position of superintendent is designed

PRESENTER:
SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

e

to provide for the effective administration of all schools and
departments as well as educational leadership throughout the
school system and community. The policy refers to a set of seven
standards of performance for which the superintendent is
responsible.

At least annually, the board evaluates the superintendent in
relation to these standards of performance. In May of this year,
the process for evaluating the superintendent of the Gresham-
Barlow School District, began. That process will culminate this
evening when the board publicly presents its findings relative to
the superintendent’s performance.

Matt O’Connell

A summary of the board's evaluation of the superintendent will
be distributed at the board meeting.

The chair recommends the board publicly review the evaluation
of the superintendent.

Move to approve the summary of the superintendent's evaluation
as presented.



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Jerry Jones

DATE: July 12, 2012

RE: No. 12 - Open

EXPLANATION:

PRESENTER:

Meadow Alternative School Contract

In May 2009, Gresham High School was awarded a 21* Century
Community Learning Center Grant by the Oregon Department of
Education. This grant supports a range of community school
programs, including Step Up.

Under the direction of Hanif Fazal, the Open Meadow Step Up
program focuses on students at very high risk of dropping out of
school. The Step Up program provides an array of transition
services that help students move smoothly from middle school to
high school. In its third year at Gresham High School, this
program has proven to be of significant benefit to the 120
freshman students and their parents who have participated in
tutoring, mentoring, leadership development, and a summer
enrichment program. The students receive year-long mentoring
and academic support. Through the after-school program,
students will have the opportunity to take credit retrieval classes
in math, science, social studies and language arts or meet with
tutors. Students can learn life skills such as financial literacy,
social skills and college readiness.

The current contract with Open Meadow expired June 30, 2012,
and needs to be renewed through June 30, 2014, which is also the
end of the original 21" Century Community Learning Center
Five-Year Grant.

The board is asked to authorize the superintendent or his designee
to enter into a continuing contract with Open Meadow Alternative
Schools in the amount of $188,899 each year for two school years
for services rendered through June 30, 2014.

Jerry Jones



Board of Directors

Re: No. 12 - Open Meadow Alternative School Contract

July 12, 2012
Page 2

SUPPLEMENTARY:
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

R

Personal /Professional Services Contract between Gresham-
Barlow School District and Open Meadow Alternative Schools,
Inc.

The administration recommends board approval of the 2012-14
Open Meadow contract as presented.

Move to approve the Personal/Professional Services Contract
between Gresham-Barlow School District and Open Meadow
Alternative Schools, Inc.,, for services associated with the
21* Century Community Learning Center grant as presented.



PERSONAL /| PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
between

Gresham-Barlow School District
and
Open Meadow Alternative Schools, Inc.

THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE BINDING ON THE DISTRICT ONLY IF IT IS SIGNED BY THE SUPERINTENDENT
OR AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE

This Personal/Professional Services Contract ("Contract") is made by and between Gresham-Barlow School District No.
10Jt, ("District") and Open Meadow Alternative Schools, Inc. ("Contractor"). The parties agree as follows:

CONTRACTOR DATA

Contractor attests that it is an independent contractor solely responsible for the work performed under this
Contract. Contractor, its subcontractors, employees, and agents shall not be deemed employees of the District.
Contractor shall be responsible for all federal, state, and local taxes and any and all fees applicable to payments
for services under this Contract.

Full Business Name: Open Meadow Alternative Schools, Inc
Address: 7621 N Wabash

City, State, ZIP: Portland, OR 97217

Business Telephone: 503-978-1935

Facsimile: 503-978-1989

Email: _financeuser@openmeadow.org

Federal Tax Identification Number ("TIN"): 93-0757378

Payment information will be reported to the Internal Revenue Service under the name and TIN provided above by
Contractor.

Contractor certifies under penalty of perjury that Contractor is a corporation.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Detailed Description of Services/Statement of Work. Provide 40 students at Gresham High School
with personalized academic support as defined in Exhibit 1 attached to this agreement and made a part herein.

2. Term and Termination. This Contract becomes effective on July 1, 2012. Unless earlier terminated as
provided below, this Contract shall continue through June 30, 2014.

3. Maximum Total Payment Per School Year; Payment Method. No payment shall be made until this Contract is
fully executed by the authorized representatives of both parties. Upon work completion and acceptance, invoice
approval, and according to this Contract's Terms and Conditions, District shall pay Contractor a maximum total
payment for the 2012-2013 school year, including all expenses whatsoever, of One Hundred Forty-One Six
Hundred Seventy-Four Dollars ($141,674.00) for services rendered by Contractor. Contractor will invoice District
monthly to the attention of April Olson at olson29@gresham.k12.or.us. District shall pay invoices within 30 days
upon work completion, work acceptance, and invoice approval. It is anticipated that the maximum total
payment for the fifth and final year of this agreement, i.e. school year 2013-2014, will be less than the 2012-
2013 amount, as it will be the remaining funds available in the grant.

District shall pay Contractor as follows: Contractor will invoice the District monthly in twelve (12) equal installments
during the 2012-2013 contract year of Eleven Thousand Eight Hundred Six Dollars and seventeen cents
($11,806.17) per month. Daily and monthly attendance data will be available for review throughout the duration of
the program. Quarterly attendance and progress reports will accompany respective invoices.

Reimbursable Expenses shall not be allowed under this Contract.

4. Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Contract.

GBSD and Open Meadow Alternative Schools 2012-14
Page 1 of 10



10.

11.

12.

13.

Contract Documents. This Contract consists of those Terms and Conditions herein only.

Independent Contractor Status. Both parties understand and agree that this Contract is not intended and shall
not be construed to create an employment relationship between District and Contractor, its officers, employees,
or agents. At all times under this Contract, Contractor and District are acting and performing as independent
contractors.

Subcontracts and Assignment. Contractor may not subcontract, assign, or transfer any of its duties its
interests or duties, under this Contract without the prior written consent of District. District may withhold such
consent for any or no reason. If District consents to an assignment or subcontract, then in addition to any
other provisions of this Contract, Contractor shall require any permitted subcontractor to be bound by all
the terms and conditions of this Contract that would otherwise bind Contractor. The parties agree that any
such subcontracts shall be construed as matters solely between the Contractor and its subcontractor and shall
have no binding effect on District.

Successors in Interest. This Contract shall bind, and inure to the benefit of, the parties, their successors,
and approved assigns, if any.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. District and Contractor are the only parties to this Contract and are the only
parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Contract provides any benefit or right, directly or
indirectly, to third persons unless they are individually Identified by name in this Contract and
expressly described as intended beneficiaries of this Contract.

Other Contractors. District reserves the right to enter into other agreements for work additional or related
to the subject matter of this Contract, and Contractor agrees to cooperate fully with these other contractors
and with the District. When requested by District, Contractor shall coordinate its performance under this Contract
with such additional or related work. Contractor must not interfere with the work performance of any other
contractor or District employees.

Nonperformance. As used in this Contract, "failure to perform" means failure, for whatever reason, to deliver
goods and/or perform work as specified and scheduled in this Contract. If Contractor fails to perform under
this Contract, then District, after giving seven days' written notice and opportunity to cure to Contractor, has the
right to complete the work itself, secure the contracted goods and/or services from other contractors, or
a combination thereof, as necessary to complete the work. Both parties agree that Contractor shall bear
any reasonable cost difference, as measured against any unpaid balance due Contractor, for these substitute
goods or services.

Cost Adjustments. Both parties agree that contracted prices shall be fixed for the first 12 months of this
Contract. Contractor must submit to District any proposed cost adjustments at least 60 days before the
proposed effective date of such increases with a detailed explanation for each adjustment. District alone
reserves the right to reject any changes to this Contract it deems unacceptable.

Early Termination. This Contract may be terminated as follows unless otherwise specified herein:

a. Mutual: District and Contractor may terminate this Contract at any time by written agreement.

b. District's Sole Discretion: District in its sole discretion may terminate this Contract for any reason on 30
days' written notice to Contractor.

c. Breach: Either party may terminate this Contract in the event of a breach by the other party. To be
effective, the party seeking termination must give to the other party written notice of the breach and its
intent to terminate. If the breaching party does not entirely cure the breach within 15 days of the date
of the notice, then the non-breaching party may terminate this Contract at any time thereafter by giving a
written notice of termination.

d. Contractor Licensing, etc.: Notwithstanding Section 13(c), District may terminate this Contract
immediately by written notice to Contractor upon denial, suspension, revocation, or non-renewal of
any license, permit, or certificate that Contractor must hold to provide services under this Contract.

e. Furlough: District reserves the right to terminate or otherwise suspend this Contract if District's School
Board determines that funding is insufficient to remain open and calls for a District-wide furlough or
similar temporary District closure. Any temporary closure shall not affect amounts due Contractor under
this Contract, subject to a pro-rated adjustment for reduction in services or need for goods during the
furlough.

GBSD and Open Meadow Alternative Schools 2012-14
Page 2 of 10



14. Payment.

15.

a.

Method of Payment: Unless otherwise specified in Section 3, "Maximum Total Payment; Payment
Method," District shall pay Contractor net 30 days upon invoice approval and work acceptance.

Payment on Early Termination: Upon termination pursuant to Section 13, "Early Termination," District
shall pay Contractor as follows:

(i) If District terminates this Contract for its convenience under Section 13(a) or 13(b), then District
must pay Contractor for work performed before the termination date if and only if Contractor performed in
accordance with this Contract. District shall not be liable for any direct, indirect, or consequential
damages. Termination by District shall not constitute a waiver of any other claim District may have against
Contractor.

(i) If Contractor terminates this Contract under Section 13(c) due to District's breach, then District
shall pay Contractor for work performed before the termination date if and only if Contractor performed in
accordance with this Contract.

(iii) If District terminates this Contract under Sections 13(c) or 13(d) due to Contractor's breach, then District
must pay Contractor for work performed before the termination date less any setoff to which District is
entitled and if and only if Contractor performed such work in accordance with this Contract.

Payment of Laborers: This provision is required by statute. In addition to applicable federal and local
laws, ORS 279B.220 requires that Contractor

(i) Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to such Contractor labor or material
for the prosecution of the work provided for this contract.

(ii) Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund by the Contractor or
subcontractors, if permitted, incurred in the performance of this contract.

(iii) Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state or a county, school
district, municipality, municipal corporation or subdivision thereof, account of any labor or
material furnished [by Contractor].

(iv) Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees pursuant to ORS 316.167.

(v) If Contractor neglects or refuses to make prompt payment of any claim for labor or services furnished
to it by any party in connection with this Contract as such claim becomes due, District may pay such claim
to the party furnishing the goods or services and subtract the payment amount from funds due or to
become due the Contractor. District's payment of such a claim shall not relieve Contractor or
Contractor's surety, if any, from its obligation to any unpaid claims.

Payment for Medical Care: This provision is required by statute. As required by ORS 279B.230 and to the
extent any of Contractor's employees are covered by Oregon employment laws, Contractor shall promptly, as
due, make payment to any person, co-partnership, association, or corporation, furnishing medical, surgical
and hospital care or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the employees of
Contractor, of all sums that Contractor agrees to pay for such services and all moneys and sums that
Contractor collected or deducted from the wages of employees under any law, contract, or agreement for
the purpose of providing or paying for such service.

Non-Appropriation; Adequate Funding. District is prohibited from contracting for services for which it
has not received appropriated funds. If payment for work under this Contract extends into District's
next fiscal year, District's obligation to pay for such work shall be subject to approval of future School
Board appropriations to fund this Contract. Moreover, continuation of this Contract at specified levels is
specifically conditioned on adequate funding under the District's budget adopted in June of each year.
District reserves the right to adjust the level of services provided for in this Contract in accordance with
funding levels adopted by the School Board.

Remedies. In case of Contractor breach and in addition to the provisions of Sections 13 and 14, District
shall be entitled to any other available legal and equitable remedies. In case of District breach, Contractor's
remedy shall be limited to termination of the Contract and receipt of Contract payments to which Contractor is
entitled.

GBSD and Open Meadow Alternative Schools 2012-14
Page 3 of 10



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Hours of Labor. This provision is required by statute. As required by ORS 279B.020(5), 279B.235(3),
and 279C.540(6), for Contractor's employees subject to Oregon employment laws:

a. Maximum Hours: Employees shall be paid at least time and a half for all overtime worked in excess of 40
hours in any one week and for work performed on Saturdays, Sundays, New Year's Day (Jan. 1),
Memorial Day (last Monday in May), Independence Day (July 4), Thanksgiving Day (fourth Thursday in
November), and Christmas Day (December 25).

b. Exemption: The requirements of Section 16(a) do not apply to individuals who are excluded under ORS
53.010 to 653.261 or under 29 U.S.C. 201 to 209 from receiving overtime.

c. Notice to Employees: Contractor must give notice in writing to its employees who perform work on this
Contract, either at the time of hire or before commencement of work on this Contract, or by posting a
notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per day and days per week that the
employees may be required to work.

Time Limitation on Claim for Overtime. This provision is required by statute. For Contractor's employees
subject to Oregon employment laws and as required by ORS 279C.545, any worker employed by Contractor
shall be foreclosed from the right to collect for any overtime provided in ORS 279C.540 unless a claim for
payment is filed with Contractor within 90 days from the completion of this Contract, providing Contractor has

Posted circular: Caused a circular clearly printed in boldfaced 12-point type and containing a copy of this
section to be posted in a prominent place alongside the door of the timekeeper's office or in a similar place that is
readily available and freely visible to workers employed on the work, and

Maintaining posted circular: Maintained such circular continuously posted from the inception to the completion
of this Contract on which workers are or have been employed.

Hazardous Chemicals. Contractor shall notify District before using products containing hazardous
chemicals to which District students or employees may be exposed. Products containing hazardous
chemicals are those products as defined in OAR Ch. 437. Upon District request, Contractor must immediately
provide Materials Safety Data Sheets pursuant to OAR 437-135-025.

Errors. Contractor must perform any and all additional work necessary to correct errors in the work required
under this Contract, and Contractor must do so without undue delays and without additional cost to District.

Access to Records; Contractor Financial Records. Contractor agrees that District and its
authorized representatives are entitled to review all Contractor books, documents, papers, plans, and
records, electronic or otherwise ("Records"), directly pertinent to this Contract for the purpose of making audit,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts.

Contractor shall maintain all Records, fiscal and otherwise, directly relating to this Contract in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles so as to document clearly Contractor's performance.
Following final payment and termination of this Contract, Contractor shall retain and keep accessible all
Records for a minimum of three years, or such longer period as may be required by law, or until the
conclusion of any audit, controversy, or litigation arising out of or related to this Contract, whichever date is later.

Ownership of Work Products. Contractor agrees that any and all goods or services provided by or
developed for District are intended as "works made for hire" by Contractor for District. As a work made for
hire, all work products (including intellectual property) created by the Contractor, as part of Contractor's
performance under this Contract shall be the exclusive property of the District. If any such work products
contain Contractor's intellectual property that is or could be protected by federal copyright, patent, or trademark
laws, Contractor hereby grants District a perpetual, royalty-free, fully-paid, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license
to copy, reproduce, deliver, publish, perform, dispose of, and use or re-use, in whole or in part, and to authorize
others to do so, all such work products. District shall have no right in any pre-existing work product of
Contractor provided to District by Contractor in the performance of this Contract, except to copy, use, or re-
use any such work product for District use only.

GBSD and Open Meadow Alternative Schools 2012-14
Page 4 of 10



22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Work Performed on District Property. Contractor shall comply with the following:

a. ldentification: When performing work on District property, Contractor shall be in full uniform at all times.
Uniforms must include shirt with attached Contractor company identification. All such persons must
also carry photo identification and must present it to any District personnel upon request. If Contractor
cannot produce such identification or if the identification is unacceptable to District, District may provide at
its sole discretion, District-produced identification tags to Contractor, costs to be borne by Contractor. If
Contractor does not have a specific uniform for its employees, then Contractor shall provide identification tags
as described above and/or any other mechanism the District in its sole discretion determines is
required to easily and appropriately identify Contractors.

b. Sign-in Required: As required by schools and other District locations, each day Contractor's
employees are present on District property, those employees must sign into the location's main office to
receive an in-school identification/visitors tag. Contractor's employees must display this tag on their
person at all times while on District property.

c. No Smoking: All District properties are tobacco-free zones; Contractor is prohibited from using any
tobacco product on District property.

d No Drugs: All District properties are drug-free zones as enforced by the Portland Police Bureau.
e. No Weapons or Firearms: Except as provided by statute and District policy, all District properties are

weapons-and firearms-free zones; Contractor is prohibited from possessing on its persons or in its vehicles any
weapons or firearms while on District property.

Unsupervised Contact with Students. This provision is required by statute. "Unsupervised contact" with
students means contact that provides the person opportunity and probability for personal communication or
touch with students when not under direct District supervision. As required by ORS 326.603, Contractor shall
ensure that Contractor, any subcontractors, and their officers, employees, and agents will have no direct,
unsupervised contact with students while on District property. Contractor will work with District to ensure
compliance with this requirement. If Contractor is unable to ensure through a security plan that none of
its officers, employees, or agents or those of its subcontractors will have direct, unsupervised contact
with students in a particular circumstance or circumstances, Contractor shall notify District before beginning
any work that could result is such contact. Contractor authorizes District to obtain information about
Contractor and its history and to conduct a criminal background check, including fingerprinting, of any Contractor
officers, employees, or agents who will have unsupervised contact with students. Contractor shall cause its
employees and/or subcontractors, if any, to authorize District to conduct these background checks. Contractor
shall pay all fees assessed by Oregon Department of Education for processing the background check.
District may deduct the cost of such fees from a progress or final payment to Contractor under this Contract,
unless Contractor elects to pay such fees directly.

Confidentiality. This provision is required by statute. As required by the 20 USC 1232(g) (Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act, "FERPA"), and ORS 326.565, Contractor shall not disclose any information or
records regarding students or their families that Contractor may learn or obtain in the course and scope
of its performance of this Contract.

FERPA Re-disclosure. The parties recognize that FERPA imposes strict penalties for improper disclosure
or re-disclosure of confidential student information, including but not limited to denial of access to
personally identifiable information ("PIl") from education records for at least five years (34 CFR 99.33(e)).
Therefore, consistent with FERPA's requirements, PH obtained by Contractor in the performance of this Contract
may not be re-disclosed to third parties without the written consent of the student's parent/guardian and must be
used only for the purposes identified in this Contract.

Reporting of Child Abuse Act. Contractor agrees to comply with the Reporting of Child Abuse law (ORS
419B.005 through 419B.050) as if Contractor were a mandatory abuse reporter. In so agreeing, Contractor
shall immediately report to the proper state or law enforcement agency circumstances supporting reasonable
cause to believe that any child has been abused. Contractor shall report to the school principal or
designated school authority the circumstances supporting reasonable cause to believe that any child has
been abused.

Security. Any disclosure or removal of any District matter or property by Contractor shall be cause for
immediate termination of this Contract. Contractor shall bear sole responsibility for any liability including,
but not limited to attorneys' fees, resulting from any action or suit brought against District as a result of
Contractor's willful or negligent release of information, documents, or property contained in or on District

GBSD and Open Meadow Alternative Schools 2012-14
Page 5 of 10



28.

29.

30.

31.

property. District hereby deems all information, documents, and property contained in or on District property
privileged and confidential.

Employee Removal. At District's request, Contractor will immediately remove any Contractor employee
from all District properties in cases where the District determines, in its sole discretion, that removal of that
employee is in the District's best interests.

Compliance with Applicable Law. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to
public contracts, to the work done under this Contract, and with all regulations and administrative rules
established pursuant to those laws.

Indemnification. Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless ("Indemnification") District, its
officers, directors, employees, and agents from and against all liabilities, losses, expenses, claims,
actions, or judgments (including attorneys' fees) recovered or made against District for any damage, injury,
or death to persons or damage to property caused by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Contractor,
its officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors related to Contractor's performance under this Contract.
Contractor's Indemnification extends to conditions created by this Contract or based upon violation of any
statute, ordinance, or regulation. This provision is in addition to any common law or statutory liability and
indemnification rights available to District. Contractor's Indemnification of District shall not apply to
damage, injury, or death caused by the negligent actions of District, its officers, directors, employees, or
agents. District must promptly notify Contractor in writing of any such claim or demand to indemnify and
shall cooperate with Contractor in a reasonable manner to defend such claim.

Insurance. At all times while providing services under this Contract, Contractor shall maintain in force at
Contractor's expense insurance coverage at least equal to the value of this Contract and the following insurance
coverage(s), as applicable:

a. Workers' Compensation. As required by ORS 656.017, subject employers shall provide workers' compensation
coverage in accordance with ORS Chapter 656 for all subject workers. Contractor and all subcontractors of
Contractor with one or more employees shall have this insurance unless exempt under ORS 656.027.
Contractors that are statutory subject employers shall submit a certificate of insurance to District showing proof
of coverage.

b. Professional Liability / Errors & Omissions (E&O). If Contractor is providing services that require a state license
(including, but not limited to, accounting, architectural, auditing, dental, legal, medical, and psychiatric), then
Contractor shall maintain professional liability / E&O insurance coverage of at least $1,000,000 for each claim,
incident, or occurrence, and at least $2,000,000 annual aggregate coverage. This policy shall provide
extended reporting period coverage for claims made within two years after this Contract is completed or
otherwise terminated according to its terms.

c. General Liability.
If Contractor is providing (i) professional development or training, (ii) facilitation, (iii) writing or evaluation, or (iv)
speaking or musical services, then District expects Contractor to have general liability insurance coverage in
place sufficient to cover events adverse to the objectives of this Contract.

If Contractor is providing (i) student tutoring services, or (ii) professional consultation services, AND this
Contract is for LESS THAN $5,000 (as shown in Section 3, "Maximum Total Payment; Payment Method"), then
Contractor shall maintain general liability insurance coverage of at least $250,000 for each claim, incident, or
occurrence, and at least $500,000 annual aggregate coverage.

If Contractor is providing (i) student tutoring services, or (ii) professional consultation services, AND this
Contract is for MORE THAN $5,000 (as shown in Section 3, "Maximum Total Payment; Payment Method"),
then Contractor shall maintain general liability insurance coverage of at least $1,000,000 for each claim,
incident, or occurrence, and at least $2,000,000 annual aggregate coverage.

If Contractor is providing theater or performing arts preparation or training AND this Contract is for LESS
THAN $5,000 (as shown in Section 3, "Maximum Total Payment; Payment Method"), then Contractor
shall maintain general liability insurance coverage of at least $250,000 for each claim, incident, or
occurrence, and at least $500,000 annual aggregate coverage.

If Contractor is providing theater or performing arts preparation or training AND this Contract is for MORE
THAN $5,000 (as shown in Section 3, "Maximum Total Payment; Payment Method"), then Contractor

GBSD and Open Meadow Alternative Schools 2012-14
Page 6 of 10



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

shall maintain general liability insurance coverage of at least $1,000,000 for each claim, incident, or
occurrence, and at least $2,000,000 annual aggregate coverage.

If Contractor is providing services that require a state license (including, but not limited to,
accounting, architectural, auditing, dental, legal, medical, and psychiatric), then Contractor shall
maintain general liability insurance coverage of at least $1,000,000 for each claim, incident, or occurrence,
and at least $2,000,000 annual aggregate coverage.

If Contractor is providing services other than (i) student tutoring, (ii) consultation/facilitation; (iii)
theater or performing arts preparation or training; or (iv) those services that require a state license
(including, but not limited to, accounting, architectural, auditing, dental, legal, medical, and psychiatric),
then Contractor shall maintain general liability insurance coverage of at least $1,000,000 for each claim,
incident, or occurrence, and at least $2,000,000 annual aggregate coverage.

d. Motor Vehicle Liability. If Contractor is providing services that require Contractor to transport District
personnel, students, or property, then in addition to any legally required insurance coverage, Contractor
shall maintain motor vehicle liability insurance of at least $1,000,000 for each claim, incident, or occurrence.

e. Additional Requirements. All insurance coverage shall be provided by an insurance company having an
A.M. Best rating of at least A- and/or licensed to do business in Oregon. Contractor alone is responsible for
paying all deductibles and retentions. A cross-liability clause or separation of insureds condition shall be
included in all general liability policies required by this Contract. Contractor's coverage shall be primary in the
event of loss.

f. Certificate of Insurance. Upon District request, Contractor shall furnish to District a current certificate of
insurance for each of the above coverages within 48 hours of District request. Each certificate must
provide that there shall be no cancellation, termination, material change, or reduction of limits of the
insurance coverage without 30 days prior written notice from Contractor or its insurer to District.
Each certificate shall also state the relevant deductible or retention level. For general liability
coverage, the certificate shall also provide that District, its agents, officers, and employees are additional
insureds with respect to Contractor's services provided under this Contract. If requested by District, Contractor
shall also provide complete copies of insurance policies to District.

Waiver; Severability. Waiver of any default or breach under this Contract by District does not constitute a
waiver of any subsequent default or a modification of any other provisions of this Contract. If any term or
provision of this Contract is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any
law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of
the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Contract did not contain the particular term or provision held
invalid.

Non-discrimination Clause. Both parties agree that no person shall be subject to unlawful discrimination
based on race; color; gender; age; religion; national origin; U.S. military veteran status; marital status;
sexual orientation; disability; source of income; or political affiliation in programs, activities, services,
benefits, or employment in connection with this Contract. The parties further agree not to discriminate in their
employment or personnel policies.

Controlling Law and Venue. Any dispute under this Contract or related to this Contract shall be
governed by Oregon law, and any litigation arising out of the Contract shall be conducted in courts located in
Multnomah County, Oregon.

Attorney Fees. The parties agree that if any suit or action at law, in equity, or through arbitration is filed to
enforce any of the terms of this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party
its reasonable attorney fees, costs, and disbursements in addition to any other relief to which that party may be
entitled. If the prevailing party is represented by "in-house" counsel, it shall nevertheless be entitled to recover
reasonable attorney fees based upon the reasonable time, rates, and charges generally accepted in the
metropolitan Portland, Oregon, area for the type of legal services performed.

Amendments; Renewal. Any amendments, consents to or waivers of the terms of this Contract shall be in
writing and signed by both parties. The parties may renew this Contract by their signed, written instrument.

GBSD and Open Meadow Alternative Schools 2012-14
Page 7 of 10



37. Entire Agreement. When signed by both parties, this Contract and Exhibit 1 is their final and entire
agreement. As their final and entire expression, this Contract supersedes all prior and contemporaneous
oral or written communications between the parties, their agents, and representatives. There are no
representations, promises, terms, conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein.

Notices. All notices or demands of any kind required or desired to be given by District or Contractor must be in
writing and shall be deemed delivered upon depositing the notice or demand in the United States mail, certified
or registered, postage prepaid, addressed to the respective party at the addresses herein.

| HAVE READ THIS CONTRACT, INCLUDING ALL ATTACHMENTS AND EXHIBITS, IF APPLICABLE. |
CERTIFY THAT | HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO SIGN AND ENTER INTO THIS CONTRACT ON BEHALF OF
THE PARTY | REPRESENT AND AGREE TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS.

CONTRACTOR: DISTRICT:
Open Meadow Alternative Schools, Inc. Gresham-Barlow School District
By: By:
Jerry Jones, Chief Financial Officer
7621 N Wabash 1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Portland, OR 97217 Gresham, OR 97030

GBSD and Open Meadow Alternative Schools 2012-14
Page 8 of 10



Exhibit 1

STATEMENT OF WORK, COMPENSATION,
PAYMENT AND RENEWAL TERMS

Contractor shall perform the following work:

Program Design:

Through STEP UP, students are given the opportunity to develop the habits, attitudes, resources, and
behaviors that will help them achieve a high level of success both in and out of school. STEP UP provides
students with personalized academic support starting the summer before they enter the ninth grade and
continuing throughout their freshman year.

Target Population:

STEP UP Program is designed to help 40 students successfully transition from eighth grade to the
completion of their freshman year at Gresham High School. It targets youth at risk of dropping-out by inviting
participants identified by their middle school teachers and counselors as being particularly challenged by the
changes facing them in high school.

Key Elements of STEP UP Program:

* Summer Leadership Camp: 5 days, overnight, designed to cultivate “school success” behavior with
intensive staff/student ratio

* Intensive after-school academic support (school year): 4 days/week, average 2 hours/day

* Mid-Year Student Retreat: A one day (non-school day) retreat aimed at reconnecting students to
their goals and commitments

e Parent/Guardian support: Regular progress updates and meetings

* Coordination with teachers: STEP UP staff meet regularly (minimum monthly) with teachers to
coordinate tutoring with ongoing classroom instruction

* Accountability: STEP UP staff meet monthly with school administrator to monitor progress;

Students meet with a staff School Success Advocate two times a week after school. Advocates assist
students in organizing their homework load, support student understanding of the concepts being taught in
class, and provide homework assistance.

All STEP UP students have the opportunity to participate in groups and one-on-one counseling. Some
groups include; art therapy, life skills training, conflict resolution and numerous other topics as they present
themselves throughout the school year. Counseling takes place both after school and in some cases during
school.

Program Objectives

1. Step Up participants’ average GPA’s will exceed those of their non-Step Up, Academic Priority
classmates.

2. 30 Step Up participants (75% of the targeted enroliment) will have attained the required amount of
freshman core credit by the beginning of the ensuing school year.

3. 30 Step Up participants (75% of targeted enroliment) will show improvements in reading and math
grades.

4. 34 Step Up participants (85% of targeted enrollment) will improve school attendance and attend at least
90% of the school year.

5.  Students will receive academic support that will prepare them for college and for success during the
school day.

6. 40 students will be enrolled in Step Up throughout the school year.

7. Atleast 38 students (95% of targeted enrollment) will be retained in school at the end of the school
year.

8. Strong interpersonal relationships will develop among students, teachers, and staff.

9. Partnership between parents/guardians and school will be strengthened.

GBSD and Open Meadow Alternative Schools 2012-14
Page 9 of 10




Contractor agrees to the following:

Open Meadow Alternative School and the STEP UP Program agree to the following:

A.

B.
C.
D

Attend all necessary GBSD/partner meetings or other related meetings as needed throughout the
year including 21% Century trainings and/or professional development.
Create any promotional material that may be needed for STEP UP.
Create all registration forms for STEP UP
Coordinate all aspects of STEP UP programming as described in the above program design, target
population and key elements.
Conduct all necessary recruitment and outreach for the STEP UP program in coordination with the
SUN Community School (CS) program.
Coordinate usage of after-school classroom space with the SUN CS program if necessary.
Provide qualified staff members who have passed criminal background checks during all activities
and events.
Submit a quarterly report to GHS administrators. Included in this progress report will be:

- Student Roster

- Staffing update

- Program highlights

- Program challenges

- Any issues or opportunities relating to public relations

- School relationship highlights

- An outstanding student bio

- Academic outcomes (GPA, Core classes passed, attendance, Step Up program attendance)

Submit a 1% semester and Year-End program report. Program report will include:
- Student rosters for the school year program
- Step Up program attendance for the school year program
- Student bio
- Highlights and challenges of the year/semester.
- Documentation of all objectives listed above
- Analysis of data
- A Parent participation report, which will include:
- Number of parent/guardian volunteers
- Data indicating number of parents/guardians who participated in STEP UP events as
well as total number of parent contacts.
- Number of parents who participated in STEP UP events

GBSD and Open Meadow Alternative Schools 2012-14
Page 10 of 10



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Jerry Jones
DATE: July 12, 2012
RE: No. 13 - Financing Energy Efficiency Projects
EXPLANATION: A resolution has been prepared by the District’'s bond counsel,

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY:

MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

JJ: mkh:lc

Ann Sherman of Hawkins, Delafield & Wood. The District
anticipates incurring expenditures to finance the measures
determined through our energy efficiency audits. By approving
Resolution 1213-04, the District will enter into an escrow
agreement which will authorize the escrow agent to issue Full
Faith and Credit Obligations, Series 2012 in an aggregate principal
amount not to exceed $4,000,000 which will be payable from funds
provided by the District.

The District will utilize its cash flow from Senate Bill 1149 dollars
along with capital projects fund transfers from the General Fund
to pay the cost of principal, interest and issuance for the Full Faith
and Credit Obligations.

Jerry Jones

1. Resolution No. 1213-04 Authorizing the issuance and
negotiated sale of Full Faith and Credit Obligations, Series 2012
2. Schedule of Events

The administration recommends the board of directors adopts the
attached resolution authorizing the issuance and negotiated sale
of Full Faith Credit Obligations not to exceed $4 million.

Move to approve Resolution No. 1213-04 authorizing the issuance
and negotiated sale of Full Faith and Credit Obligations not to
exceed $4,000,000.



RESOLUTION NO. 1213-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10JT
IN MULTNOMAH AND CLACKAMAS COUNTIES, OREGON AUTHORIZING
THE ISSUANCE AND NEGOTIATED SALE OF FULL FAITH AND CREDIT
OBLIGATIONS, SERIES 2012 IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $4,000,000; DESIGNATING AN AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF
A FINANCING AGREEMENT AND AN ESCROW AGREEMENT; AND
RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10JT, Multhomah
and Clackamas Counties, Oregon (the “District”), is authorized pursuant to the Constitution and laws of
the State of Oregon, specifically, Oregon Revised Statutes Section 271.390 to enter into financing
agreements to finance real and personal property, as more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto,
(the “Project™), and to pay the costs of issuance of full faith and credit obligations; and

WHEREAS, it is advantageous for the District to authorize and enter into a financing agreement
(the “Financing Agreement”) to finance the Project. In addition, the District will enter into an escrow
agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) which will authorize the escrow agent to issue Full Faith and Credit
Obligations, Series 2012 (the “Obligations”) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $4,000,000
which are payable from funds provided by the District under the Financing Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the District anticipates incurring expenditures (the “Expenditures”) to finance the
costs of the Project and wishes to declare its official intent to reimburse itself for any Expenditures the
District may make from its own funds on the Project from the proceeds of the Obligations, the interest on
which shall be excluded from gross income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows:

1. Authorization. The District authorizes:
a. Issuance and Sale of Obligations. The District authorizes the issuance and
negotiated sale of the Obligations of the District which shall be issued in an amount not

to exceed $4,000,000 by the escrow agent, for and on behalf of the District, to finance the
Project.

b. Financing Agreement. The District authorizes the execution and delivery of the
Financing Agreement to finance the Project, in a form satisfactory to the Authorized
Representative, as defined herein.

The estimated weighted average life of the Financing Agreement does not exceed the dollar
weighted average life of the Project being financed with the Financing Agreement, as required by ORS
271.390. The District hereby determines that the Project is needed for District purposes.

C. Escrow Agreement. The District authorizes the execution and delivery of the
Escrow Agreement between the District and the escrow agent, in a form satisfactory to
the Authorized Representative, pursuant to which the escrow agent shall execute the
Obligations representing the principal amount payable under the Financing Agreement,

Page 1 — Authorizing Resolution

190649.1 036612 RSIND



and evidencing the right of the escrow agent to receive the District’s financing payments
under the Financing Agreement.

2. Financing Payments. The financing payments for the Obligations are payable from the
general non-restricted revenues of the District and other funds which may be lawfully available for that
purpose, including any taxes levied within the restrictions of Sections 11 and 11b, Article XI of the
Constitution of the State of Oregon. The obligation of the District to make financing payments is a full
faith and credit obligation of the District, and is not subject to appropriation. The registered Owners (as
defined herein) of the Obligations do not have a lien or security interest on the property financed with the
proceeds of the Obligations.

3. Declaring Intent to Reimburse Expenditures. The District hereby declares its official
intent to reimburse itself with the proceeds of the Obligations for any of the Expenditures incurred by it
prior to the issuance of the Obligations.

4. Designation of Authorized Representative.  The District hereby authorizes the
Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer (each an “Authorized Representative”)
or a designee of an Authorized Representative to act on behalf of the District and determine the remaining
terms of the Obligations as delegated in Section 5 below.

5. Delegation of Final Terms and Sale of Obligations and Additional Documents. The
Authorized Representative is authorized, on behalf of the District, to:

a. approve of and authorize the distribution of the preliminary and final Official
Statements to prospective purchasers of the Obligations;

b. negotiate the terms under which the Obligations shall be sold, enter into a
Purchase Agreement for sale of the Obligations, and execute and deliver the Purchase
Agreement;

C. establish the maturity and interest payment dates, dated date, principal amounts,
optional and/or mandatory redemption provisions, interest rates, denominations, and all
other terms under which the Obligations shall be issued, sold, executed, and delivered,;

d. appoint an escrow agent, registrar and paying agent for the Obligations;

e. negotiate the terms and approve of the Financing Agreement and the Escrow
Agreement as the Authorized Representative determines to be in the best interest of the
District, and to execute and deliver the Financing Agreement and the Escrow Agreement;

f. determine whether the Obligations shall be Book-Entry certificates and take such
actions as are necessary to qualify the Obligations for the Book-Entry System of DTC,
including the execution of a Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations as necessary;

g. seek to obtain a rating on the Obligations, if determined by the Authorized
Representative to be in the best interest of the District;

h. apply for municipal bond insurance for the Obligations, if determined to be in the
best interests of the District, and expend proceeds to pay any insurance premiums and to
execute and deliver any required insurance agreement;

Page 2 — Authorizing Resolution

190649.1 036612 RSIND



i. approve, execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure Certificate pursuant to
SEC Rule 15¢2-12, as amended (17 CFR Part 240, § 240.15¢c2-12) and a Tax Certificate;

j. designate the Financing Agreement as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation”
pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, if applicable;

k. make any clarifying changes or additional covenants not inconsistent with this
Resolution; and

. execute and deliver a certificate specifying the action taken pursuant to this
Resolution, and any other documents, agreements or certificates that the Authorized
Representative determines are necessary and desirable to issue, sell and deliver the
Obligations in accordance with this Resolution.

6. Maintenance of Tax-Exempt Status. The District hereby covenants for the benefit of the
Owners of the Obligations to use the Obligation proceeds and the Project financed with Obligation
proceeds in the manner required, and to otherwise comply with all provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), which are required for the interest component of the financing
payments payable under the Financing Agreement to be excluded from gross income for federal income
tax purposes, as provided in the Financing Agreement. The District makes the following specific
covenants with respect to the Code:

a. The District will not take any action or omit any action if it would cause the
Financing Agreement or Obligations to become “arbitrage bonds” under Section 148 of
the Code.

b. The District shall operate the Project financed with the Obligations so that the
Obligations do not become “private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141 of
the Code.

C. The District shall comply with appropriate Code reporting requirements.

d. The District shall pay, when due, all rebates and penalties with respect to the
Obligations which are required by Section 148(f) of the Code.

The covenants contained in this Section 6 and any covenants in the closing documents for the
Obligations shall constitute contracts with the Owners of the Obligations, and shall be enforceable by
them. The Authorized Representative may enter into covenants on behalf of the District to protect the
tax-exempt status of the Financing Agreement and the Obligations.

7. Appointment of Underwriter and Special Counsel. The District appoints Seattle-
Northwest Securities Corporation as the Underwriter for the issuance of the Obligations, and Hawkins
Delafield & Wood LLP as Special Counsel to the District for the issuance of the Obligations.

8. Resolution to Constitute Contract. In consideration of the purchase and acceptance of
any or all of the Obligations by those who shall own the same from time to time (the “Owners”), the
provisions of this Resolution shall be part of the contract of the District with the Owners and shall be
deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the District and the Owners. The covenants,
pledges, representations and warranties contained in this Resolution or in the closing documents executed
in connection with the Obligations, including without limitation the District’s covenants and pledges
contained in Section 2 hereof, and the other covenants and agreements herein set forth to be performed by

Page 3 — Authorizing Resolution

190649.1 036612 RSIND



or on behalf of the District shall be contracts for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Owners,
all of which shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of any of such Obligations
over any other thereof, except as expressly provided in or pursuant to this Resolution.

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.
10JT, in Multnomah and Clackamas Counties, Oregon this 12t day of July, 2012.

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10JT
MULTNOMAH AND CLACKAMAS COUNTIES,
OREGON

By:

, Chair

ATTEST:

By:

, Superintendent

Page 4 — Authorizing Resolution

190649.1 036612 RSIND



EXHIBIT A

The proceeds of the Full Faith and Credit Obligations, Series 2012 shall be used to finance
District facility capital improvement measures including, but not limited to, HVAC, lighting, pool
renovation, insulation, weatherization, and plumbing, and paying the costs of issuance of the Full Faith
and Credit Obligations, Series 2012.

Exhibit A

190649.1 036612 RSIND



Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10Jt
Full Faith and Credit Obligations, Series 2012

Preliminary Schedule of Events; as of June 28, 2012

Financing Team

Issuer: Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10Jt SD
Bond Counsel: Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP BC
Registrar/Paying Agent: U.S. Bank National Association PA
Underwriter: Seattle-Northwest Securities Corporation SNW

S M S S M T W
1 2 34 5 6 7 1 2 3 4
3 4 5 6 7 819 8 9 10 1113 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 EEBE 15 16 17 18
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31 26 27 29 30 31
M Due Date Event Parties
M  Fri., June 8 Circulate schedule and distribution list SNW
M  Wed., June 27 Draft Authorizing Resolution circulated BC
Thurs., June 28  First draft POS circulated SNW
Comments due on Authorizing Resolution Fin. Team
Fri., June 29 Authorizing Resolution to District for Board Packet BC
Mon., July 9 Comments due on first draft POS Fin. Team
Wed., July 11 Second draft POS and draft Purchase Agreement circulated SNW
Information to rating agenc SNW
Thurs., July 12 Board Adopts Authorizing Resolution SD Board
Clean copy of draft POS to SD Board SD
Fri., July 13 MDAC 1 filed with Treasury SNW
Wk. of July 16 Rating prep call SD; SNW
Conference call with rating agency SD; SNW
Fri., July 20 Comments due on second draft POS and draft Purchase Agreement Fin. Team
July. 25 -27 OASBO Conference
Fri., July 27 End of two-week Board review of POS SD Board
Mon., July 30 Substantially complete draft POS and “Deemed Final” letter circulated SNW
Tues., July 31 Final comments on POS due Fin. Team
Wed., Aug. 1 Receive rating SNW
SNW Internal Credit Committee SNW
Thurs., Aug. 2 “Deemed Final” letter due to SNW SD
Printing and mailing of POS SNW

Mon., Aug. 13 Pre-pricing (time between 11 a.m. and 2 p.m. to be determined)

Tues., Aug. 14 Pricing (District staff to be available throughout the day)

Purchase Agreement signed SD; SNW
Wk. of Aug. 20  Final Official Statement posted; File MDAC 2 SNW
Draft closing documents circulated BC

Closing Memorandum circulated SNW
Tues., Aug. 28  Closing Fin. Team

[ [
SNW




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Janell Black
DATE: July 12, 2012
RE: 14 — Alternative Education Programs for 2012-13
EXPLANATION: A list of Alternative Education Programs for 2012-13 was

PRESENTER:
SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:
RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

JB:lc

presented for first reading at the June 14, 2012, board meeting.
The list is now being presented for second reading and adoption.

Board approval of all alternative programs to be used in the

district is required by state law, ORS 581-022-1350, and by board
Policy IGBHA.

After careful evaluation, the alternative education programs on
the attached list are recommended for board approval.

Janell Black

List of Alternative Education Programs for the 2012-13 School
Year

It is recommended that the board approve this list of alternative
education programs for the 2012-13 school year.

Move to approve the list of alternative education programs for
2012-13 as presented.



Alternative Education Programs for 2012-13

**11/12 Cost

(LEC)

4905 SE Woodstock
Bivd.

Portland, OR 97206
503-771-7508

program for students who are not thriving
in a larger school setting. Approximately
2/3 of the the students receive special
education service. Many need remedial
instruction in academic subjects. (ELLs

not served)

Program Age Level Student Profile Listed Below
12/13 Cost TBD
Alpha High School Grades 9-12 |Alternative school with a focus on General Education
876 NE 8th Street, supporting students academically to $35.55 per day
Gresham, OR 97030 improve prospects for employment and |$6,400 per year
503-262-4050 develop skills to address issues that may |Special Education
be impeding their ability to learn, practice |$71.00 per day
problem solving skills and increase $12,800 per year
awareness and ability to work with others. |ELL Education
$53.33 per day
$9,600 per year
Alpha Middle School Grades 6-8 [Alternative school with a focus on General Education
876 NE 8th Street, supporting students academically to $35.55 per day
Gresham, OR 97030 improve prospects for employment and |$6,400 per year
503-262-4050 develop skills to address issues impeding |Special Education
their ability to learn, practice problem $71.00 per day
solving skills and increase awareness and |[$12,800 per year
ability to work with others. ELL Education
$53.33 per day
$9,600 per year
Co-Instructional Grades K-12 [Temporarily homebound disabled and non{$25.00 per hour,
Tutoring disabled students with health, safety, plus
at the student’'s home or and/or behavior issues preventing school |mileage between
in a neutral location attendance on a short-term educational  |tutoring sites
outside the school basis.
setting
Columbia Regional Grades Serves elementary, middle and high $25,000 per year k-
Deaf/Hearing Impaired [Pre K-12 school levels with a focus on intense 12; interpreter cost
Classrooms language and communication instruction. |depends on the
833 NE 74th, Students eligible for regional services amount of services
Portland, OR 97213 have significant language communication |provided
503-916-5570 needs.
Four Corners-Reynolds [Grades K-6 |Four Corners is a therapeutic public $186.00 per day
S.D. school serving students with disabilities  [$31,465 per year
14513 SE Stark Street who have had significant barriers to
Portland, OR 97233 accessing their education based on
503-328-0420 emotional and behavioral challenges.
Lents Education Center |Grades 5-12 |A relationship-based alternative education |Special Education

$89.00 per day
$15,575 per year
General Education
$70.00 per day
$12,250 per year

revised 050512; corrected for second reading by LM 061912:Ic

10f5




Alternative Education Programs for 2012-13

**11/12 Cost

Alternative Behavior
Program

Pathways Site/Local
school settings

611 E. Powell Blvd.
Gresham, OR 97030
503-262-4000

behavioral services, that include intensive
individual daily monitoring.

Program Age Level Student Profile Listed Below
12/13 Cost TBD

Mt. Hood Community Ages 16-21 [Non-disabled young adults in need of help|Dependent on the
College to prepare for the GED examination, number of credits
Alternative Education establish course goals, find employment, |the student takes
Program and transition to college classes.
GED Program
2600 SE Stark Street
Gresham, OR 97030
503-491-7019
Mt. Hood Community Ages 16-21 |Program serves 16-20 yr. old students, Dependent on the
College living in Mult. Co. The average academic |number of credits
Alternative Education performance level is 6th-7th grade. the student takes
Program Seventy percent of these students live
YESS Program under the federal poverty line. The
26000 SE Stark Street program is income based. All students
Gresham, OR 97030 must be self-motivated and self-directed
503-491-7641 learners.
Multnomah Education |Grades K-12 [Disabled students with persistent $187.15 per day
Service District behavioral challenges who benefit from a |$32,190 per year
Arata Creek School leveled management system with clear
2470 SW Halsey behavioral and academic expectations for
Troutdale, OR 97060 each level.
503-262-4850
Multnomah Education |Grades K-12 [Disabled students with persistent $233.34 per day
Service District behavioral challenges who benefit from a |$40,134 per year
Arata Creek School functional living skills curriculum.
(Behavioral Health
Classroom)
2470 SW Halsey
Troutdale, OR 97060
503-262-4850
Multnomah Education |Grades K-12 |Students with moderate to profound $408.58 per day
Service District and disabilities in need of a functional living $71,502 per year
Functional Living Skills [Ages 18-21 |[skills curriculum with emphasis on

revised 050512; corrected for second reading by LM 061912:Ic

20f5




Alternative Education Programs for 2012-13

**11/12 Cost

Academy

5135 NE Columbia Bivd.
Portland, Or 97218
503-972-2461

disabled youth who are credit deficient
and have difficulty fitting into a larger
school. Students may generally be
introverted and/or gang effected but have
a degree of engagement. Is a culturally
specific high school that centers
curriculum on students with Native
American values. (SWD not served)

Program Age Level Student Profile Listed Below
12/13 Cost TBD
Multnomah Education |Grades k-12 |Students with moderate to profound $247.85 per day
Service District and disabilities in need of a functional living $43,374 per year
Functional Living Skills [Ages 18-21 |[skills curriculum.
Program/Local school
settings
11611 NE Ainsworth
Portland, Or 97294
Multnomah Education [Ages 12-21 |Both disabled and non disabled pregnant |General Education
Service District and/or parenting at-risk teens with gang, [$35.55 per day
Helensview School - drug and alcohol issues and/or criminal  [$6,400 per year
Phoenix histories who benefit from comprehensive |Special Education
8676 NE Sumner wrap-around social, behavioral, academic |$71.00 per day
Portland, OR 97220 and mental health support. $12,800 per year
503-262-4150 ELL Education
$53.33 per day
$9,600 per year
Multnomah Education [Ages 12-21 |Both disabled and non disabled students |General Education
Service District with gang, drug and alcohol issues and/or |$35.55 per day
Helensview School- Rise criminal histories who have previously $6,400 per year
8676 NE Sumner dropped out of school and are interested |Special Education
Portland, OR 97220 in returning and would benefit from a $71.00 per day
503-262-4150 comprehensive wrap-around social, $12,800 per year
behavioral, academic and mental health |ELL Education
program including gang, drug and alcohol |$53.33 per day
issues, and criminal histories. $9,600 per year
Multnomah Education [Ages 12-21 |Both disabled and non-disabled students |General Education
Service District returning from incarceration who would $35.55 per day
Helensview School- benefit from a comprehensive wrap- $6,400 per year
Trellis around social, behavioral, academic, and |Special Education
8676 NE Sumner mental health program that addresses $71.00 per day
Portland, OR 97220 gang, drug and alcohol, and criminal $12,800 per year
503-262-4150 issues. ELL Education
$53.33 per day
$9,600 per year
NAYA Early College Grades 9-12 |Native American/Alaskan Native non- $36.00 per

day/depending on
the contract

revised 050512; corrected for second reading by LM 061912:Ic

3of 5




Alternative Education Programs for 2012-13

**11/12 Cost

High School - East

Program Age Level Student Profile Listed Below
12/13 Cost TBD

Oregon Outreach Grades 9-12 |Both disabled and non-disabled at-risk $55 half day
Hinton High students with a history of being (same cost for
208 SE 148th Street unsuccessful in public school due to general education
Gresham, OR 97233 attendance, school behaviors or academic|and special
503-328-0303 concerns who are in need of small group |education)

instruction, individualized, contract-based |$90

learning, job skills training and counseling |ELL Education

in drug, alcohol, gang and teen-age

pregnancy prevention. These students

may require a modified diploma option.
Portland Community Ages 16-20 [Students who have a first language other |Varies and is based
College than English, live in a participating school [on specific contracts
MAP district and have dropped out of school.  |with districts, $45.00
Three Campus The program supports students who want |per full day
Locations to improve their English and continue their|{equivalent
503-788-6119 education. instruction
Portland Community Ages 16-20 [Students who left high school before Dependent on the
College graduation or students behind in high number of credits a
Gateway to College school credits amd would prefer to take  [student takes
Three Campus locations courses in the community college setting.
503-788-6119
Portland Community Ages 16-20 |Allows students to take classes to prepare|Varies and is based
College for the GED tests, learn about interesting [on specific contracts
Youth Empowered to careers and get the support needed to with districts, $32.00
Succeed (YES) achieve their goals. per full day
Three Campus equivalent
Locations instruction
503-788-6119
Rosemary Anderson Grades 9-12 [Serves students who have dropped out or [$36.00 per day

are at the highest risk of dropping out of
high school due to encountering barriers
to educational success, including gang
and juvenile justice involvement,
substance abuse, family problems,
homelessness, poverty, teen pregnancy
and a variety of school problems as
evidenced by persistently low attendance,
high mobility, low academic performance,
credit deficiency, behavior challenges,
discipline and possibly formal expulsion.

revised 050512; corrected for second reading by LM 061912:Ic

40f5



Alternative Education Programs for 2012-13

**11/12 Cost

Program Age Level Student Profile Listed Below
12/13 Cost TBD
Portland Youth Builders [Ages 17-24 |Non-disabled students who have dropped |No cost to students
4816 SE 92nd Ave. out of high school or are at risk of who qualify for free
Portland, OR 97266 dropping out and experience one or more [and reduced lunch
503-286-9350 barriers to successful employment. Only |services
students who are eligible for free and
reduced lunch are eligible to attend.
(SWD and ELL not served)
Serendipity School Grades K-12 |Students with disabilities with extreme $3,387 per mo (5
14815 SE Division behaviors, internalized and externalized |students or less)
Portland, OR 97292 behaviors, processing disorders, $33,870 per year
503-761-7139 struggling from traumatic life events.
Serves students K-12 , integrating mental
health treatment with an individualized
education to meet special needs.
Serendipity Grades 7-12 [Both disabled and non-disabled at-risk Special Education:
North Star Program students. North Star provides an $100 per day
14815 SE Division alternative learning environment for $2,014 per mo.
Portland, OR 97292 students who are re-establishing General Education:
503-761-7139 themselves as learners. They attend $89 per day
small classes with individually tailored $1,802 per year
instruction. Behavioral coaching is a part
of the program. Serves students with
anger issues, low SES/income, probation,
gang affiliation, attention issues and/or
oppositional defiance.
SERP Enterprises Ages 15-21 |One-on-one transitional school providing |$1,750 per month

2601 SE 160th Ave.
Portland, OR
503-761-7253

paid work experience and tutoring in
academics. to Serves students who
qualify for special education services and
are on an IEP.

revised 050512; corrected for second reading by LM 061912:Ic

50f 5




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
James Hiu

DATE: July 12, 2012

RE: No. 15 - Tuition and Fees for 2012-13

EXPLANATION: Student fee schedules for 2012-13 were presented for first
reading at the June 14, 2012, board meeting with the following
explanation:

The proposed tuition and fees for 2012-2013 are the same
those that were in place for the 2011-2012 school year.

The amounts shown below do not reflect the 50% and 100%
waiver for students on reduced or free lunch.

2012-13
HS AthleticFee $175
HS Activity Fee $60
HS Textbook Deposit (9" & New Students) $50
Graduation Fee (Seniors) | $25 *
Yearbook $45 *
HS Elective Course Fee Range .. ... | $10-30
HS/MS PE Uniform $20
MS Outdoor School Fee (3days) ... .. ... .. . . $50
Tuition for Non-District Students:
Kindergarten $3,909
Grades 1-12 $7,818

*

waiver does not apply

The proposed student fee schedules are now being presented for
second reading and adoption.

PRESENTER: James Hiu

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: None

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends approval of the 2012-2013

Tuition and Fees as presented for second reading.

REQUESTED ACTION: Move to approve the 2012-2013 Tuition and Fees and presented
for second reading.

JH:1c



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, Oregon 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM.: Jim Schlachter

DATE: July 12, 2012

RE: No. 16 - Date, Time and Place of Board Meetings

EXPLANATION: A proposed 2012-13 board meeting calendar was presented for

first reading at the June 14, 2012, board meeting with the
following explanation:

Policy BC/BCA requires the board to provide for the date,
time and place of its regular meetings for the fiscal year not
later than July of each year. For this reason, the proposed
2012-13 Board Meeting Schedule is being presented for first
reading in June, and the recommendation for second reading
and adoption will be presented in July.

Attached is a proposed calendar for 2012-13 board meetings,
which includes DAC meetings and budget committee
meetings. The dates are consistent with the 2011-12 schedule.

The administration also proposes that, according to tradition,
there will be a board planning session/retreat in August in
lieu of a regular meeting.

(Note: The 2012-13 proposed calendar includes July and
August of the 2013-14 school year for planning purposes.)

The board’s regular business meetings are typically held at the
Public Safety and Schools building, 1331 NW Eastman
Parkway, Gresham, Oregon. Work sessions are traditionally
held at the Center for Advanced Learning (CAL), 1484 NW
Civic Drive, Gresham, Oregon. When exceptions to this
practice occur, advance notifications are published.

The calendar is now being presented for second reading and
adoption.

PRESENTER: Jim Schlachter



Board of Directors

Re: No. 16 - Date, Time and Place of Board Meetings

July 12, 2012
Page 2

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

:lc

A list of proposed dates for regular board meetings, board
work sessions, DAC meetings, and budget committee meetings

The administration recommends approval of the 2012-13 board
meeting calendar as presented for second reading.

Move to adopt the 2012-13 board meeting calendar as presented
for second reading.



Note: These Meetings are Typically on Thursday Evenings (Exceptions are Noted)

2012-13 Board Meeting Schedule

Date

Board
Business
Meeting

Board
Work
Session

Board
Planning
Retreat

DAC
Meeting

Budget
Meetings, Work
Sessions, Etc.

July 12, 2012

7 p.m.

August 9-11, 2012 *** (Thurs./Fri./Sat.) **

TBD

September 6, 2012

7 p.m.

September 13, 2012

7 p.m.

September 20, 2012

6 p.m.

September 27, 2012 *

6 p.m.

October 4, 2012 ***

7 p.m.

October 11, 2012

7 p.m.

October 18, 2012

6 p.m.

October 25, 2012 *

6 p.m.

November 1, 2012

7 p.m.

November 15, 2012 ***

7 p.m.

November 29, 2012

6 p.m.

December 6, 2012

7 p.m.

December 13, 2012

6 p.m.

December 20, 2012 *

6 p.m.

January 10, 2013

7 p.m.

January 17, 2013

7 p.m.

January 24, 2013 ***

6 p.m.

February 7, 2013

7 p.m.

February 15-16, 2013 *** (Fri./Sat.) **

8 am—-5pm

February 21, 2013

7 p.m.

February 28, 2013

6 p.m.

March 7, 2013

7 p.m.

March 14, 2013

7 p.m.

March 21, 2013

7 p.m.

April 4, 2013

7 p.m.

April 11, 2013

7 p.m.

April 18, 2013

6 p.m.

April 25, 2013

7 p.m.

Page 1 of 2




Board Board Board DAC Budget
Date Business Work Planning Meetin Meetings, Work
Meeting Session Retreat 9 Sessions, Etc.
May 2, 2013 7 p.m.
May 6, 2013 (Monday) 7 p-m.
6:30 p.m. -
May 9, 2013 BBQ
May 13, 2013 (Monday) 7 p-m.
May 16, 2013 * 6 p.m.
May 23, 2013 *** 6 p.m.
May 30, 2013 ~ 6 p.m.
o 6:45 p.m.
June 6, 2013 7 p.m. Budget Hearing
June 27,2013 * 6 p.m.
July 11, 2013 7 p.m.
Aug. 8-10, 2013 (Thurs./Fri./Sat.) ** TBD

* These dates are being held for possible work sessions, hearings and/or special meetings to be scheduled on an as-needed

basis.

** These dates are reserved for board planning retreats. Start and end times are to be determined; however, planning retreats

typically include one full day and one or more half days.

*** Achievement Compact will be on the agenda.

JS:lc

06/14/12  First Reading
07/12/12 — Second Reading

¢:  Board, Cabinet, Cabinet Secretaries, Receptionist, City of Gresham (Attn. Rachelle Perry), Oregonian,
Outlook, David Short, Catering, Web, MESD, Gina Sanstrum, Peggy Ducey, Metro Cable TV,

Willamette Falls TV, Association Representatives

Page 2 of 2




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Tim Drilling

DATE: July 12, 2012

RE: No 17 - Public Charter School Renewal: Gresham-Barlow Web Academy

EXPLANATION: The Gresham-Barlow Web Academy Public Charter School
renewal was presented to the board at the February 23 board
work session, and a public hearing was held March 1. The
proposal was presented to the board at the April 5 business
meeting, and was conditionally approved, subject to negotiation
of a contract. The revised contract was presented for the board’s
review at the June 14 business meeting.
The next step in the renewal process is for the Gresham-Barlow
School District board of directors to approve the contract this
evening.

PRESENTER: Tim Drilling

SUPPLEMENTARY 1. Charter Agreement Between Gresham-Barlow Web Academy

MATERIALS: Public Charter School and Gresham-Barlow School District

2012-2017
2. Table of Contents
3. Exhibit A: Gresham-Barlow Web Academy, A Final Charter
School Proposal

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends approval of the contract to renew
the Gresham-Barlow Web Academy.

REQUESTED ACTION: Move to approve the Charter Agreement Between Gresham-

TD:lc

Barlow Web Academy Public Charter School and Gresham-
Barlow School District 2012-2017.



CHARTER AGREEMENT

between

GRESHAM-BARLOW WEB ACADEMY PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL

and

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

2012-2017



CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT, dated this day of June, 2012, is made and entered into by
and between the Gresham-Barlow School District (“District”) and Gresham-Barlow Web
Academy Public Charter School (“Web Academy”™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Oregon Legislature has enacted ORS Chapter 338 for certain purposes
as enumerated in that act; and

WHEREAS, on April 9, 2009 a charter application (attached and incorporated as Exhibit
A) was submitted by the Web Academy to the District for formation of the Web Academy as a
charter school to operate within the School District; and

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2009 the District has determined that the application submitted
by the Web Academy complies with the purposes and requirements of ORS Chapter 338; and

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2009 the Board held a public hearing on the provisions of the
application in accordance with ORS Chapter 338 and evaluated the criteria set forth in of ORS
Chapter 338;

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted May 7, 2009, the District Board granted the charter
application and directed the District administration to begin and complete the negotiation and
execution of a contract acceptable to the Web Academy and the District; and

WHEREAS, the charter application as amended by this contract between the Web
Academy and the District will constitute the agreement between the parties regarding the
governance and operation of the Web Academy; and

WHEREAS, after a review of the criteria set forth in ORS 338.065(8), the District School
Board voted on April 5, 2012, to renew the Web Academy’s Charter and to seek a waiver from
the Oregon Department of Education to enter into a five year contract with the Web Academy;
and

WHEREAS, the parties desire that the Web Academy be authorized to operate and
conduct its affairs in accordance with the terms of this agreement and ORS Chapter 338.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual
understandings, releases, covenants, and payments herein described, the parties agree as follows:

Page 1 - CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 2 -

CONTRACT

Grant of Charter

The Web Academy is granted a charter in accordance with ORS Chapter 338 and
the terms and conditions of this contract to operate a charter school as described
herein.

Effective Date

This contract shall commence on day on this contract has been executed by both
parties, and shall expire at midnight on June 30, 2017.

Philosophy and Mission

The philosophy and mission of Web Academy, as described in Exhibit A, is
hereby accepted by the District to the extent it is consistent with the purposes set
forth in ORS Chapter 338.

Goals and Objectives

The goals and objectives set forth in the application in Exhibit A are hereby
accepted by the District, subject to the conditions set forth in this contract.

Educational Program, Student Performance Standards and Curriculum

A. Age and Grade Range

The Web Academy shall provide instruction to students in grades 6-12.
Student placement shall be consistent with District policy in the charter
school selection process described in this agreement.

B. Curriculum

The District agrees to waive its curricular requirements, to the extent
permitted by state law, but subject to the implementation by the Web
Academy of its instructional programs as outlined in its application in
Exhibit A, and as amended herein.

(1) The Web Academy shall have the authority and responsibility of
designing and implementing its educational program, subject to the
conditions of this contract, in a manner which is consistent with
state law.

(i1) The educational program and curriculum designed and
implemented by the Web Academy shall meet or exceed any
content standards adopted by the District and shall be designed to
enable each pupil to achieve such standards.

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 3 -

(i11)) The Web Academy agrees to comply with all state requirements
concerning academic content and student achievement. The Web
Academy will send a list of all assessments to be used to measure
student achievement by September 15 of each year.

(iv)  The Web Academy agrees to obtain prior approval from the
District before making a fundamental change to the educational
program outlined in its Application. A fundamental change to the
educational program means (i) discontinuing use of the internet to
deliver the curriculum or (i1) discontinuing the current online
hybrid model in use at the Academy in which students are able to
receive face-to-face support from Highly Qualified classroom
teachers at the Web Academy site or (ii1) adopting a curriculum
that does not meet then-applicable state standards. The parties
agree that the Application sets forth the overall goals, standards
and general operational policies of the Web Academy, and that the
Application is not a complete statement of each detail of the Web
Academy’s operation. To the extent that the Web Academy
desires to implement specific programs, policies, procedures or
other specific terms of operation that supplement or otherwise
differ from those in the Application, the Web Academy shall be
permitted to implement such programs, policies, procedures and
specific terms of operation, provided that they are consistent with
the goals, standards and general operational policies set forth in the
Application, this Agreement and ORS chapter 338.

(v) The Web Academy shall establish an administrative process for
resolving public complaints against the Web Academy, including
complaints regarding curriculum.

(vi)  The failure of the Web Academy to comply with paragraph 5. B. is
a material breach of this contract.

C. Extracurricular Activities

The Web Academy students are eligible to participate in extracurricular
activities at their neighborhood schools at no charge to the Web Academy.
Web Academy students who participate in extracurricular activities of the
District shall be subject to OSAA and the District’s rules regarding fees,
eligibility and conduct.

(1) District shall not provide transportation for a Web Academy
student to and from an extracurricular activity.

D. Records

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 4 -

(1) The Web Academy shall comply with all record keeping
requirements of the District policy and federal and state law and
shall provide any reports, as necessary, to meet the District’s
reporting obligations to the Oregon Department of Education.
Student records include, without limitation, immunization records,
class schedules, records of academic performance, disciplinary
actions, attendance, documents required pursuant to the statewide
assessment system under ORS 329.485(1) and any documentation
required under federal and state laws regarding the education of
students with disabilities.

(i1) The Web Academy shall comply with all District policies and
regulations, and applicable federal and state laws, concerning the
maintenance, retention and disclosure of student records,
including, without limitation, the Oregon Public Records Law.

E. Nondiscrimination

The educational program of the Web Academy shall be nonreligious and
nonsectarian. As provided in ORS 338.125(2), the Web Academy may
not limit student admission based on race, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
ethnicity, national origin, disability, the terms of an individualized
education program, income level, proficiency in the English language or
athletic ability, but may limit admission to students within a given age
group or grade level..

F. Open Enrollment

(1) The Web Academy may provide instruction to students in grades 6
through 12. Students enrolling in the Web Academy are subject to
the District’s open enrollment policy and regulations. Student
enrollment will be limited as provided in the application, except as
amended in this contract. The parties acknowledge that the
maximum number of students enrolled in the Charter School will
be subject to any student enrollment caps imposed by the law.

(i1) Annual total school enrollment will not exceed 500 ADM. The
maximum total enrollment for grades 6 through 8 will be 60
students. The minimum enrollment will be 25 students. The
District may terminate this charter if student enrollment in the Web
Academy falls under 25 students during any school year. In the
event a student has been expelled, the Web Academy has the
ability to fill this spot with the next student on the waiting list.

(i11))  The Web Academy shall not enroll any student for the upcoming
year before June 1 of each year. If, by June 1, there are more
eligible applicants for enrollment in the Web Academy than there

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 5 -

are spaces available, successful applicants shall be selected by
lottery to take place not sooner than June 1 and not later than
June 30, which shall be open to all applicants. Priority for
enrollment shall be given to siblings of students enrolled in the
Web Academy and to resident students who were enrolled the
previous school year.

(iv)  Using the lottery process, the Web Academy shall establish a
waiting list of students who shall be offered the opportunity to
enroll at the Web Academy if additional space later becomes
available.

(v) When a student is enrolled in the Web Academy, the Web
Academy agrees to provide written notice of the student’s
enrollment to the District and to the student’s resident school
district, if different, within 10 days. The written notice must
include the student’s name, age and address and the name of the
school in which the student was formerly enrolled.

(vi)  When a student withdraws from the Web Academy (for any reason
other than graduation from high school), the Web Academy agrees
to provide written notice of the student’s withdrawal to the District
and to the student’s resident school district, if different, within 10
days. The written notice must include: (1) the student’s name, age
and address; (2) the reason the student is no longer enrolled; (3) if
applicable, the name of the school in which the student will enroll,
if known to the Web Academy; and (4) the last day on which the
student was enrolled in the Web Academy.

G. Admission

Admission of students to the Web Academy shall be determined in
accordance with the application, except as amended in this contract. The
Web Academy will follow the admission and lottery policies contained in
ORS Chapter 338. “Admission” means that the student has (1) enrolled
with the Web Academy; (2) successfully completed the lottery if
applicable; and (3) been formally accepted as a Web Academy student by
the Web Academy.

(1) Admission of nonresident students is subject to the availability of
space. Nonresident students may only be accepted by the Web
Academy if District resident student enrollment is insufficient at
the last date of the regular enrollment period to fill the available
spaces.

H. Student Attendance, Conduct and Discipline

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 6 -

The Web Academy shall implement a system of uniform student discipline
consistent with the District policies and rules concerning conduct and
discipline. The Web Academy shall comply with all District policies and
rules concerning student attendance, standards of conduct and discipline.
The Web Academy shall notify its students of the student rights and
responsibilities in the same manner that the District notifies its students.
The Web Academy shall maintain accurate enrollment data and daily
records of student attendance and shall provide these data to the District
on a monthly basis. The Web Academy shall maintain enrollment and
attendance data on the District’s student information system, or the Web
Academy will contract with the District for this service.

(1) Student attendance at the Web Academy shall be in compliance
with Oregon’s compulsory attendance laws.

(i1) Discipline involving suspension and expulsion shall be achieved
according to Oregon law. All expulsions will be reported to the
District immediately.

(i11)) The Web Academy and the District shall extend full faith and
credit to the suspension and expulsion of a student of the other.

Education Of Students With Disabilities

The Web Academy will comply with all District policies and regulations
and the requirements of federal and state law concerning the education of
children with disabilities under the Individuals with Disabilities Education
Act (“IDEA”). The District is responsible for special education services
for students pursuant to ORS 338.165. Compliance by the Web Academy
includes, but is not limited to, the following:

(1) The Web Academy will comply with all District policies regarding
discipline of special education students;

(i1) The IEP team is determined by state and federal law. Any Web
Academy IEP team must have a District representative in
attendance, as well as appropriate District specialists;

(i11))  The student’s IEP team will determine the appropriate educational
program and placement for the Web Academy student. The Web
Academy shall abide by the IEP team’s decision on program and
placement;

(iv) The Web Academy staff will comply with training required by an
IEP team for delivery of services to a Web Academy student;

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 7 -

(v) The funds from the Oregon Department of Education representing
the ADMw for special education for Web Academy special
education students shall be retained by the District;

(vi)  The District has the discretion to determine the program or site
location for provision of special education services;

(vii) The Web Academy student’s IEP team may recommend any
appropriate placement for the Web Academy student based on the
student’s needs, whether in or out of the charter school. The Web
Academy shall not change the student’s program without IEP team
action;

(viii) Special education transportation will only be provided to an Web
Academy special education student if it is a related service on a
Web Academy student’s IEP;

(ix) The Web Academy will notify the District immediately if a new
student may need special education services.

Academically Low Achieving Students

The Web Academy shall identify academically low achieving students and
shall provide its educational program to these students in a manner that
best serves their needs, as provided in its application and within the
constraints of the purchased online curriculum.

Tuition

The Web Academy will not charge tuition to students who reside within
the District. The Web Academy will not charge tuition for programs,
classes or courses of study which are part of the regular school program.
The Web Academy may charge reasonable fees for textbooks,
instructional materials, kindergarten enrichment programs, after-school
programs and student activities. The Web Academy may provide after-
school programs for Web Academy students and others at the discretion of
the Web Academy.

Student Welfare and Safety

The Web Academy shall comply with all District-approved policies and
regulations, and applicable federal and state laws, concerning student
welfare, safety and health, including, without limitation, the reporting of
child abuse, sexual conduct, accident prevention and disaster response,
and any local, state or federal regulations governing the operation of
school facilities.

English as a Second Language

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 8 -

The Web Academy will provide any special services that are required for
English as a second language students pursuant to federal law.

N. Health and Social Services

The Web Academy will notify the District regarding the delivery of health
and social services for students as set forth in this contract.

(1) The Web Academy is responsible for the reporting of sexual
conduct, child abuse and neglect in accordance with state law.

(i1) The Web Academy shall immediately inform the District
Superintendent’s office of any incident regarding sexual conduct,
child abuse and neglect.

(i11))  The Web Academy shall comply with state and federal law relating
to drug administration to students.

0. School Year; School Day; Hours of Operation

Each academic year instruction shall commence on the date established by
the School Board for the commencement by District students. The Web
Academy may maintain a typical nine-month school year for its regular
academic program. The Web Academy may also operate summer
programs and intersession programs if sufficient funds are available. The
length of the school day for the Web Academy shall meet District policies,
but has flexibility to vary the workday and school calendar by mutual
agreement of the parties.

P. Alternative Education Model

Subject to applicable state and federal laws, the District shall allow the
Web Academy to promote and implement learning situations that are
flexible with regard to environment, time, structure and pedagogy.

Evaluation of Student Performance

The Web Academy shall pursue and make reasonable progress toward the
achievement of the goals, objectives and student performance standards consistent
with those set forth in its application. Specifically, all Web Academy students will
earn credits and meet the minimum requirements contained in ORS 329.451 for a
high school diploma at a pace similar to their peers who attend the regular District
program.

Academy students will participate in all Oregon statewide assessments taken by
their peers in the regular District instructional program.

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 9 -

Achievement results for the Web Academy will be summarized annually and
reported to parents and to the District. The performance of Web Academy
students on statewide assessments will be compared with their peers in the regular
District instructional program. In addition, special emphasis will be placed on
depicting individual academic growth from year-to-year. Growth scores will be
utilized to demonstrate achievement gains. Also, the Web Academy’s average
scores and/or outcomes for the student groups identified in any state or federal
accountability system applying to the District (e.g. the Achievement Compact)
shall meet or exceed the scores of District students in those same groups.

A. The Web Academy will submit an annual report to the District
summarizing its progress towards meeting these academic goals.

B. The Web Academy will also provide the District any student data the
District is required by the Oregon Education Investment Board.

Economic Plan, Budget and Annual Audit

A. Funding

(1) For each year of this agreement, the District shall provide to the
Web Academy the 95% ADM minimum amount required by ORS
338.155(2)(a) for students in grades 9-12 and 80% ADM for
students in grades 6-8.

(i1) Any financial commitment on the part of the District contained in
this contract is subject to annual appropriation by the District and
the parties agree that the District has no obligation to fund the Web
Academy’s operations except as expressly provided herein.

(i11))  Inadequate funding for the Web Academy is grounds for the
District to terminate this charter. Any financial commitment on
the part of the District contained in this contract is subject to
annual appropriation by the District and the parties agree that the
District has no obligation to fund the Web Academy operations
except as expressly provided herein.

(1) On or before May 1 of each year, the Web Academy shall submit
to the District for its approval, the Web Academy’s proposed
budget for the upcoming school year.

(i1) The Web Academy will contract with the District for all services
that the Web Academy may wish to purchase from the District.
The Web Academy may request further services and if the District
wishes in its sole discretion to provide those services, the Web

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 10 -

Academy shall pay the cost of those services based upon the
District’s actual cost.

(i11))  The cost of contracted services shall be charged against and
deducted from the funding provided to the Web Academy from the
District as set forth above.

(iv)  The fiscal year of the Web Academy shall begin on July 1 of each
year and end on June 30 of the subsequent year.

(v) The payroll and associated payroll costs for District employees
working at the Web Academy shall be deducted from the funding
provided to the Web Academy by the District in paragraph 7.A.

Financial Records, Audits and Accounting Reports

The Web Academy agrees to establish, maintain and retain appropriate
financial records in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local
laws, rules and regulations and to make such records available to the
School District, as requested, from time to time. The Web Academy will
submit monthly accounting reports to the District. The Web Academy
shall have an annual audit of its accounts in accordance with the
Municipal Audit Law, ORS 297.405 to 297.555 and 297.998. The Web
Academy will provide the District with a copy of the audit by October 15
of each year. If the District provides for the audit of the Web Academy,
the Web Academy will still be responsible for the cost of the audit.

(1) Financial Management. The Web Academy shall operate in
accordance with GAAP or other generally accepted standards of
fiscal management, provided that the Web Academy’s accounting
method shall comply in all instances with applicable governmental
accounting requirements. The Web Academy’s budget and
accounting system must be compatible with the District’s budget
and accounting system.

(i1) Budget and Cash Flow. The Web Academy shall prepare and
provide to the Board a copy of its annual budget and quarterly cash
flow projections for each fiscal year by no later than May 1
immediately preceding such fiscal year.

(i11))  Distribution of Funds. The District shall distribute the school year
Web Academy funds as determined in paragraph 7.A., according to
the District’s receipt of the distribution from the State of Oregon.

The District shall establish a similar distribution schedule for all
future school years that the Web Academy is in operation and
provide written notification to the Web Academy of the
distribution schedule.

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 11 -

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Refund of Unspent Funds. In the event that this contract is
revoked or is not renewed by the District, the Web Academy shall
refund to the State Board of Education all unspent funds in
accordance with ORS Chapter 338.105(b).

Other Sources of Funds for the Web Academy. The parties
acknowledge that the Web Academy is or may be entitled to other
state and federal sources of funds for schools which are not
included in the per capita tuition payment described in this
contract.

Outside Funding. The Web Academy may accept gifts, donations
or grants pursuant to ORS Chapter 338, provided that no such
gifts, grants or donations may be accepted if contrary to applicable
law or to the terms of this contract. In the event that the Web
Academy solicits funding from sources other than the District, it
shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws regarding
reporting of such charitable solicitations. The Web Academy shall
annually report all gifts, donations and grants to the District by
recording the same in the financial records required in paragraph
7.C. above.

Statement of Management and Financial Controls. At all times,
the Web Academy shall maintain appropriate governance and
managerial procedures and financial controls. The Web Academy
shall contract with a certified public accountant or other similar
professional for an annual financial audit described in ORS
338.045(2) and ORS Chapter 297. At its discretion, the Web
Academy may contract with the District to provide this service, in
which event the Web Academy shall pay the actual cost of the
audit to the District. This certified public accountant or other
similar professional shall perform a review of the Web Academy’s
management and financial controls and who shall provide a
statement to the District no later than November 30 of each school
year concerning the status of those controls. The initial statement
must address whether the Web Academy has the following in
place: (1) generally accepted accounting procedures; (2)a
checking account; (3)adequate payroll procedures; (4) bylaws;
(5) an organizational chart; and (6) procedures for the creation and
review of monthly and quarterly financial statements, which
procedure shall specifically identify the individual who will be
responsible for preparing such financial statements in the following
fiscal year. This information may be submitted in conjunction
with the annual audit. In the event that the initial statement reveals
that any of the above controls is not in place, the Web Academy
shall remedy such deficiency no later than September 30 of each
school year.

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 12 -

(viii) The Web Academy shall provide the District with copies of letters
from the Web Academy auditor to the Web Academy Board or the
Web Academy Executive Director.

D. Building

The Web Academy is solely responsible for procuring a suitable location
for its operations. So long as it continues to be mutually agreeable, the
Web Academy will be provided space for its operations in a District
facility at a rental rate to be mutually agreed upon between the parties. In
the event the District no longer will provide space in its facilities for the
Web Academy, and if the Web Academy is unable to find a suitable
alternative location, it will be grounds for termination of the charter
agreement.

(1) The Web Academy may change its physical location or obtain
additional facilities provided that the Web Academy fulfills the
obligations and provides the information set forth in this section
with respect to such new or additional facilities, and provided
further that the Web Academy notifies the District of the proposed
change in location or addition of facilities not less than 30 days
prior to taking any final action in connection therewith.

Governance and Operation

The Web Academy shall govern and operate the charter school as set forth in its
application to the extent permissible under federal and state law and subject to all
conditions of this contract. In addition, the application is amended as follows,
which amendments, and all other provisions of this contract, shall supersede and
control over any conflicting language contained in the application:

A. Governing Board

The governing board of the Web Academy shall consist of 3-9 members,
or an amount consistent with its Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws. A
person who is a member of the District’s board may not also be a member
of the governing body of the Web Academy. A person who is a member
of the governing body of the Web Academy may not be an employee of a
third-party entity with which the Web Academy has entered, or intends to
enter, into a contract to provide educational services.

B. Corporate Status

The Web Academy is and will remain an Oregon nonprofit corporation.
Before making any changes in its Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, the
Web Academy agrees to get prior approval from the District. The Web
Academy’s Articles of Incorporation and/or Bylaws will include a
provision specifying that upon dissolution, voluntary or otherwise, assets

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 13 -

not requiring return or transfer to donors or grantors or required for
discharge of existing liabilities and obligations of the Web Academy or
required to be turned over to the Oregon Department of Education
pursuant to ORS 338.105(6) shall be returned to the District. Unless a
donor or grantor specifically provides otherwise, all gifts, donations and
grants are assumed to belong to the charter school, and shall be included
among the assets returned to the District upon dissolution.

Conflict of Interest

The governing board and any employees of the Web Academy shall
comply with District policies and regulations and state law regarding
public employee ethics and conflicts of interest.

Nonreligious, Nonsectarian Status

The Web Academy agrees that it shall operate, in all respects, as a
nonsectarian, nonreligious public school. The Web Academy shall not be
affiliated with any nonpublic sectarian school or religious organization.

Nondiscrimination

The Web Academy shall comply with all applicable federal, state and
local laws, rules and regulations regarding nondiscrimination, including,
without limitation, statutory and constitutional provisions prohibiting
discrimination on the basis of disability, age, race, creed, color, sex,
national origin, religion, ancestry, marital status, political beliefs and/or
affiliations, or sexual orientation.

Accountability

The Web Academy shall be accountable to the District and subject to all
District policies and regulations unless specifically waived by the District.
All records established and maintained in accordance with the provisions
of this contract, Board policy, and federal and state law shall be open to
inspection by the District. The Web Academy shall participate in the
statewide assessment system developed by the Department of Education
under ORS 329.485(1). The Web Academy is obligated to collect and
provide such data regarding staffing, student enrollment, student records,
and school operations, upon request by the District.

Public Meetings

The Web Academy and its Board of Directors are subject to the provisions
of the Oregon Public Meetings Law, ORS 192.610 to 192.690.

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 14 -

Indigent Students

The Web Academy shall waive all fees for indigent students in accordance
with District policy and applicable federal and state law. The Web
Academy shall survey its student population for eligibility for free and
reduced lunches under federal and state law if it elects to provide lunch for
its students.

Operational Powers

Subject to the conditions and provisions of this contract, the Web
Academy through its Board of Directors shall be fiscally responsible for
its own operations within the limitations of any funding provided by the
School District and other revenues derived by the Web Academy
consistent with law.

(1) Web Academy Powers: The Web Academy shall have authority to
exercise independently, also consistent with federal and state law,
the following powers (including such other powers as provided for
elsewhere in this contract): contract for goods and services
necessary for the operation of the Web Academy; prepare a
budget; procure insurance; lease facilities for school purposes;
purchase, lease or rent furniture, equipment and supplies; retain
fees collected from students in accordance with law; organize and
carry out fundraising efforts; and accept and expend gifts,
donations or grants of any kind in accordance with such conditions
prescribed by the donor as are consistent with law and not contrary
to any of the terms of this contract.

(i1) Web Academy Responsibilities: The Web Academy is responsible
for drafting and implementing the following plans pursuant to ORS
338.120:

a) A plan for academic achievement that addresses how the Web
Academy will improve student learning and meet academic
content standards required by ORS 329.045.

b) A plan to establish performance criteria the Web Academy will
use to measure the progress of the Web Academy in meeting
the academic performance goals set by the Web Academy for
its first five years of operation.

¢) A plan for implementing the proposed education program of
the Web Academy by directly and significantly involving
parents and guardians of students enrolled in the Web
Academy and involving the professional employees of the Web
Academy.

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



d) A budget, business plan and governance plan for the operation
of the Web Academy.

e) A plan for maintaining student records and school records,
including financial records, at a designated central office of
operations that is located within the District.

f) A plan to provide equitable access to the education program of
the Web Academy by ensuring that each student enrolled in the
Web Academy:

1) Has access to and use of computer and printer equipment as
needed;

2) Is offered an Internet service cost reimbursement
arrangement under which the Web Academy reimburses
the parent or guardian of the student, at a rate set by the
Web Academy, for the costs of obtaining Internet service at
the minimum connection speed required to effectively
access the education program provided by the Web
Academy; or

3) Has access to and use of computer and printer equipment
and is offered Internet service cost reimbursement.

g) A plan to provide access to computer and printer equipment
and the Internet service cost reimbursement by students
enrolled in the Web Academy who are from families that
qualify as low-income under Title I.

h) A plan to conduct Web Academy-sponsored optional
educational events at least six times each school year at
locations selected to provide convenient access to all students
enrolled in the Web Academy who want to participate.

1) A plan to conduct meetings at least twice a week between
teachers and students enrolled in the Web Academy, either in
person or through the use of conference calls or other
technology.

j) A plan to provide opportunities for face-to-face meetings
between teachers and students enrolled in the Web Academy at
least six times each school year.

J. Bidding Requirements

Unless purchased from or through the District, contractual services and
purchases of supplies, materials and equipment shall be procured through

Page 15- CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 16 -

a system of competitive bidding as required by District policy and state
law.

Third-Party Contracts

The Web Academy shall not enter into any contract for comprehensive
school management or operation services to be performed in substantial
part by an entity not a party to this contract, unless the Web Academy has
first submitted such contract to the District for approval and executed a
contract services rider with the District acceptable to the District.

Annual Report and Review

The Web Academy will submit an annual report by November 30 to the
District which will include, without limitation, the following:

(1) Summary data on the progress toward meeting its academic goals
and objectives;

(i1) The audited financial statements of the Web Academy, including
proofs of insurance;

(ii1))  Policy development issues;
(iv)  Student attendance and student discipline information;
(v) Any recommendations regarding personnel matters; and

(vi)  Any other information the District deems necessary to demonstrate
that the Web Academy is in compliance with state and federal law
and the terms of this contract.

The parties agree that the District will be responsible for obtaining an
independent charter review for the purpose of this annual evaluation. The
Web Academy will reimburse the District for the costs of this review up to
the amount of $7,500.

Term

The Web Academy charter and this contract are to be effective as of the
date both parties approve and sign the contract, and will last until midnight
on June 30, 2017, subject to subsection N, below. This contract may be
renewed by joint agreement between the District and the Web Academy.

In the event the contract is not renewed prior to the expiration of the
contract, this contract shall terminate at midnight on June 30, 2017, and
the Web Academy shall dissolve pursuant to paragraph 8.N.

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 17 -

N. Termination

(1) Grounds for Termination: The District may revoke the charter and
terminate this contract on any of the following grounds:

a) Violation of or failure to meet and sustain any terms of this
contract or sections 1 to 23 of ORS Chapter 338.

b) Failure to meet the requirements for student performance
contained in Section 6 of this contract.

c) Violation of any federal or state law.
d) Failure to maintain insurance as described in this contract.
e) Failure to maintain financial stability.

(i)  Notice and Appeal: The District shall provide 60 days prior
written notice of its intent to terminate the charter agreement. The
Web Academy may appeal the District’s decision to terminate the
charter agreement directly to District Board. The Web Academy
may respond to the allegations in the District’s written notification
by offering documentary evidence. The District Board may, at its
discretion, allow oral argument. The Board’s decision may only be
appealed to the Oregon Department of Education according to
ORS 338.105.

(i11))  Web Academy Decision to Terminate: Should the Web Academy
choose to terminate this contract and revoke its charter before the
end of the contract term, it may do so with the Board’s approval
upon 180 days’ advance written notice. Pursuant to ORS
338.105(7), the Web Academy’s governing board may only
terminate this charter, dissolve or close a public charter school at
the end of a semester. In the event of termination, all assets not
requiring return or transfer to donors or grantors or required for
discharge of existing liabilities and operations of the Web
Academy or required to be given to the State Board of Education
pursuant to ORS 338.105(6) shall be returned to the District .

0. Dissolution

In the event the Web Academy should cease operations for whatever
reason, including, but not limited to, the nonrenewal or revocation of its
charter, or dissolution of the nonprofit corporation, it is agreed that the
District Board shall supervise and have authority to conduct the winding
up of the business and affairs of the Web Academy; provided, however,
that in doing so, the District does not assume any liability incurred by the
Web Academy beyond the funds allocated to it by the District under this

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 18 -

contract. The District’s authority hereunder shall include, but not be
limited to, the return and/or disposition of any assets acquired by purchase
or donation by the Web Academy during the time of its existence. All
assets not requiring return or transfer to donors or grantors or required for
discharge of existing liabilities and obligations of the Web Academy or
required to be given to the State Board of Education pursuant to ORS
338.105(6) shall be returned to the District. Upon dissolution, the Web
Academy must transfer all student education records to the District.

P. Renewal
The contract renewal process will be governed by ORS 338.065.

Employment Matters

The Web Academy will serve as the employer for the staff at the Web Academy.
This designation will apply to all of the Web Academy’s licensed and classified
staff and administrators

A. Hiring of Personnel

Hiring of personnel by the Web Academy will be at the sole discretion of
the Web Academy, but the teaching and administrative staff at the Web
Academy shall be licensed in accordance with ORS 338.135. All staffing
changes in the Web Academy must be reported to the District via email
within five business days. The District will send an all-staff database
document to the Web Academy each summer with the District’s current
information about Web Academy staff. The Academy must revise and
update the document as necessary, and return it to the District no later than
August 15.

In accordance with 338.120(1)(f) all superintendents, assistant
superintendents and principals must be licensed and licensed teachers
must teach at least 95 percent of the Web Academy’s instructional hours.
For any individual hired as a teacher, the Web Academy shall retain in its
records evidence of the teacher’s certification, or other qualifications of
the teacher; such evidence will be made available to the District at times
the District conducts its visit and review of Web Academy compliance
with this Agreement under ORS 338.095(1). In addition, no later than
August 15 of each year the Academy will send to the District a list of all
licensed (teaching) staff, their licensure and their Highly Qualified status
with the Teachers Standards and Practices Commission.

The Web Academy acknowledges that it has been informed of and agrees
to fully comply with Oregon law as it relates to hiring independent
contractors to provide services to the Web Academy. The Web Academy
further agrees to notify the District in writing of its intent to hire an
independent contractor prior to hiring that independent contractor. The

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 19 -

Web Academy further acknowledges that any independent contractor that
is proposed to be hired by the Web Academy shall be subject to section
9.M. of this contract relating to Criminal Background Checks.

Employee Compensation, Evaluation and Discipline

The Web Academy will make all decisions regarding compensation,
evaluation, promotion, discipline and termination of employees working at
the Web Academy.

(1) The Web Academy will be responsible for the supervision and
evaluation of the teaching staff within the Web Academy.

Payroll

Web Academy employees may be paid through the payroll department of
the District if and when the parties agree to this arrangement in writing In
the absence of an agreement the Web Academy is responsible for all
payroll functions for its employees.

PERS

Pursuant to ORS Chapter 338, the Web Academy shall participate in the
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) for its own employees.

Employee Welfare and Safety

The Web Academy shall comply with all District policies, and applicable
federal and state laws, concerning employee welfare, safety and health
issues.

Employee Records

The Web Academy shall be responsible for establishing and maintaining
personnel records for its employees working at the Web Academy.

Employee Conduct

The Web Academy shall ensure that its own employees comply with all
Web Academy policies and regulations, and applicable state law,
concerning employee conduct.

Placement Upon Revocation of Charter

In the event of termination or nonrenewal of this contract, the Web
Academy is responsible for the placement of its employees, and the
District has no obligation to place these employees.

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



I. Substitutes

The Web Academy may contract with the District for substitute teachers
from the District substitute pool. Whenever necessary, the Web Academy
will provide coverage for teachers requiring substitutes.

J. Licensure

Teachers employed by the Web Academy to work at the Web Academy
shall be licensed or registered with TSPC to teach in Oregon.

K. Professional Development

The Web Academy shall provide professional development opportunities
to Web Academy staff as provided for in District policy, state law, and
applicable collective bargaining agreements.

Web Academy shall train teachers in its educational program.

L. TSPC Obligation

The Web Academy’s administrator has all reporting obligations to TSPC
regarding Web Academy.

M. Criminal Background Checks

The Web Academy shall not knowingly employ any individual or allow an
individual to volunteer for whom a criminal background investigation has
not been initiated or who has been convicted of one or more offenses in
District Policy and Rule. No later than August 15 of each school year, the
Web Academy shall provide the District with a list containing the names,
job positions, and Social Security numbers of all of its employees and
volunteers. Such list shall also indicate:

(1) For each employee the date of initiation of the criminal
background investigation required by ORS 342.223;

(i1) For any individual hired in an instructional position after the start
of the current academic year, the Web Academy shall provide the
District with such evidence of certification or other qualification
no later than 30 days after the individual’s initial date of hire.

10. Insurance and Legal Liabilities

A. Insurance

(1) Provided by Web Academy: The Web Academy shall, at its own
expense, secure and retain and provide proof of the following

Page 20 - CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 21 -

insurance and in the amounts set forth below. The Web Academy
will also obtain, at its own expense, any further insurance that the
District deems necessary to protect the interests of the District or
the Web Academy.

a) Commercial General Liability Insurance in an amount of not
less than  $1,000,000 combined single limit per
occurrence/$3,000,000 general annual aggregate covering the Web
Academy, the governing board, employees and volunteers against
liability for damages because of personal injury, bodily injury,
death or damage to property including the loss of use thereof.
Coverage to include, but not limited to, contractual liability,
advertisers’ liability, employee benefits liability, professional
liability and teachers’ liability;

b) Liability Insurance for Directors and Officers in an amount not
less than $1,000,000 each 1loss/$3,000,000 annual aggregate
covering the Web Academy, the governing board, employees and
volunteers against liability arising out of wrongful acts and
employment practices. Continuous “claims made” coverage will be
acceptable, provided the retroactive date is on the effective date of
the charter;

c) Automobile Liability Insurance in an amount not less than
$1,000,000 combined single limit covering the Web Academy, the
governing board, employees and volunteers against liability for
damages because of bodily injury, death or damage to property,
including the loss of use thereof arising out of the ownership,
operation, maintenance or use of any automobile. The policy will
include underinsured and uninsured motorist vehicle coverage at
the limits equal to bodily injury limits;

d) Workers’ Compensation Insurance shall also be maintained
pursuant to Oregon laws (ORS Chapter 656). Employers’ liability
insurance with limits of $100,000 each accident, $100,000 disease
each employee and $500,000 each policy limit;

e) Honesty Bond to cover all employees and volunteers. Limits to
be determined by the governing board, but no less than $25,000.
Coverage shall include faithful performance and loss of moneys
and securities;

f) Property Insurance shall be required on all owned or leased
buildings or equipment. The insurance shall be written to cover the
full replacement cost of the building and/or equipment on an “all
risk of direct physical loss basis,” including earthquake and flood
perils

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 22 -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Provided by District: The District will provide insurance related to
all Web Academy staff employed by the District in the same
manner that it provides insurance relating to other District
employees. This cost shall be paid by the Web Academy as set
forth in this contract.

Required Proof of Insurance: No later than September 1 of each
year, and at any time upon the request of the District’s risk
manager, the Web Academy shall provide the District with
certificates of insurance or other satisfactory proof evidencing
coverage in the types and amounts set forth herein. All such
insurance policies shall contain a provision requiring notice to the
District, at least 30 days in advance, of any material change, non-
renewal or termination to the attention of the risk manager,
Gresham-Barlow School District.

Coordination of Risk Management Activities: The Web Academy
agrees that it will coordinate all risk management activities through
the District’s risk management office. This will include the
prompt reporting of any and all pending or threatened claims,
filing of timely notices of claims, and cooperating fully with the
District in the defense of any claims. The Web Academy shall not
compromise, settle, negotiate or otherwise effect any disposition of
potential claims asserted against it without the District’s prior
written approval. All other risk management activities other than
those involving claims shall be a contracted service paid by the
Web Academy as set forth in this contract.

B. Legal Liabilities

(i)

Non-Exemption: The Web Academy shall not be exempt from the
following federal and state laws and District policies governing
school districts:

a) Federal law.
b) ORS 192.410 to 192.505 (Public Records Law).
c) ORS 192.610 to 192.690 (Public Meetings Law).

d) ORS 297.405 to 297.555 and 297.990 (Municipal Audit
Law).

e) ORS 181.534, 326.603, 326.607, 342.223 and 342.232
(criminal records checks).

f) ORS 337.150 (textbooks).
g) ORS 339.141, 339.147 and 339.155 (tuition and fees).
h) ORS 659.850,659.855 and 659.860(discrimination).

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



1) ORS 30.260 to 30.300 (tort claims).
1) Health and safety statutes and rules.

k) The statewide assessment system developed by the
Department of Education under ORS 329.485.

1) ORS 392.045 (academic content areas).

m) Any statute or rule that establishes requirements for
instructional time provided by a school each day or during

a year.
n) Sections ORS Chapter 338.
0) Any other Board policy or rule later deemed necessary by

the District that does not otherwise materially alter the
terms of this contract.

p) Oregon Administrative Rules developed by the Oregon
Department of Education regarding ORS Chapter 338.

q) ORS 326.565, 326.575, 326.580 (student records).

r) ORS 329.451 (high school diploma, modified diploma,
extended diploma and alternative certificate).

s) ORS 339.326 (notice concerning students subject to
juvenile court petitions).

t) ORS Chapter 657 (Employment Department Law).

u) ORS 339.250(12) (prohibition on infliction of corporal
punishment);

V) ORS 339.370, 339.372, 339.388 and 339.400 (reporting of
sexual conduct and child abuse and training on prevention
and identification of sexual conduct and child abuse).

W) ORS 339.119 (consideration for educational services)

X) Any statute or rule that is listed in this charter agreement.
(i1) Compliance with District Policy/Rule: Except where otherwise

specified in this agreement, the Web Academy will comply with

all Gresham-Barlow School District policies and administrative
rules.

(i11)) The Web Academy shall furnish to the District copies of any
written policies or procedures it may develop with respect to any
matter relating to its operations and educational program upon
adoption of such policies by the Web Academy’s governing board
for District approval. Any policy that is beyond the Web
Academy’s powers under this contract or is otherwise inconsistent
with the terms of this contract as void.

Page 23 - CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



C. Waiver

The Web Academy may request waivers from specific Board policies or
regulations and/or state law by submitting the request, in writing, to the
District’s Superintendent. The Web Academy agrees that no waivers of
the District and State high academic standards shall be requested.

(1) The request shall include the reasons why the Web Academy is in
need of or desires the waiver. The Superintendent shall have 10
working days to review the request and arrive at a
recommendation. Thereafter, the Superintendent will present the
matter before the Board at its next regular meeting. Waivers of
District policies and regulations may be granted only to the extent
permitted by state law.

(i1) In the event the District policy or regulation from which the Web
Academy seeks a waiver is required by state law, or where the
Web Academy otherwise requests a waiver from a state law or
regulation, the Web Academy agrees to jointly request such a
waiver from the State Board of Education, pursuant to ORS
Chapter 338.

D. Full Faith and Credit

The Web Academy agrees that it will not extend the faith and credit of the
District to any third person or entity. The Web Academy acknowledges
and agrees that it has no authority to enter into a contract that would bind
the District and that the Web Academy’s authority to contract is limited by
the same provisions in law or District policy that apply to the District
itself. The Web Academy also is limited in its authority to contract by the
amount of funds obtained by the District, as provided in this contract, or
from other independent sources. The Web Academy’s governing board
has the authority to approve contracts to which the Web Academy is a
party, subject to the requirements and limitations of the Oregon
Constitution, state law, District policies and the provisions of this contract.

E. Indemnification

(1) Web Academy Indemnifies District: To the extent not covered by
insurance or otherwise barred by the Oregon Tort Claims Act in
ORS Chapter 30, the Web Academy agrees to indemnify and hold
the District, its Board, agents and employees harmless from all
liability, claims and demands on account of injury, loss or damage,
including, without limitation, claims arising from (1) the
possession, occupancy or use of property of the Web Academy, its
faculty, students, patrons, employees, guests or agents; (2) civil
rights violations, bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease,

Page 24 - CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



death, property loss or damage or any other losses of any kind
whatsoever which arise out of or are in any manner connected with
the Web Academy’s operations. The Web Academy agrees to
indemnify, hold harmless and defend the District from all contract
claims in which the Web Academy has obligated the District
without the District’s prior written approval. The foregoing
provision shall not be deemed a relinquishment or waiver of any
kind of applicable limitations of liability provided in the Oregon
Tort Claims Act.

(i1) District Indemnifies Web Academy: To the extent not covered by
insurance or otherwise barred by the Oregon Tort Claims Act in
ORS Chapter 30, District agrees to indemnify and hold the Web
Academy, its Board, agents and employees harmless from all
liability, claims and demands on account of injury, loss or damage,
including, without limitation, claims arising from civil rights
violations, bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, death,
property loss or damage or any other losses of any kind whatsoever
which arise out of or are in any manner connected with District’s
operations. This indemnification shall not apply to any liability
claims or demands resulting from the negligence or wrongful act or
omission of any Web Academy Board member, officer, or
employee. This indemnification shall not apply to any liability
claims or demands resulting from the negligence or wrongful act of
any District employee working at the Web Academy whose
negligent or wrongful act or omission is caused or directed by the
Web Academy. This indemnification shall not apply to any
damages incurred regarding any act or omission of the District or
District Board that is later determined to be required by law or this
contract. The foregoing provision shall not be deemed a
relinquishment or waiver of any kind of applicable limitations of
liability provided in the Oregon Tort Claims Act.

(i11))  Survival of Indemnification: This indemnification, defense and
hold harmless obligation on behalf of the Web Academy and the
District shall survive the termination of this contract. Any
indemnified party shall have the right, at its own expense, to
participate in the defense of any suit, without relieving the
indemnifying party of any of its obligations hereunder.

F. District Disclaimer of Liability

The parties to this contract expressly acknowledge that the Web Academy
i1s not operating as the agent, or under the direction and control, of the
District Board except as required by law or this contract, and that the
District Board assumes no liability for any loss or injury resulting from:

Page 25 - CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



(1) The acts or omissions of the Web Academy, its directors, trustees,
agents or employees;

(i1) The use and occupancy of the building occupied by the Web
Academy or any matter in connection with the condition of such
building; or

(i11))  Any debt or contractual obligation incurred by the Web Academy.

G. ADA/504 Obligations

The Web Academy acknowledges that it is legally responsible to comply
with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659 with respect to its students, staff
and patrons. The Web Academy will indemnify and hold harmless the
District from all claims under these statutes. The Web Academy may
contract with the District for services or accommodations to meet the Web
Academy’s legal obligations under these statutes as set forth in this
contract.

11. Transportation

Web Academy students may obtain transportation through the student’s
parent/guardian or existing public school bus lines.

A. The District is responsible for providing transportation to Web Academy
students along existing public school bus lines.

12. Miscellaneous Provisions

A. Entire Agreement

This contract, with attachments, contains all terms, conditions and
provisions hereof and the entire understanding and all representations of
understandings and discussions of the parties relating thereto, and all prior
representations, understandings and discussions are merged herein and
superseded and cancelled by this contract.

B. Governing Law

This contract shall be governed by, subject to and construed under the
laws of the State of Oregon without regard to its conflicts of law
provisions. The parties intend that where this contract references federal
or state law that they be bound by any amendment to such laws, upon the
effective date of such amendments.

Page 26 - CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



Page 27 -

Assignment

This contract may not be assigned or delegated by the Web Academy
under any circumstances, it being expressly understood that the charter
granted by this contract runs solely and exclusively to the Web Academy.

Terms and Conditions of Application

The parties to this contract agree that the attached application sets forth the
overall goals, standards and general operational policies of the Web
Academy, and that the application is not a complete statement of each
detail of the Web Academy’s operation. To the extent that the Web
Academy desires to implement specific policies, procedures or other
specific terms of operation that supplement or otherwise defer from those
in the application, the Web Academy shall be permitted to implement such
policies, procedures and specific terms of operation, provided that such
policies, procedures and terms of operation are consistent with the goals,
standards and general operational policies set forth in the application, this
contract and ORS Chapter 338 and with District approval.

Amendment

This contract may be modified or amended only by written agreement
between the Web Academy and the District Superintendent or his/her
designee.

Notice

Any notice required, or permitted, under this contract, shall be in writing
and shall be effective upon personal delivery (subject to verification of
service or acknowledgement of receipt) or three days after mailing when
sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, to the Web Academy Board of
Directors at 1426 SE 5th St., Gresham, Oregon 97080, or the office of the
Superintendent of the District.

No Waiver

The parties agree that no assent, express or implied, to any breach by
either of them of any one or more of the covenants and agreements
expressed herein shall be deemed or be taken to constitute a waiver of any
succeeding or other breach.

Dispute Resolution

In the event any dispute arises between the District and the Web Academy
concerning this contract, including, without limitation, the implementation
of or waiver from any policies, regulations or procedures, such dispute
shall first be submitted to the Superintendent of the District for review. If

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



the District and the Web Academy are unable to resolve the dispute, either
party may submit the matter to the District’s Board for its consideration.
The decision of the Board shall be final and binding on the parties;
provided, however, the Web Academy may appeal to the State Board of
Education concerning those matters within its jurisdiction under ORS
Chapter 338.

Severability

If any provision of this contract is determined to be unenforceable or
invalid for any reason, the remainder of the contract shall remain in effect,
unless otherwise terminated by one or both of the parties in accordance
with the terms of this contract.

Delegation

The parties agree and acknowledge that the functions and powers of the
District Board may be exercised by Superintendent of the District,
provided that any ultimate decision regarding renewal, non-renewal or
revocation of this contract may be made only by the District Board.

Prior Actions

It is expressly agreed and understood that as a condition precedent to this
contract becoming effective on the effective date specified above in
paragraph 2, the Web Academy shall have taken, completed and satisfied
on or before the date specified herein any action or obligation which is
required to be completed before such effective date, and failure to do so
shall constitute grounds for the District to declare this contract null and
void.

Web Academy Authority to Enter Into Contract

The Web Academy expressly affirms that the signatories on its behalf who
sign below have the authority to enter into this contract on behalf of the
Web Academy and that the Board of Directors of the Web Academy has
duly approved of this contract. The Web Academy shall provide a copy of
its written resolution authorizing the Web Academy to enter into this
contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this contract as of the date first
above written.

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL GRESHAM-BARLOW WEB ACADEMY

DISTRICT

PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL

Gresham-Barlow School District Board Gresham-Barlow Web Academy Public

Page 28 -

Charter School Board of Directors

CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



By: By:

Dale Clark, Board Chair Chairperson, Web Academy Board

Page 29 - CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACT



TABLE OF CONTENTS

RIECITALS ttececececccccccccccccsesesssssssssssssssssscscscssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 1
GRANT OF CHARTER .ocecececececcccccccccesesesesesssssesssssssssssssssssssscssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssses 2
EFFECTIVE DATE cocecececectcectcecccccscccsesesesesesssssssssssssssssssssscscssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssses 2
PHILOSOPHY AND MISSION tececcccccccecececesesscssecssssssssscssscscscsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 2
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES cectccccccccccccececesesesesssecssssssssssssssscscscsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 2
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM, STUDENT PERFORMANCE STANDARDS AND CURRICULUM ...ccceeceeee 2
AGE AND GRADE RANGE ..euiitiniiiiiiiiiitiitttteiteteneateteneateseneasesessaseseseasessssasessssasessssesessnsesessnsesesensesessnsnne 2
CURRICULUM t1tttenttetenentesensesesensesessnsesessnsessssnsessssnsessssnsesessnsessssnsesessnsesessnsesessnsessssnsesensnsesensnsesensnsesns 2
EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 1t tututeutnteteneneeseneasesesensesesssesesensesessnsesesensessssnsessssnssessssnsessssnsessssnsesessnsesns 3
R COR DS . tutitttiiiet ittt ittt ettt eeteteneseseaesesenensesensnsesesensessnsnsesssensessssnsesessnsessnsnsessssnsesensnsesensnsenenenne 3
INONDISCRIMINATION .. ututesentteneneesesensesensasesesensesessasessssasessssesessssesessssesessssssessssesessnsesessnsesesensnsessnsesenens 4
OPEN ENROLLMENT «tuttutttttntetesentetesensesesensesssssesesensesessnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesssssesessnsesessnsesessnsesns 4
AADMISSION .tuttntntenenenteeenresesensesesensesesensesessnsesesensessssnsesessnsessssnsessssnsessssnsessssnsessssesessssnsssessesesensnsenensnne 5
STUDENT ATTENDANCE, CONDUCT AND DISCIPLINE ...tutttntitttenteteseneeseseneesesensesesensesesensessssnsesessnsessssnsessnens 5
EDUCATION OF STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES .t uutututesttetesensesesensesesensesesensesessnsesescnsessssssesensnsessssssesensnsesns 6
ACADEMICALLY LOW ACHIEVING STUDENTS 11 tututtttnteteneteseneasesensaseseseasessssasessssasessssesessssessssnsesessssasessnsnns 7
0 5 1 (0 ) N 7
STUDENT WELFARE AND SAFETY tuttuttttutnteteseeeseeensesesensesesensesesensesessssesessssesessnsesessnsesessssesessnssssssnsessnens 7
ENGLISH AS A SECOND LANGUAGE ..ttiniititiitititeiteteneneetenensesesensessssssesesensesessssessssnsessssssesensnsesessnsesensnsesns 7
HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES ... tuututtttsttetteeieesenenseeensaseseseasesessasessssssessssasessssasessssesessssessssssesessnsesessnsnne 8
SCHOOL YEAR; SCHOOL DAY ; HOURS OF OPERATION ..uuuututntteeneeseseneesesensesesensesesensesesensessssnsesessnsessssnsessnens 8
ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION IMODEL ..ututittntititttetenensetenensesesensesessesesssensessssasessssasessssesesssssssssnsasessnsasessnsnne 8
EVALUATION OF STUDENT PERFORMANCE c.ccectcectcecececccccccccccccccssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesessssseses 8
ECONOMIC PLAN, BUDGET AND ANNUAL AUDIT .cccecececccccccccccccccsccecssesssssscssssscscscscscssssscssscssssssseses 9
01111011 N 9
211615 AN 9
FINANCIAL RECORDS, AUDITS AND ACCOUNTING REPORTS..uuuiutititineitetineateeeneareseneasesenensesenessssensesessnensenes 10
236115 5) 1€ N 12
GOVERNANCE AND OPERATION cccececececececececececscscscscscscscscssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 12
GOVERNING BOARD ... uitiiiiiiiiiitiiiiieeiteteeeeeteneeteseneasesensasesssessesssssesesensesessnsesesensesessnsesensnsnsensnsasenens 12
CORPORATE STATUS t1ttuenttteneeteseneaseeensesesensasessssesessssasessssasessssssesessssesssensessssssesessnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesesens 12
CONFLICT OF INTEREST .eututentntettneeteeeneaseseneasesensesessseasessssasessssssesssssessssnsessssnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesenens 13
NONRELIGIOUS, NONSECTARIAN STATUS t1ttuttettneeteeeneeseseneesesensesesensessssssesessssesessssesessssesessssesessssesessnsnns 13
INONDISCRIMINATION ..t tutttnetreeneeseseneesesensesesensesessssesessssessssssesesssssssssssesessssesessssesessssesessssasessssnsesensnne 13
ACCOUNTABILITY tttututeuenteseseneesesensesesensesessnsasessssasessssesessssssessssesessssssessssesessssssessssssesessssessnsssesessnsesns 13
PUBLIC IMEETINGS 1t tttuttttntiteteneeeeeeneeseseneesessnsesessnsasessssesessssssessssesessssasessssesessssssessssssesssensessnsssesssensesns 13
INDIGENT STUDENTS tuttutntttenteteseneeseeeneesesensesessssesessssasesssssessssssesessssessssnsessssnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesenens 14
OPERATIONAL POWERS .eututiniitetintittteneiteseneaeeeeneaseseseasessssasesssessessssssesesensesessnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesenens 14
BIDDING REQUIREMENTS ..eututtntitetenteteseneesesensaseseneesessnsesesssessessssesessssesessssasessssssessssnsessssnsessnsssesssensesns 15
THIRD-PARTY CONTRACTS st tttutettneeteeeneaseseneesesensesessseasessssasessssssesessssesessnsessssnsesessnsssessnsesessnsesessnsesenens 16
ANNUAL REPORT AND REVIEW .eutttiniiiititiiiteneiteseneateeeneasesenessessnsesessseasessssasessssasessssssesssensessnsssessnensesns 16
23 0 16
TERMINATION . .1t tutntestneeteeeneeseseneesessnsesesensasessssesessssnsesssssessssnsesessnsesesensesessnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesessnsesenens 17

Page 1 - TABLE OF CONTENTS



DISSOLUTION t.ututitintiteteneeteseneaseeensaseneneesessnsesessnsasessssesesssessessssnsessssssessssesessssnsessssnsesssensesensssesesensesns 17

RENEW AL ettt ettt ettt et ettt e e e et e sa e sen e eaaaenenansaeansantnsnseasnseasnssesnsessnsnsensnsensnsnnnn 18
EMPLOYMENT MATTERS . tctctctctcscscsesesesesesesesesesssssscscscscscscscscssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssseses 18
HIRING OF PERSONNEL ... tttuttntntiiteeietentetneeetneneteeneeenraensetnsnseasnsesnsesnsessnssseasnseesnssesnsessnssseesnseasnsans 18
EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION, EVALUATION AND DISCIPLINE ...eutittriitrteneiteeeneneeeenensesesensesessnsesesensesessnsesenens 19
PAYROLL ..ttt ettt ettt e et e et e e et sa e eaeaaenenensaesnsantnsnseasnseasnsaesnsastnsnsensnsensnsenn 19
BENEFITS .ottt ettt ettt et e et e et e ettt e e est e e et eesabeeesnteeeensneesnnees ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
] 2 2 SO 19
EMPLOYEE WELFARE AND SAFETY ...cceeieiiiiiiiiieieeeee e 19
EMPLOYEE RECORDS .....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 19
EMPLOYEE CONDUCT .....cceiiiieiieee et 19
PLACEMENT UPON REVOCATION OF CHARTER .......cvvvveeereerereereeeseneeesesssesssssesssssssssssssesesssssssessssrssesnnsnnne 19
SUBSTITUTES e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeasasaesesesaseassessasessssssesssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsens 20
LICENSURE ....ccoiiiiiieeee e 20
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT ......evvvvveeeeereeeseeeeseeseeeeessesesessssesssssssssssssssseessssssssssssssserssssssessssrsrernrennne 20
TSPC OBLIGATION .....ceeeeeeeeeee e 20
CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS .....ceeeeiiiiieieeeeeeee e 20
INSURANCE AND LEGAL LIABILITIES ceuetcececececececscscscscscscscscscscsssssssssssssssssssssscscscsssssssssssesssssessssse 20
INSURANCE ...ttt 20
LEGAL LIABILITIES ....ccoeeiieieeeee e 22
WAIVER ..oevveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseseeesaseseeesssessssssssesasessssssssssssssssesssssnssssssssssnnsesesesnsnsnssssrssnsnnnnnnes 24
FULL FAITH AND CREDIT ...vvvvvvvvereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseesseeesssessssesessssssesssssssesssesssssesssssssssssesessressresersrererererennne 24
INDEMNIFICATION ....ceiiiiieieeeee e 24
DISTRICT DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY ...evvvvvvvevreeesreeseeeeeseeseeeesesesessessssssesesseessssssssssssssssrssssssessssrsserenennne 25
ADA/S504 OBLIGATIONS ...vvvvveveeeeeeeeseseeeseseseeeseeesseeseseeseseeseeeseeereseseseeeerrerreeeeeererererererrrere...—.—————. 26
TRANSPORTATION tececececococscscscscscsesesesesssesssssssssssssssssscscscsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 26
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS tttetetesececececesesesssssscscscscscscscscssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssse 26
ENTIRE AGREEMENT ....ccoiiiiiiiiiiie e 26
GOVERNING LAW it 26
ASSIGNMENT ....evvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeseseeessesesessesesesssssssssssssssnsssssssssssssesesesssnsnssssresnsnnnnnnes 27
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF APPLICATION.......ccceeiiieieeeeeeeeeeee e 27
AMENDMENT .....evvtteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseesesesssseseeesssssssessessesssssssssesssssssssssssnssssreresnnnnnnes 27
INOTICE t1vvvvvvuvuuesssssssssesesssssssssssssesssssesssssesesessessssssessssassssssesenssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssrssnsnssnnnes 27
INO WAIVER ..vvvvvvuutueusuesssesssssssssssesssssssssesesesesssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssessesensesssssnrrerererererereeererere.. 27
DISPUTE RESOLUTION ....cvvvvveeereeeeeessseeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeseeeseseesssssessesssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssseresssssessssrsrnrnrennnes 27
SEVERABILITY «.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeesasaeaesesasesasessssessssssssssssesssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssns 28
DELEGATION ...vvvveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesseessseseeessseseeesseeseseesseesesessssesesssesssssesssssessssssssssssseseresssssnssssrsrnsnrennnes 28
PRIOR ACTIONS.....cevvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeseseseeeseeeseseeeseesesessesessessesesssesssseessssssssssssseseresssssssessrsrnsnrnnnnes 28
WEB ACADEMY AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT .vututunentnrenenrenenreeenreeeneneeenseaenseeenseseasnseasnseaensenns 28

Page 2 - TABLE OF CONTENTS



EXHIBIT A

Gresham-Barlow Web Academy
A Final Charter School Proposal

1. Applicant

The applicant is the Gresham-Barlow Web Academy initial planning committee composed of
Gresham-Barlow School District (GBSD) staff and community members. Members of the
planning committee include:

e Tim Drilling, Director of Student Achievement

* Mike Harris

e Lisa Turner

* Connie Rice

2. School Name

Gresham-Barlow Web Academy

3. Mission and Philosophy
The mission of the Gresham-Barlow Web Academy is to provide a high quality educational
option for children who are not currently served by a public/private school. We estimate that
about 500 school-age children residing in the Gresham-Barlow School District are not enrolled
in our district for a variety of reasons. Some are home schooled or home bound, and others
have simply stopped attending. We believe it is in the best interest of the children and our
community to provide an educational option that offers a route to attainment of a regular high
school diploma. The Web Academy proposes to provide such an alternative using effective
computer technologies and quality curriculum materials delivered online to reach children who
would not otherwise have access to a traditional program of studies leading to a diploma.

Our philosophy of education is anchored in individualized student plans. Each of our students
will engage with curriculum materials that match their academic needs. Progress will be tracked
continuously through the learning program, called a learning management system (LMS).

It is also our intent to provide strong, focused support for each student to deliver the feedback
and encouragement needed to stimulate and sustain progress through the computer-based
courseware. Highly qualified teachers will interact regularly with students both in planning
courses of study and monitoring progress. Parents will play a vital mentoring role in working with
their children.

4. Distinctive Learning and Teaching Techniques
What makes our approach unique is that we plan to offer instruction via computer and deliver it
directly to students outside of school buildings. Each student enrolled full time in the Web
Academy will be loaned a laptop computer. Instruction will be delivered via an Internet
connection and provided by a proven source of online curriculum programs.

Each student will have a teacher who will help plan the program of instruction, closely monitor
progress and provide academic support. Most teacher interaction with students will be made via
electronic communications, both email and virtual meetings, though face-to-face visits will also
be scheduled to build rapport and strengthen accountability.

Page 1 - EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A

Parents will play a key role in mentoring and supporting student learning on a day-to-day basis.
They will provide support and encouragement and establish a quiet academic working
environment. They will partner with their student’s teacher to support achievement.

In addition to the computer-based instruction, students who reside within the Gresham-Barlow
School District boundaries will have the opportunity to participate in enrichments provided by
GBSD. They will be able to enroll in art and music classes in neighborhood schools and
participate in sports and clubs. The Academy will also sponsor seminars, field trips and
additional face-to-face activities with other students. These activities will offer important peer
and adult socialization opportunities—and a break from interaction just with a computer.

5. Curriculum
The Academy has carefully thought through the unique design of the instructional program and
the factors needed to achieve student success. At this point we are pursuing a comprehensive
learning management system (LMS) which might include curriculum, technology and marketing.

Curriculum

The curriculum will be delivered via the Internet by an online computer-based instruction
company. The program will be prescriptive, interactive and personalized. Content is arranged
in courses of study that prepare students to meet graduation requirements.

Any online instructional program has be research based and shown to be as effective, when
carefully implemented, as regular classroom instruction. A program must include built-in
progress assessments and report results on learning progress automatically to the teachers,
making monitoring simple and efficient.

Qualifying high school students will also eventually have the option of enrolling in Mt. Hood
Community College online courses. As a result, some students may earn college credit for work
completed in high school. We see this as a strong incentive to perform well in regular high
school coursework.

In addition to mastery of the core curriculum content, students will also gain important computer
technology skills that are so important in many workplaces. In this way, the Academy further
prepares students for success in higher education and in the world of work.

Instructional Program

Academy students will be expected to be enrolled in five to six courses of computer-based
instruction. However, the actual schedule of academic work time is flexible and negotiated
between the teacher, parent-coach and student. At least once a week, teachers will make
contact with students to provide feedback, assist with planning and help solve problems.
Especially for younger students, parents will be key partners and participants in these meetings.

Student work will be guided by a student educational plan developed jointly by the student,
teacher and parents. Students will be required to submit a proposed work plan which will be
reviewed and revised by the student’s teacher. The development and use of the plan is seen as
an important part of acquiring the self-management skills that will serve students well in adult
life. A monthly face-to-face meeting with the student, the parent/mentor and the teacher will be
held.

Page 2 - EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A

Teachers will review the results of periodic online assessments built into most models and
adjust schedules as needed. Students will be able to ask for help and receive it in a timely
fashion—usually the same day. In addition, teachers will coordinate the distribution of any
instructional materials needed to complete computer-based courses.

Technology Infrastructure

Students enrolled full time in the program will be loaned a laptop computer. We expect to deploy
a basic Hewlett-Packard or Dell unit. These have been demonstrated to be workhorse machines
with high reliability. They will be equipped with Wi-Fi connectivity. A broadband connection will
be needed to receive the lessons and for communication with Academy staff. The student’s
household will be required to provide this connection and local telephone service at its own
expense.

Technicians will be responsible for configuring and supporting the laptop computers. Each
student will receive e-mail and electronic meetings accounts. Each student will also have
telephone access to the computer and courseware vendor to resolve related hardware and
software problems. Clear directions for resolving technology problems will be explicitly
communicated.

No Internet site blocking software will be installed on Academy computers in order to facilitate
research, but site logging will be enabled and monitored by the student’s teacher periodically.
Students will not be given the authority to make software additions or changes to their laptops.
All GBSD acceptable use of technology guidelines will apply. Students and their parents will be
asked to sign a fair use contract as a condition of enroliment in the Academy.

The Academy will establish and maintain a Web site for students and parents. A preliminary
version of the site is available at: www.gbwebacademy.org. This site is currently used to share
basic information about the Academy concept and to gather opinions and perspectives from
potential patrons.

6. Expected Results and Methods of Measuring and Reporting L.earning
We expect all students enrolled in the Academy to earn credits and qualify for either a GBSD or
State of Oregon diploma at a pace similar to their peers who attend the regular District program.
The diploma requirements in place for Academy students will be identical to those in place for
their peers who are the same age in the regular instructional program.

Academy students will participate in all Oregon statewide assessments taken by their peers in
the regular GBSD instructional program.

Achievement results for the Academy will be summarized annually and reported to parents and
to GBSD. As required by Oregon charter school rules, the performance of Academy students on
statewide assessments will be compared with their peers in the regular GBSD instructional
program. In addition, special emphasis will be placed on depicting individual academic growth
from year-to-year. Growth scores are an especially meaningful way of depicting achievement
gains.

7. Governance
The Academy has been incorporated in Oregon as a public-benefit, non-profit corporation. It will
also register with the United States Internal Revenue Service as a non-profit 501(c)(3)
organization. It will operate under the applicable rules governing such organizations.

Page 3 - EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A

The Academy will be governed by a three to nine member Board of Directors that will receive
monthly progress reports and meet quarterly. The Board is composed of community members
who bring expertise in technology, fiscal management and community connections, and a
GBSD central office administrator. The Academy principal will be the Chief Executive Officer
and the primary liaison with the Board.

Board members will serve for one-year renewable terms. Members may serve at the pleasure of
the board. New members, if needed, will be recruited through written application and selected
by the Board.

Duties of the Board are those defined by the statutes and administrative rules governing non-
profit corporations in Oregon. In general, the Board will develop written policies that are unique
to the operation of the Academy, support charter school operations, approve operating budgets,
monitor expenditures, hear appeals from patrons related to the operation of the Academy and
promote the Academy in the larger community.

The Academy Coordinator will form a Site Council which will operate under the same
regulations that govern Site Councils in other GBSD schools.

8. Projected Enrollment
The Academy seeks to ultimately enroll a maximum of 250 students in grades 6-12. For the first
year of operation, the enroliment target is 150 students in grades 6-10. In the second year, the
Academy will add about 50 students at grade 11. In the third year, another 50 students will be
added at grade 12. The Academy may, in subsequent years, add additional elementary grade
levels if a fully developed curriculum program can be developed or obtained and there is
sufficient community interest.

9. Target Population
The students we wish to enroll are those not currently served by GBSD. They would include
students who are currently home schooled; students, who are homebound, possibly for medical
reasons, and are unable to attend school; students who have dropped out of a regular school
program; and, students who are on extended expulsions for disciplinary infractions. Others may
be currently enrolled high school students who are struggling academically, and are at risk of
dropping out, or enrolled in other online programs.

10. Location
The formal address for the Gresham-Barlow Web Academy will be the same as the general
District mailing address.

A drop-in center where students can meet with teachers for support or where they can gather as
a launching point for off-campus activities will be established in one of the GBSD schools. The
Academy will lease the necessary classroom space from GBSD. GBSD resident students will
also have access to their neighborhood schools for enrichment programs and library use.

Office space for the Academy Principal and an office manager will be leased in a GBSD facility.

Teachers will work primarily from home—as telecommuters—and use meeting spaces as
needed in district facilities as arranged by the Principal.

Page 4 - EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A

11. Admissions
At least for the first term of this charter and based on interest, we expect to enroll only a small
number of students from outside the GBSD boundaries. Student admission will be based on
applications received annually during open enrollment, beginning in the month of May.
Applicants will be admitted on a first-come-first-served basis unless applications exceed the
available enrollment slots. Preference will be given to residents of the Gresham-Barlow district.
If applicants exceed the number of available slots, admission will be based on a lottery. Those
not selected may elect to be placed on a waiting list.

Slots that become available during the school year will first be offered to any wait-listed students
on the basis of the lottery drawing. If no students are on the wait list, new applications will be
solicited from the community at large on a first come, first served basis.

12. Applicable Statutes and Rules
The Academy will operate under the statutes and regulations of Oregon state public-benefit
corporations, the laws and rules governing tax-exempt federal 501(c)(3) organizations, the
statutes and regulations governing Oregon charter schools, and GBSD policies and
administrative rules as they pertain to charter schools (LBE and LBE-AR).

GBSD disciplinary due process and progressive discipline rules will apply to Academy students
as will the GBSD acceptable use of technology guidelines.

The Academy will use the same student and financial accounting systems deployed in GBSD
schools.

13. Budget
Academy operations will require no resources from the GBSD General Fund. Startup will be

supported by Planning and Implementation Grants from the Oregon Department of Education
and State School Fund revenues generated from enrollment. After the first three years, ongoing
operations will be supported solely by the State School Fund revenues generated by enrolling
students at the then current GBSD ADMw rate.

GBSD has agreed to operate as the fiscal agent for the Gresham-Barlow Web Academy.

14. Student Discipline
The GBSD Student Code of Conduct will form the foundation of our discipline approach. In
addition, the GBSD acceptable use of technology guidelines will regulate student use of their
computer systems. In addition, special rules will be established relative to student compliance
with weekly requirements for participation in the instructional program. Progressive discipline
will be applied to ensure that students meet their participation obligations. Sanctions will include
consequences up to and including expulsion from the Academy.

As an example, if a student fails to meet the Academy’s participation requirements, a system of
progressive discipline actions will be initiated. First might come a teacher e-mail or phone
contact with the student. If this is unsuccessful, the next step might be a home visit from the
teacher. If further action is needed, a student-parent-teacher conference might be scheduled
resulting in a performance contract. If further action is needed to correct the problem, the
Academy’s Principal might become involved to initiate suspension and, ultimately, expulsion
procedures.

Page 5 - EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A

15. School Calendar
The Academy will follow the school year calendar of the GBSD. Students who are behind the
desired grade level pace at the end of the regular school year may have an additional 30 days
to complete any work needed to stay on an appropriate grade-level pace.

Full time staff will operate within an 8 hour day which may be non-consecutive or flexed within
40 hours per week.

16. Staffing

Initially, the Academy will employ a part-time year-round principal with an Oregon administrative
credential.

If Academy teachers are GBSD employees, either specifically employed for service in the
Academy or participating on a leave of absence from a regular GBSD position, then all of the
terms and conditions of regular GBSD employment may apply. Our intent is to hire only certified
teachers who are highly qualified, but a number of registered teachers may also be employed,
as allowed by law.

17. Start Date
The Academy will commence operations on July 1, 2009, with the first classes beginning
September 2009.

18. Special Education
GBSD will provide special education services to any eligible GBSD students. An Academy
teacher will serve on the IEP team for any student needing services.

19. Community Involvement
Members of the public will serve on representative advisory committees for the Academy. These

members will be selected based on their interest in technology applications, non-profit
corporation experience, and connections with the potential target audience.

The initial planning committee used two strategies for gauging the level of community interest in
the Web Academy and taking suggestions for program design. First, two community meetings
were held. Community interest was strong in these meetings. Second, an online survey was
made available to community members (www.gbwebacademy.org/survey launch.html) to
collect opinions and ideas. To date, more than 600 surveys have been completed, with further
strong indications of support.

20. Charter Term
Our initial charter period will be for five years, commencing on July 1, 2009, and ending on June
30, 2014.

21. Insurance
The Academy will be insured through policies negotiated with charter school insurance
providers. GBSD will be named as an additional insured. Scope of coverage and limits will meet
the requirements of the GBSD Charter School regulations (LBE-AR).

Page 6 —- EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A

22. Discontinuation Provisions
In the event that the Academy is discontinued before the completion of its full charter period,
either voluntarily or through District termination for cause, GBSD Charter School regulations
(LBE-AR) will guide its disbandment.

All assets of the Academy fall under the laws governing charter schools within the State of
Oregon.

23. Fiscal Audit
The Academy will use the GBSD auditors to review and report fiscal performance according to
the generally accepted accounting principles applied to GBSD’s own annual financial reporting.

:lc 5/2/09

Page 7 - EXHIBIT A



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Tim Drilling
DATE: July 12, 2012
RE: No. 18 - Public Charter School Renewal: Lewis & Clark Montessori
EXPLANATION: The Lewis & Clark Montessori Public Charter School renewal was

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

TD:lc

presented to the board at the February 23 board work session, and
a public hearing was held March 1. The proposal was presented
to the board at the April 5 business meeting, and was
conditionally approved, subject to negotiation of a contract. The
revised contract was presented for the board’s review at the
June 14 business meeting.

The next step in the renewal process is for the Gresham-Barlow
School District board of directors to approve the contract this
evening.

Tim Drilling
1. Charter School Agreement Between the Board of Directors of

Gresham-Barlow School District 10] and Lewis and Clark
Montessori Charter School, Dated July 2012

2. Exhibit B to Charter School Agreement, Charter School Goals

and Evaluation Guidelines

The administration recommends approval of the contract to renew
the Lewis & Clark Montessori charter school.

Move approve the Charter School Agreement Between the Board
of Directors of Gresham-Barlow School District 10] and Lewis and
Clark Montessori Charter School, to be in effect beginning
July 1, 2012, for a period of five years.



CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT

DATED: JULY ,2012
PARTIES: BETWEEN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT #10J (“District”)
AND: LEWIS AND CLARK MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

an Oregon nonprofit corporation (“LCMCS”)

RECITALS

A. On December 19, 2007, pursuant to ORS Chapter 338, the developers of LCMCS
submitted to the District an application (attached and incorporated as Exhibit A) for formation of
the Lewis and Clark Montessori Charter School (LCMCS) to operate within the District.

B. On March 6, 2008, the District Board held a public hearing on the provisions of the
Application and evaluated the criteria set forth in ORS 338.055 and District policies, and the
District has determined that the Application, as amended by this Agreement, complies with the
purposes and requirements of ORS 338 and District policies.

C. By resolution adopted April 10, 2008, the District Board conditionally approved the
Application and agreed to become the sponsor of LCMCS contingent upon the negotiation and
execution of a contract acceptable to LCMCS and the District. A contract dated June 12, 2008
was entered into by the District and LCMS for two school years expiring June 30, 2010.

D. On March 4, 2010 the District Board conditionally approved the renewal of the charter
agreement for a two-year period subject to final negotiation of a new charter agreement.

E. LCMCS requested a renewal of this Agreement and on March 1, 2012, the District held a
public hearing on the renewal in accordance with ORS 338.065(4).

F. The District agreed to a renewal on April 5, 2012 effective July 1, 2012, to be in effect
for a period of five years, subject to renewal in accordance with this agreement and ORS Chapter
338.

G. This Agreement, including the Application and its Exhibits, will constitute the
agreement between the parties regarding the governance and operation of LCMCS and the legal
authorization for the establishment of LCMCS under ORS 338.065(1).

H. The parties desire that LCMCS be authorized to operate and conduct its affairs in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable Oregon and federal law.

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 1



CHARTER AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual understandings,
covenants, and payments herein described, the parties agree as follows:1. Grant of Charter.

The Gresham-Barlow School District #10J Board of Directors (referred to herein as either the
“District” or the “District Board”) has approved LCMCS’s charter school proposal
(“Application”), is the sponsor of the Lewis and Clark Montessori Charter School (“LCMCS”)
that is to be operated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and hereby grants a
renewal of the charter pursuant to the terms herein.

2. Effective Date; Term:; Renewal.

2.1 Effective Date. When this Agreement has been duly executed by both the
District Board and LCMCS’s board of directors, it shall be legally binding on both parties and
shall act as the legal authorization for the establishment of the Lewis and Clark Montessori
Charter School, as provided in ORS 338.065(1).

2.2 Term. LCMCS shall be permitted to operate LCMCS for a term of five (5)
school years, subject to the other terms of this Agreement. The first school year shall begin in
September 2012, and thus the term shall expire June 30, 2017.

2.3 Renewal of Term. Renewal of this Agreement will be governed by ORS
338.065.

3. Application is Incorporated:; Conflict between Application and Agreement.

The District accepts the Application of the developer LCMCS, including all the terms and
provisions therein, except as modified by this Agreement, and the Application is incorporated
into this Agreement. However, in the case of any conflict between any term of the Application
and any term of this Agreement, this Agreement shall govern. Furthermore, a failure by LCMCS
to perform or fulfill any term or provision of the Application shall not be a breach of this
Agreement unless such failure is specifically described as a breach in this Agreement.

4. (Section Not Used)

5. Grade Range of LCMCS; Number of Students; Minimum.

5.1 Number of Grades. During the 2012-2013 school year, LCMCS may provide
instruction to students in grades kindergarten through sixth grade. During the 2013-2014 school
year, a seventh grade will be added. During the 2014-2015 school year and in subsequent years,
LCMCS may add an eighth grade. It is the understanding of the parties that LCMCS is proposed
to operate a K-8 school.

5.2 Number of Students. By the 2016-17 LCMCS will be authorized to operate K-8,
with a maximum enrollment of 353 students, adding grades and students as follows:

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 2



5.3

5.2.1 2012-13 School Year:

52.2

523

524

524

Grade: Maximum Enrollment
K: 33

1-3: 99
4-6: 83
Total: 215

2013-14 School Year:
Grade: Maximum Enrollment

K: 33-44
1-3: 99
4-6: 95
7: 20-30

Total: 247-268

2014-15 School Year:
Grade: Maximum Enrollment

K: 33-44
1-3: 99-110
4-6: 95

7-8:  40-60

Total: 267-309

2015-16 School Year:
Grade: Maximum Enrollment

K: 33-44
1-3: 99-121
4-6: 99

7-8:  40-68

Total: 267-332

2016-17 School Year:
Grade: Maximum Enrollment

K: 33-44
1-3: 99-132
4-6: 99

7-8:  40-68

Total: 267-353

6. Enrollment and Admissions.

Minimum Number of Students in School. As provided in ORS 338.115(5),
LCMCS shall maintain an active enrollment of at least 25 students.

July ,2012

CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT

PAGE 3



6.1 Voluntary Enrollment; Who is Eligible. Student enrollment in LCMCS shall
be voluntary. All students who meet legal age requirements applicable to a particular grade level
[for example, minimum ages for children entering kindergarten and first grade] will be eligible
for enrollment. These requirements will follow District policies relating to admission of students
into any grade. Students must meet the age requirements for kindergarten as outlined in the
District policy. Other than the age of a student and the preferences allowed by law (see Section
6.6), the preference for District residents described in Section 6.8, and the preference in the first
year for students who are children of LCMCS founders, provided that the Oregon Department of
Education approves a waiver request from LCMCS, there will be no criteria for selection of
students. A student will be deemed admitted to and enrolled in LCMCS when the student’s
application has been unconditionally accepted by LCMCS following completion of a phase of
the enrollment process described below and after conditions to such acceptance have been
satisfied. Enrollment of special education students is governed by Section 7.

6.2 Phased Enrollments; Deadlines. LCMCS mayj, in its discretion, elect to conduct
a series of open enrollments for each school year, provided the process conforms to this
Agreement. Each year, LCMCS will set a deadline of March 15 by which applications must be
received for the first phase of the enrollment process and will determine the number of students
to be admitted in each grade. LCMCS Board will approve any forms and policies that may
otherwise be needed to govern the enrollment process, and may change those from time to time
as they determine what works best. LCMCS will accumulate all applications received on or
before the deadline for each phase of enrollment; applicants are not accepted on a “first come,
first served” basis, except as provided in Section 6.5 [after waiting list is exhausted]. The second
phase for enrollment shall be May 1 of each year.

6.3 Application Process; First Phase of Enrollment Process. Beginning on a date
set each year by LCMCS and up through the deadline for the first phase of enrollment (March
15) set under Section 6.2, prospective students may apply for admission to LCMCS for the
school year that begins the following September. For the first phase of the enrollment process, if
the number of applications received by the deadline for the first phase is less than or equal to the
number of students to be admitted for each grade as determined under Section 6.2, then all the
applications for that grade will be accepted (applications from nonresidents are governed by
Section 6.8). To illustrate, if the determined number of students to be admitted for a grade is 25,
and if 20 applications are received, then all 20 applicants will be accepted. The remaining five
“available spaces” will be filled in the second phase.

If the number of applications received for any grade is greater than the number of students to be
admitted for that grade, then LCMCS will conduct an equitable lottery, in a manner determined
by LCMCS and consistent with state law and District policy, to admit the maximum allowed
number of students for that grade and to create a waiting list for subsequent admission should a
space become available later. To illustrate, if the number of students to be admitted for a grade
is 25, and if 40 applications are received, then 25 applicants will be accepted through the lottery
process, and a waiting list of 15 can be determined [with order of priority on the waiting list also
determined through the lottery process].

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 4



To take into account the priority given by law to resident students (as provided in Section 6.8), if,
out of the 40 applications, 30 are from resident students and 10 are from nonresidents, then a
lottery will be held first as to the 30 resident applications and 25 will be accepted, with five
going on the waiting list. Then a lottery will be held among the 10 nonresidents to determine
order of priority on the waiting list.

6.4 Second and Additional Phases of Enrollment. If LCMCS receives fewer
applications than the maximum number of students allowed for any grade, then LCMCS will
have a second application deadline of May 1 of each year. The admissions process will be the
same as with the first phase, but will apply only with respect to the “available spaces,” if any, for
each grade. However, LCMCS may also accept additional applicants in order to create or
expand a waiting list for any grade.

Finally, if after the second enrollment there still remain “available spaces” in any grade, or
LCMCS desires to create or expand a waiting list for any grade, LCMCS may set a third and
additional application deadlines before the school year begins. The admissions process will be
the same as with the second phase, again applying only with respect to the “available spaces” for
each grade (or to create or expand a waiting list for any grade). Thereafter, including during the
school year, additional students who apply will be added to the waiting list in the order the
applications are received.

6.5 Use of Waiting List; Filling Spaces if No Waiting List. If at any time a student
who has been enrolled declines to attend LCMCS, or if an attending student withdraws or is

permanently expelled, LCMCS may admit the next student on its waiting list for the applicable
grade. LCMCS may enroll the first student who applies after a space becomes available in a
situation where (a) the final phase of enrollment under Section 6.4 has been completed, or the
space becomes available during the school year; and (b) either there is no waiting list for the
applicable grade or all students on the waiting list for that grade have already enrolled or have
been extended an offer to enroll and have declined.

6.6 Preferences After First Year. As provided in ORS 338.125, LCMCS may give
admissions preference to (1) students who were enrolled in LCMCS in the prior year,
(2) applicants who have siblings who are presently enrolled in LCMCS and who were enrolled in
LCMCS in the prior year, and (3) students who are children of LCMCS founder, provided that
the Oregon Department of Education approves a waiver request from LCMCS and proof of such
waiver is provided to the District prior to the enrollment of any student who falls within this
provision.

6.7  Nondiscrimination. As provided in ORS 338.125(2), LCMCS may not limit
student admission based on race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, ethnicity, national origin,
disability, the terms of an individualized education program, income level, proficiency in the
English language or athletic ability, but may limit admission to students within a given age group
or grade level.

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 5



6.8 Nonresident Students; Limitations.

6.8.1 As provided in ORS 338.125(2), if space is available, LCMCS may admit
students who do not reside in the District. At each phase of the enrollment process, preference
will be given to residents of the District. Nonresident applicants may be accepted to fill any
“available spaces” (including spaces on waiting lists) in accordance with this Section 6.8.

6.8.2 For ease of reference, all phases of enrollment for which the application
deadline is on or before May 1 will be referred to as “pre-May 1-phases”; and all phases that take
place after May 1 will be referred to as “post-May 1-phases.” “New applications” means
applications received as of the deadline that applies to any particular phase, as contrasted with
applications received at an earlier phase.

6.8.3 At each pre-May 1-phase, nonresident applicants will be placed on a
waiting list, the order of which will be determined by lottery at each phase (thus, those received
in the first phase will be placed in numerical order by lottery; those received in the second phase
will likewise be placed in order following the waiting list from the first phase, and so on for each
other pre-May 1-phase).

6.8.4 This subsection 6.8.4 applies to the final pre-May 1-phase. Any available
spaces for any grade as of the final pre-May 1-phase will be filled in the following order: (a) new
applications from resident students; (b) applications from nonresident students received at earlier
phases in the order determined by the lottery for each of those phases; and (c) new applications
from nonresident students. Applicants will be placed on the waiting list in the following order:
(1) resident students placed on the waiting list at earlier phases; (ii) new applications from
resident students at the final pre-May 1-phase; (ii1) nonresident students placed on the waiting
list at earlier phases; and (iv) new applications from nonresident students placed on the waiting
list at the final pre-May 1-phase. The students on the waiting list at that point have priority over
all students, resident and nonresident, who apply at a later phase (the post-May 1-phases).

6.8.5 This subsection 6.8.5 applies to the post-May 1-phases. Any available
spaces for any grade at each post-May 1-phase will be filled in the following order: (a) new
applications from resident students; and (b) new applications from nonresident students.
Applicants will be added to the end of any existing waiting list in the following order: (i) new
applications from resident students; and (ii) new applications from nonresident students.

6.8.6 The parties recognize that acceptance of a nonresident applicant at the
final pre-May 1-phase or at any post-May 1-phase could create uncertainty and unfairness
because of the possibility that the law requires that a resident applicant who is accepted at a later
phase must be given priority and thus could “bump” the previously accepted nonresident.
Therefore, the parties agree that once a nonresident is accepted in the manner described above,
the nonresident will not be “bumped” by a resident who has submitted an application as part of a
later phase of enrollment; if necessary, the parties will work together to seek a waiver of the
applicable state law.

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 6



6.8.7. In the event a nonresident student is admitted in LCMCS, LCMCS agrees
to:

(a) Provide written notice of the student’s enrollment to the District within 10
days. The written notice must include contact information for the enrolled
student’s parent or guardian.

(b) Provide written notice of the student’s withdrawal to the District within 10
days. The written notice must include contact information for the enrolled
student’s parent or guardian.

6.9  Dual Enrollment. During a school year, if LCMCS learns that one of its students
remains enrolled at another private or public school, LCMCS will notify the other school of this
fact and will inform the student's parents that they should take whatever steps may be required to
have their child withdrawn from enrollment in the other school or from enrollment in LCMCS.

7. Special Education Students.

7.1 Special Education Students; IDEIA. In this Agreement, the term “special
education students” means children with disabilities to whom the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Improvement Act (“IDEIA”) applies.

7.2 Application and Enrollment.

7.2.1 The LCMCS application form will ask if the student has an Individualized
Education Program (“IEP”’) under IDEIA. For any prospective student with an IEP, LCMCS
will, immediately, or as soon as practicable, notify the IEP team leader (if known) or the District
liaison for special education issues. The latest date for the notification to the district is the date
on which LCMCS knows the student is admitted and eligible for special education services. A
representative from LCMCS will attend the IEP team meeting at which the team will determine
whether or not LCMCS is the appropriate placement. This representative shall be a regular
education teacher unless the district approves in advance of the meeting that another LCMCS
representative will attend. If the IEP team cannot meet before LCMCS holds its enrollment
lottery under Section 6, then the IEP student(s) will be included in the lottery as if the placement
had been approved. Any student with an IEP whose application is accepted will receive a
conditional acceptance; the acceptance and enrollment will become final when the IEP team has
determined that LCMCS is the appropriate placement.

7.2.2  LCMCS will admit students without regard to their status as special
education students, if the student's IEP team determines that the school is the appropriate
placement. The parties intend by this process to ensure that LCMCS does not unintentionally
discriminate against enrolling special education students or otherwise violate applicable laws.

7.3 Child Find; Accepted Students Later Determined to be Special Education
Students. LCMCS will work closely with the District and any other referring school district to

ensure that the District’s Child Find responsibilities are carried out in good faith with respect to
students enrolled in LCMCS. LCMCS will ensure that at least one of its teaching staff has been
trained in the Child Find process, or if none have been so trained, LCMCS will arrange for at

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 7



least one of its teaching staff to receive such training. LCMCS will promptly notify the District
if a LCMCS student is suspected of having a disability and may need evaluation to determine
eligibility for special education and will comply with the District’s practices and policies for
referral of any District student for evaluation. Any student referred for evaluation shall remain
enrolled at LCMCS until an IEP team determines that LCMCS is not the appropriate placement
for that student.

7.3.1 LCMCS shall provide a list of newly admitted and enrolled students on a
monthly basis on a form provided by the District to Director of Student Support Services so that
the District is able to identify students who are in the evaluation process.

7.4 Administering the IEP’s.

7.4.1 LCMCS will work closely with the District to ensure that special
education and related services are provided. The parties recognize there will likely be several
methods or “delivery mechanisms” for providing these services, and because there is no way to
know in advance the specific needs of all special education students who will enroll at LCMCS,
there is no way to specify in this Agreement anything more than a general framework or set of
principles for seeing to it that the IEP's are administered.

7.4.2 The following shall apply:

(a) LCMCS will comply with all District policies and regulations (including
those regarding discipline) and the requirements of state and federal law
concerning the education of children under IDEIA.

(b) Each IEP team must include a District representative and appropriate
District specialists. LCMCS will have a teacher on the IEP team of each
enrolled special education student. LCMCS will work closely with the
rest of the IEP team to determine how to meet the goals of the IEP, and
how to arrange for the special accommodations and services required. The
IEP team will continue to evaluate the placement during the school year,
as the IEP team deems appropriate. LCMCS will not change the student's
program without IEP team action. LCMCS teachers will assist the District
in the development of progress reports related to annual IEP goals.
LCMCS teachers will cooperate with the District in evaluation and
reevaluation processes, including completing teacher observation/behavior
checklists, and sharing results of academic assessments and work samples.

(1) LCMCS shall provide the accommodations and modifications to
the regular education curriculum and instruction called for in the
student’s IEP. Any hard costs associated with these
accommodations and modifications such as, but not limited to
assistive technology, orthopedic supports or augmentative
communication devices will be paid for by the District in the
manner provided in Section 7.4.2(e). LCMCS will not be

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 8



(©)

(d)

(e)

(®

(2

(h)

reimbursed for costs associated with accommodations and
modifications in general classroom instruction, such as, but not
limited to accommodations in testing and classroom instruction
made by a LCMCS teacher, classroom management techniques
including those associated with behavioral support plans, or
communications with the parent, written products (e.g. behavior
cards, travel cards, teacher reports). The District shall pay all costs
of related services, supplementary aids and services, speech and
language pathology services, assistive technology, or instructional
assistants or aides, which are provided as set forth in an
individualized education plan.

LCMCS staff will comply with training required by an IEP team for
delivery of services to a LCMCS student, although the District is
responsible for providing special education services. The District will pay
the costs of any training of LCMCS staff that the IEP team determines is
required to accomplish the implementation of an IEP for a student. This is
limited to costs for substitutes, consultants, course fees, and necessary
supplies and materials.

The District has the discretion to determine which specialized programs
will be offered on site at the LCMCS facility. For those services that the
IEP team, the District, and LCMCS mutually agree would be best
delivered by District employees, LCMCS will make every reasonable
effort to work closely with District staff to assist in the effective delivery
of the services. This might include either on-site or pull-out service
delivery.

For those services that the IEP team, the District, and LCMCS mutually
agree would be best delivered by LCMCS employees, LCMCS and the
District may negotiate a contract under which the District will compensate
LCMCS for such special services.

Special education transportation will only be provided by the District to a
LCMCS special education student if it is a related service on the student's
IEP.

LCMCS shall protect all personally identifiable student information
relating to special education students attending LCMCS and will maintain
a complete special education file located within the student’s permanent
record.

LCMCS will cooperate with the District in the event the District is
required to participate in a special education administrative complaint or
due process proceeding.

July ,2012

CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 9



7.5 Funding for Special Education Students. ORS 338.165 governs funding
relating to special education students. Any portion of these funds payable to LCMCS for
services provided under Section 7.4 would be governed by the separate contract described in
Section 7.4.2(e).

8. School Year: School Dav: Hours of Operation.

LCMCS may be flexible in its calendar and in the scheduling of its daily activities, provided it
conforms to any requirements of state law. However, LCMCS anticipates that its annual
calendar shall generally match the calendar of the District, and LCMCS may maintain a typical
nine-month school year for its regular academic program. If LCMCS adopts a calendar different
from the District's calendar that results in additional service costs to the District for services
LCMCS either requests or requires under separate contract on those days that LCMCS is open
but the District is not open (for example, costs of providing special education services), LCMCS
shall reimburse the District for these costs. The number of instructional hours during each
school year shall comply with requirements of state law.

9. Records.

LCMCS shall comply with all record keeping requirements of federal and state law and shall
provide any reports, as necessary, to meet the District’s reporting obligations to the Oregon
Department of Education. Before the first year of operation, and from time to time thereafter as
state requirements change, the District shall provide LCMCS with a list of records and
information by the applicable due dates as necessary for the District to meet its state reporting
requirements. LCMCS shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws concerning the
maintenance, retention and disclosure of student records, including, without limitation, the
Oregon Public Records Law, the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), and the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act (IDEIA). All records established and
maintained in accordance with this Agreement shall be open to inspection by the District.

10. Program and Curriculum, Goals, and Evaluation.

10.1 Acceptance by District of Program and Curriculum.

10.1.1 The District accepts the curriculum and program design of LCMCS as set
forth in the Application and agrees to waive any District program and curricular requirements
that are not incorporated into such curriculum design. The District’s intent is to allow LCMCS,
within the requirements of state law, to promote and implement new, innovative, and flexible
programs, curricula, learning environments, and learning methods.

LCMCS agrees to obtain prior approval from the District before making a
fundamental change to the educational program outlined in its Application. A fundamental
change to the educational program means (i) discontinuing use of the Montessori Model for
instruction, or (ii) adopting a curriculum that does not meet then-applicable state standards. The

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 10



District may, at its sole discretion, approve or disapprove fundamental changes in the educational
program.

10.1.2 The parties agree that the Application sets forth the overall goals,
standards and general operational policies of LCMCS, and that the Application is not a complete
statement of each detail of LCMCS’s operation. To the extent that LCMCS desires to implement
specific programs, policies, procedures or other specific terms of operation that supplement or
otherwise differ from those in the Application, LCMCS shall be permitted to implement such
programs, policies, procedures and specific terms of operation, provided that they are consistent
with the goals, standards and general operational policies set forth in the Application, this
Agreement and ORS Chapter 338.

10.2 Responsibilities of LCMCS. LCMCS is responsible for doing the following in
compliance with state law:

10.2.1 Designing and implementing its curriculum and other components of its
educational program as set forth in the Application.

Conforming to all state requirements applicable to public charter schools concerning
subjects, academic content, and other educational matters.

10.2.2 Providing required services and appropriate programming to students
who are English language learners pursuant to OAR 581-021-0046(8) and other applicable
provisions of state and federal law.

10.2.3 Providing required services, if any, to academically low achieving
students.

10.2.4 Implementing the state-required assessments as provided in ORS
338.115(1). LCMCS will send a list of all assessments to be used to measure student
achievement by September 15 of each year.

10.2.5 Surveying its student population for eligibility for free and reduced
lunches under federal and state law if it elects to provide lunch for its students.

10.3 Goals and Evaluation. Although LCMCS has goals and assessments, many of
which are set forth in the Application, only the specific goals and assessments relating to student
performance that are set forth in Exhibit B are to be considered in evaluating whether LCMCS
has failed to meet the requirements for student performance (and thus could be a basis for
termination of this Agreement) under ORS 338.105(1)(b).

10.4 Annual Report. LCMCS will submit an annual report to the District and the
State Board of Education in accordance with ORS 338.095(2) on the performance of LCMCS
and its students by October 1 of each year applicable to the preceding fiscal/school year. This
report will include information necessary to make a determination of compliance with the
requirements of ORS Chapter 338. This report will include, among other things, information

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 11



relating to the goals and evaluation described in Section 10.3. The parties agree that the District
will be responsible for obtaining an independent charter review for the purpose of this annual

evaluation. LCMCS will reimburse the District for the costs of this review up to the amount of
$7,500.

11. School Facility and Transportation.

11.1  Facility

11.1.1 LCMCS will locate at 14151 SE 242nd, Damascus, Oregon, 97089, for the
2012-2013 school year and into the foreseeable future.

11.2  Approvals and Permits; Payment of Expenses. LCMCS is responsible for
obtaining all necessary permits and approvals relating to use of the facility, including building
and occupancy permits, and any health and safety approvals. LCMCS has full responsibility for
all costs related to its facility and any playground equipment, other equipment, furniture, and
fixtures; such responsibility includes purchase costs, rental, utilities, maintenance, repair,
cleaning, and replacement.

11.3 Transportation. The District is not responsible for providing transportation by
bus or otherwise of any students to LCMCS. LCMCS is obligated for providing all
transportation pursuant to ORS 338.145 with the exception of transportation of special education
students as a related service under section 7.4.2(f).

However, the District will allow LCMCS students to ride on District buses to and from
LCMCS, to the extent seats are available for such students; this does not obligate the District to
add or extend existing bus routes or other transportation services, as provided in ORS
338.145(2). The District will give LCMCS a two-week notice if a bus on a particular route has
consistently become too full to transport LCMCS students so that parents have time to make
other arrangements. The parties recognize that many of LCMCS students may not be able to use
existing District bus routes for transportation to and from LCMCS.

For any District student who does not have transportation to and from LCMCS, LCMCS will
make efforts to arrange for car pooling with other LCMCS families. With respect to arranging
transportation for its students, however, this Agreement does not impose on LCMCS an
obligation to lease or purchase buses, vans, or other vehicles; to employ or contract with drivers
of such vehicles or with transportation service providers; or to incur expenses for insurance, fuel,
repairs, or maintenance in connection with transportation for its students.

12. Financial Matters; Funding: Annual Budgets; Annual Audit.

12.1 No Tuition; Fees. LCMCS will not charge tuition to students, except as may be
allowed under ORS 339.155 or other applicable law. As noted in ORS 338.115(1), the following
laws shall apply to LCMCS: ORS 339.141, ORS 339.147, and ORS 339.155. In accordance
with state law, LCMCS may charge reasonable fees for instructional materials, after-school

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 12



programs, and student activities. LCMCS shall waive all fees for indigent students in accordance
with applicable federal and state law.

12.2 Annual Funding.

12.2.1 Keeping Count. LCMCS shall identify and count, and keep accurate
records of, its number of enrolled students and their days present and absent; attendance; special
education students; students eligible for and enrolled in an English as a Second Language
program under ORS 336.079; and other data required in order to calculate average daily
membership, weighted average daily membership (ADMw), and related terms necessary to
determine funding under state law, particularly ORS 338.155 and 327.013. LCMCS shall use the
District’s student information system for purposes of this Section 12.2.1 and shall be responsible
for proper input of required information based on training provided by the District.

12.2.2 Calculating ADMw and Funding.

(a) For each school year, the District shall provide funding to LCMCS
in accordance with ORS 338.155(2), as that formula may be changed from time to
time. Until the law is changed, the funding shall be 80% of the District’s “Charter
School Rate", as determined by the State of Oregon Department of Education;
multiplied by LCMCS’s ADMw.

(b) LCMCS shall determine its ADMw for the period to be covered by
reports given to the District [using projected ADMw for the first reports specified
below].

(©) The calculation of the additional amounts under ORS 327.013 shall
include, but not be limited to, an additional 0.5 for each student in average daily

membership eligible for and enrolled in an English as a Second Language
program under ORS 336.079.

(d) In addition, to take into account the “poverty factor” under ORS
327.013, and as required by ORS 338.157, the parties will use the same
percentage used in calculating the District’s adjusted poverty factor, as that
percentage may be changed from time to time. To illustrate, suppose the poverty
factor used for the District is 16% of ADM; assume the ADM for LCMCS is 100
students; then 100 would be multiplied by 16%; and this would be multiplied by
0.25; thus, a total of 4.0 would be added to LCMCS’s ADM in calculating
ADMw.

(e) This Agreement will be changed to conform to any changes in
state law relating to the calculation of ADMw or otherwise that affects funding of
charter schools.

12.2.3 Reports to District. LCMCS shall give written reports to the District,
containing the data set forth in Sections 12.2.1 and 12.2.2, on or before the tenth (10™) day of

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 13



each of the following months of each school year: July, August, September, October,
November, December, January, February, March, April, and May. The July and August reports
(and possibly the September report), and thus the payments due from the District based on those
reports, will be based on LCMCS’s projected ADMw.

12.2.4 Dates of Payments by District to LCMCS.

(a) Pursuant to ORS 338.155(8), the District shall send payment to
LCMCS in the percentages set out by applicable law (generally 8.33% per month
but currently 16.67% in July) within 10 days after receiving payments from
the State School Fund pursuant to ORS 327.095.

(b) The parties recognize that there may be fluctuations from month to
month in the total sum on which the monthly percentage amounts are calculated
due to fluctuations in LCMCS’s ADMw during a school year, as well as due to
possible changes in the state’s determination of the general purpose grant or
LCMCS’s Rate, and thus the amount payable by the District to LCMCS may
change from month to month. There will be an adjustment with the final [May or
June] payment, as provided in state law, to reflect changes in calculation of
ADMw and changes, if any, in the general purpose grant amount or LCMCS’s
Rate, as well as changes with respect to funding during prior school years that
may be based on final calculations of ADMw and the general purpose grant
amount or LCMCS’s Rate that are not finalized until after the end of a school
year.

12.2.5 End of State Funding. The financial commitment on the part of the
District contained in this Agreement is subject to annual appropriation by the State of Oregon.
The District has no obligation to fund LCMCS operations if State funding does not occur and
this Agreement is terminated if State funding does not occur.

12.3 Annual Budgets. On or before May 1 of each year, LCMCS shall submit to the
District its proposed budget for the following school year, so that the District can review it as
part of its consideration of LCMCS’s financial stability. LCMCS shall be responsible for all
costs associated with school operations, including the costs of subcontracting for goods and
services, except as expressly provided in this Agreement.

12.4 Fiscal Agent. LCMCS shall act as its own fiscal agent.

12.5 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of LCMCS shall begin on July 1 of each year and
end on June 30 of the subsequent year.

12.6 Financial Records., Audits and Accounting Reports. LCMCS shall maintain
and retain appropriate financial records in accordance with all applicable federal and state laws.
LCMCS shall have audits performed in compliance with any applicable laws, as such laws may
be changed from time to time. At the present time, ORS 338.095(2) requires LCMCS to have an
annual audit of the accounts of LCMCS prepared in accordance with the Municipal Audit Law,

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 14



ORS 297.405 to 297.555 and 297.990, and requires that the annual audit be forwarded to the
District, the State Board of Education, and the Department of Education. LCMCS shall provide
a copy of its financial audit for the preceding fiscal year by October 15 of each year. LCMCS
will also provide quarterly financial statements to the District’s Chief Financial Officer.

12.7 Financial Management. LCMCS shall operate in accordance with generally
accepted standards of fiscal management applicable to Oregon nonprofit corporations, provided
that LCMCS’s accounting method shall comply in all instances with governmental accounting
requirements that explicitly apply to charter schools. Subject to this Agreement, LCMCS
through its Board of Directors shall be fiscally responsible for its own operations within the
limitations of any funding provided by the District and other revenues derived by LCMCS.
LCMCS’s budget and accounting system must be compatible with the District’s budget and
accounting system.

12.8 Other Sources of Funds for LCMCS: Fund Raising. In addition to the funding
under Section 12.2, LCMCS may accept gifts, donations, grants and loans, including those
described in ORS 338.155(9)[grants available to school districts from ODE] and ORS 338.185
[grants from ODE awarded to school districts]. LCMCS shall comply with all state and federal
laws regarding reporting of charitable contributions. LCMCS shall record all gifts, donations,
loans, and grants in the financial records required in Section 12.6. As provided in ORS
338.125(10), LCMCS may conduct fund-raising activities, but it shall not require a student to
participate in fund-raising activities as a condition of admission to LCMCS.

13. Governance and Operation.

13.1 Corporate Status; Governing Board.

13.1.2 LCMCS is and will remain an Oregon nonprofit corporation throughout
the term of this Agreement. LCMCS shall govern and operate LCMCS as set forth in this
Agreement, and the governing board of LCMCS will be the board of directors of LCMCS.

13.1.2 At the request of the District, LCMCS will give the District a copy of its
Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. If LCMCS makes any changes to its Articles of
Incorporation or Bylaws, it will give copies of the changes to the District. If the District believes
that any such changes violate either this Agreement or state or federal law, it will so notify
LCMCS. If LCMCS agrees, it will make necessary changes to the Articles or Bylaws to
conform to this Agreement or the applicable law; if the parties do not agree, the matter will be
resolved under Section 19.8.

13.1.3 LCMCS’s Bylaws will include a provision specifying that upon
termination of this Agreement or dissolution of LCMCS, the assets of LCMCS that were
purchased with public funds shall be given to the State Board of Education, as provided in ORS
338.105(6).

13.1.4 LCMCS’s Bylaws will include a provision that a majority of LCMCS’s
directors shall have a legal residence within the boundaries of the School District. LCMCS shall

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 15



provide the addresses of these majority directors of LCMCS in LCMCS’s annual report under
paragraph 10.5 of this Agreement.

13.2 Exempt Status under Section 501(c)(3) of Internal Revenue Code. LCMCS
has applied and received from the IRS a letter stating that LCMCS 1is qualified as an exempt
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

13.3  Nonreligious, Nonsectarian Status. As provided in ORS 338.035(7), LCMCS
shall not be affiliated with any nonpublic sectarian school or religious institution. As provided in
ORS 338.115(4), LCMCS shall not violate the Establishment Clause of the First Amendment to
the United States Constitution or section 5, Article I of the Oregon Constitution, or be religion
based. The parties agree that leasing a facility from a nonpublic sectarian school or religious
institution does not violate this Section 13.3.

13.4 Public Meetings. LCMCS and its Board of Directors, when acting as the
Governing Body of LCMCS, are subject to the provisions of the Oregon Public Meetings Law,
ORS 192.610 to 192.690.

13.5 Operational Powers. Subject to applicable federal and state laws and any
restrictions in this Agreement, LCMCS shall have authority to exercise independently all powers
granted to nonprofit corporations and charter schools under Oregon law.

14. Employment Matters.

14.1 District is not Employer. All provisions of this Section 14 are subject to state
and federal laws and applicable collective bargaining agreements, if any. The District shall not
be the employer of any employees of LCMCS. LCMCS may choose to enter into contracts to
provide services to the School or to fulfill responsibilities of LCMCS under this Agreement, in
which case the people actually providing the services or fulfilling the responsibilities will be
employees of such contractor; otherwise, LCMCS will be the employer of the staff at LCMCS.
LCMCS shall control the selection of employees.

14.2  Staff Hiring, Compensation, Benefits, PERS.

14.2.1 LCMCS governing board, in its sole discretion, has complete authority to
hire, evaluate, promote, discipline, supervise, and terminate LCMCS employees, and to set all
terms and conditions of employment, including all decisions regarding compensation and
benefits. LCMCS will be responsible for providing substitutes for all LCMCS teachers requiring
substitutes.

14.2.2 At least one-half of the total full-time equivalent (FTE) teaching and
administrative staff at LCMCS shall be licensed and any teaching or administrative staff not
licensed shall be registered with Teacher Standards and Practices Commission in accordance
with ORS 338.135(7) and OAR 584-023-0005. For any individual hired as a teacher, LCMCS
shall provide the District with evidence of certification, if any, or other qualification within 60
days after the individual’s initial date of hire. In addition, no later than August 15 of each year

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 16



LCMCS will send to the District a list of all licensed (teaching) staff, their licensure and their
Highly Qualified status with the Teachers Standards and Practices Commission.

14.2.3 All teaching and paraprofessional staff at LCMCS must meet “highly
qualified” status in accordance with the provisions of the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001
(NCLBA) prior to beginning their teaching assignment with LCMCS. LCMCS must submit the
names of all teaching and paraprofessional staff to the District by August 15 of each year, and
indicate compliance with this section 14.2.3 in the manner and timing as provided under Section
14.4.

14.2.4 For any employee of the District who chooses to work for LCMCS, any
leave of absence from the District shall be governed by ORS 338.135.

14.2.5 Licensed and classified staff and other employees of LCMCS will not be
included in the District’s respective bargaining units. Employee membership in a labor
organization and collective bargaining shall be governed by ORS 338.135.

14.2.6 Pursuant to ORS 338.135(5), LCMCS shall participate in the Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS) for its employees.

14.2.7 All staffing changes in LCMCS must be reported to the District via email
within five business days. The District will send an all-staff database document to LCMCS each
summer with the District’s current information about LCMCS staff. LCMCS must revise and
update the document as necessary, and return it to the District no later than August 15.

14.3 Employee Records. LCMCS shall be responsible for establishing and
maintaining personnel records for its employees, and for the maintenance, retention and
disclosure of employee records, all in compliance with all applicable federal and state laws.
LCMCS shall meet any and all reporting obligations to the Teacher Standards and Practices
Commission (“TSPC”) regarding its employees.

14.4 Criminal Records Checks. As provided in ORS 338.115(1)(g), 326.603,
326.607, and 342.232 (relating to criminal records checks) shall apply to LCMCS. LCMCS shall
not knowingly employ an individual or permit an individual to volunteer (i) for whom a criminal
background investigation has not been initiated or (ii) who has been convicted of an offense that
would preclude that individual from working in a public school in Oregon. No later than August
15 of each school year that LCMCS is in operation under this Agreement, LCMCS shall provide
to the District a list containing the names and job positions of all its employees. Such list shall
also indicate for each employee the date of initiation of the criminal background investigation
required by Oregon law.

14.5 Food Services Contracts. LCMCS will inform the District of any changes to its
food services contractor and will obtain approval from the District for its use of a specific food
service contractor prior to contracting with such food service contractor. LCMCS shall comply
with all applicable District policies, federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding the
provision of food services at a public school.

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 17



15. Application of and Compliance with Laws.

15.1 Compliance with Laws: Non-Exemption from Certain Laws. LCMCS shall
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations (including Oregon
Administrative Rules developed by the Oregon Department of Education regarding charter
schools). As provided in ORS 338.115(1), although statutes and rules that apply to school
district boards, school districts or other public schools shall generally not apply to LCMCS, the
following laws shall apply to LCMCS:

a. Federal law.

b. ORS 192.410 to 192.505 (Public Records Law).

c. ORS 192.610 to 192.690 (Public Meetings Law).

d. ORS 297.405 to 297.555 and 297.990 (Municipal Audit Law).

e. ORS 181.534, 326.603, 326.607, 342.223 and 342.232 (Criminal Records Checks).
f. ORS 337.150 (Textbooks).

g. ORS 339.141, 339.147 and 339.155 (Tuition and Fees).

h. ORS 659.850, 659.855 and 659.860 (Discrimination).

i. ORS 30.260 to 30.300 (Tort Claims).

j. Health and safety statutes and rules.

k. The statewide assessment system developed by the Department of Education under ORS
329.485(2).

1. ORS 329.045 (Academic Content Areas).

m. Any statute or rule that establishes requirements for instructional time provided by a school
each day or during a year.

n. ORS 339.250(12) (prohibition of infliction of corporal punishment).
0. ORS 339.370, 339.372, 338.388 and 339.400 (reporting of child abuse and sexual conduct).
p- ORS 339.326 (notice concerning students subject to juvenile court petitions).

g. ORS 657 (employment department law).

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 18



r. ORS Chapter 338.
s. ORS 326.565, 326.575, 326.580 (student records).

t. ORS 329.451 (high school diploma, modified diploma, extended diploma and alternative
certificate).

u. ORS 329.496 (physical education).
v. ORS 339.119 (consideration for educational services).
w. Any statute or rule that is listed in this Agreement.

15.2 Waiver. As provided in ORS 338.025(2), LCMCS may apply to the State Board
of Education to grant a waiver of any provision of ORS Chapter 338. LCMCS shall give the
District a copy of any application for a waiver promptly after submitting it and shall give the
District a copy of any grant of a waiver promptly after receiving it.

15.3 Amendment of Agreement to Conform to New and Changed Laws. The
parties intend that where this Agreement refers to federal or state law that they be bound by any
amendment to such laws, upon the effective date of such amendments, unless such amendments
do not apply to charter schools. To illustrate, under Section 12.6 of this Agreement, LCMCS is
required to have an annual audit prepared in accordance with the Municipal Audit Law, because
ORS 338.095(2) requires this to be done. If, at any time during the term of this Agreement, the
state amends existing statutes or develops any new rules, regulations or statutes that may affect
the terms of this Agreement, change restrictions or requirements on LCMCS, or otherwise affect
LCMCS, LCMCS and the District shall review this Agreement and may mutually agree to
amend this Agreement.

15.4 School Policies. LCMCS shall adopt policies as may be required by law and may
in its discretion adopt other policies governing operation of LCMCS; LCMCS shall make such
policies available for review at the District’s request. This Agreement requires LCMCS to
operate in accordance with District policies and procedures (Sections 6.1, 7.3.1, 7.4.2(a), 9,
10.2.3, 12.2.1). The District shall provide these policies and procedures to LCMCS and shall
update LCMCS when these polices are revised, rescinded or altered in any manner.

16. Insurance and Indemnification.

16.1 Insurance; Proof; Renewals. LCMCS shall, at its own expense, secure and
retain and provide proof of insurance of the types and in the amounts set forth in this Section 16.
As provided in ORS 338.115(13), prior to beginning operation shall show proof of such
insurance to the District; copies of certificates of insurance shall suffice as proof. If LCMCS
fails to provide such a certificate within ten (10) days after demand by District, District may
purchase the insurance required and bill LCMCS. LCMCS shall procure and pay for renewals of

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 19



such insurance prior to the time of expiration of such policies, and LCMCS shall deliver to
District certificates of such renewal policies before the expiration of any existing policy.

16.2 Property Insurance. The parties anticipate that LCMCS will enter into a lease or
other agreement relating to the LCMCS facility. LCMCS shall ensure that such lease or other
agreement provides that (a) the facility is to be insured under an all-risk or special forms policy
of insurance [such insurance may be purchased by the owner of the building or by LCMCS]; and
(b) such policy is a replacement cost policy on an “all risk of direct physical loss basis,”
including earthquake and flood perils.

16.3 Commercial General Liability Insurance.

16.3.1 LCMCS shall maintain a commercial general liability insurance policy
(occurrence form) with respect to the LCMCS facility and the operation of LCMCS, in
accordance with this Agreement. The policy shall be in effect no later than when LCMCS, or
any of its employees, agents, or subcontractors, enters the School facility to do any work in
connection with the School facility. LCMCS shall maintain such a policy thereafter throughout
the term of the Agreement, including all extensions and renewals.

16.3.2 Subject to the following sentence, the limit of LCMCS policy shall be a
minimum of $1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage per occurrence,
$3,000,000 annual aggregate covering LCMCS, the governing board, employees and volunteers
against liability for damages because of personal injury, bodily injury, death or damage to
property including the loss of use thereof. Coverage to include, but not limited to, contractual
liability, advertisers’ liability, employee benefits liability, professional liability and teachers’
liability. The minimum limits of liability may be satisfied by using a combination of commercial
general liability insurance and commercial excess/umbrella liability insurance (following form).
In addition, LCMCS’s policy shall contain coverage for premises medical payments in a
minimum amount of $10,000.

16.3.3 Such policy shall provide for contractual liability coverage with respect to
the indemnity obligation set forth in Section 16.9 of this Agreement.

16.4 Liability Insurance for Directors and Officers. LCMCS shall procure and
maintain liability insurance for directors and officers in an amount not less than $1,000,000 each
loss, $3,000,000 annual aggregate, covering LCMCS, LCMCS, the governing board of LCMCS,
employees, and volunteers against liability arising out of wrongful acts and employment
practices. Continuous “claims made” coverage will be acceptable, provided the retroactive date
is on the effective date of this Agreement.

16.5 Business Auto Liability Insurance. LCMCS shall procure and maintain
business auto liability insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit
covering LCMCS, the governing board, employees and volunteers against liability for damages
because of bodily injury, death or damage to property, including the loss of use thereof arising

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 20



out of the ownership, operation, maintenance or use of any automobile. The policy will include
underinsured and uninsured motorist vehicle coverage at the limits equal to bodily injury limits.

16.6 Workers’ Compensation Insurance. LCMCS shall procure and maintain
workers’ compensation insurance pursuant to ORS Chapter 656 on all LCMCS employees.
Employers’ liability insurance will be maintained with limits of $100,000 each accident,
$100,000 disease each employee and $500,000 each policy limit.

16.7 Honesty Bond. LCMCS shall procure and maintain an honesty bond to cover all
employees and volunteers of LCMCS. Limits are to be determined by LCMCS governing board,
but no less than $25,000. Coverage shall include faithful performance and loss of moneys and
securities.

16.8 Policy Requirements. The insurance policies required by this Agreement (i)
with respect only to the commercial general policy under Section 2 and the business auto liability
policy under Section 4, shall name the District as an additional insured; (ii) shall be issued for
periods of not less than one year; (ii1) shall be issued by insurance companies admitted to do
business in the State of Oregon; and (iv) shall contain a provision that they cannot be cancelled,
reduced in amount, substantially modified, or not renewed without thirty (30) days prior written
notice to the other party.

16.9 Indemnification.

16.9.1 LCMCS Indemnifies District. To the extent not covered by insurance or
otherwise barred by the Oregon Tort Claims Act in ORS Chapter 30, LCMCS agrees to
indemnify and hold the District, its Board, agents and employees harmless from all liability,
claims and demands on account of injury, loss or damage, including, without limitation, claims
arising from (1) the possession, occupancy or use of property of LCMCS (including after school
use of buildings by outside groups), its faculty, students, patrons, employees, guests or agents;
(2) civil rights violations, including Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, bodily injury,
personal injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or damage or any other losses of any kind
whatsoever which arise out of or are in any manner connected with LCMCS’s operations. This
indemnification shall not apply to any liability claims or demands resulting from the negligence
or wrongful act or omission of the District, its Board member, officer, agent, or employee.
LCMCS agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the District from all contract claims in
which LCMCS or LCMCS has obligated the District without the District’s prior written
approval. This indemnification shall not apply to any damages incurred regarding any act or
omission of LCMCS or LCMCS that is later determined to be required by law or this
Agreement. The foregoing provision shall not be deemed a relinquishment or waiver of any kind
of applicable limitations of liability provided in the Oregon Tort Claims Act.

16.9.2 District Indemnifies LCMCS. To the extent not covered by insurance or
otherwise barred by the Oregon Tort Claims Act in ORS Chapter 30, District agrees to indemnify
and hold LCMCS, its Board, agents and employees harmless from all liability, claims and
demands on account of injury, loss or damage, including without limitation, claims arising from
civil rights and "IDEIA" violation, bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, death,

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 21



property loss or damage or any other losses of any kind whatsoever which arise out of or are in
any manner connected with District’s operations. This indemnification shall not apply to any
liability claims or demands resulting from the negligence or wrongful act or omission of any
LCMCS or LCMCS Board member, officer, or employee. This indemnification shall not apply
to any liability claims or demands resulting from the negligence or wrongful act of any District
employee working at LCMCS whose negligent or wrongful act or omission is caused or directed
by LCMCS. This indemnification shall not apply to any damages incurred regarding any act or
omission of the District or District Board that is later determined to be required by law or this
Agreement. The foregoing provision shall not be deemed a relinquishment or waiver of any kind
of applicable limitations of liability provided in the Oregon Tort Claims Act.

16.9.3 Survival of Indemnification. This indemnification, defense and hold
harmless obligation on behalf of LCMCS and the District shall survive the termination of this
Agreement. Any indemnified party shall have the right, at its own expense, to participate in the
defense of any suit, without relieving the indemnifying party of any of its obligations hereunder.

17. Relationship between District and LCMCS.

17.1 Full Faith and Credit. LCMCS agrees that it will not extend the faith and credit
of the District to any third person or entity. LCMCS acknowledges and agrees that it has no
authority to enter into a contract that would bind the District. LCMCS’s governing board has the
authority to approve contracts to which LCMCS is a party, subject to the requirements and
limitations of the Oregon Constitution, state law, and the provisions of this Agreement.

17.2 District Disclaimer of Liability. The parties to this Agreement expressly
acknowledge that LCMCS is not operating as the agent, or under the direction and control, of the
District Board except as required by law or this Agreement, and except for any liability claims or
demands resulting from the negligence or wrongful act or omission of the District its Board
member, officer, agent, or employee, that the District Board assumes no liability for any loss or
injury resulting from:

17.2.1 The acts or omissions of LCMCS, its directors, trustees, agents or
employees;

17.2.2 The use and occupancy of the building occupied by LCMCS or any matter
in connection with the condition of such building; or

17.2.3 Any debt or contractual obligation incurred by the LCMCS.
18. Termination.

18.1 Grounds for Termination. As provided in ORS 338.105(1), the grounds for
termination of this Agreement by the District are as follows:

(a) Failure to meet the terms of the Agreement or ORS Chapter 338.

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 22



(b) Failure to meet the requirements for student performance stated in this
Agreement.

(c) Failure to correct a violation of a federal or state law that is described in ORS
338.115.

(d) Failure to maintain insurance as described in this Agreement.
(e) Failure to maintain financial stability.

(f) Failure to maintain, for two or more consecutive years, a sound financial
management system.

18.2 Notice of Breach: Opportunity to Cure; Dispute Resolution.

18.2.1 The parties recognize that the grounds for termination in Section 18.1 may
involve subjective judgment and may involve disputes between the parties as to whether proper
grounds for termination exist, and therefore the following process is agreed to as a means for
dealing with alleged breaches of this Agreement.

18.2.2 If the District believes that any breach of this Agreement by LCMCS has
occurred, it will give LCMCS written notice setting forth the alleged breach.

18.2.3 If LCMCS agrees that a breach has occurred, LCMCS will cure the breach
within thirty (30) days after the District notice was given. If, however, the breach is such that
LCMCS, by acting with due diligence, could not reasonably complete the cure within such time,
LCMCS shall not be in default unless LCMCS either (a) fails to commence to cure the breach
within such 30-day or other specified period, or (b) fails to diligently prosecute to completion all
steps necessary to completely remedy the breach as soon as is reasonably practicable after the
District gives such notice.

18.2.4 If LCMCS does not agree that a breach has occurred, LCMCS will give
the District a written explanation of the reasons why it believes no breach has occurred. The
parties will then attempt in good faith to resolve their differences, and either party may at any
time demand resolution of the dispute under Section 19.8.

18.3 Notice of Intent to Terminate; Hearing; Appeal.

18.3.1 If the breach by LCMCS has not been timely cured, or if it cannot be
cured, and if the matter is not being resolved by mediation, then the District may decide to
terminate this Agreement, in which case it will give LCMCS 60 days prior written notice of its
intent to terminate this Agreement. Such notice shall state the grounds for termination.

18.3.2 LCMCS may appeal the District’s decision to terminate this Agreement
directly to the District Board. LCMCS may respond to the allegations in the District’s written
notification by offering documentary evidence and oral argument. The District bears the burden

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 23



of proving the allegations in the written notification by a preponderance of the evidence.
LCMCS has the burden of proof for any affirmative defense to the allegations by a
preponderance of the evidence.

18.3.3 The Board’s decision may be appealed to the Oregon Department of
Education according to ORS 338.105(3).

18.4 Prompt Termination for Health and Safety Reasons.

18.4.1 As provided in ORS 338.105(4), notwithstanding sections 18.1—18.3, the
District may terminate this Agreement immediately and close LCMCS if LCMCS is endangering
the health or safety of its students.

18.4.2 LCMCS’s governing body may request a hearing from the District on the
termination of this Agreement under this subsection 18.4. The District shall hold a hearing within
10 days after receiving the request.

18.4.3 LCMCS’s governing body may appeal a decision of the District under this
subsection 18.4 to the State Board of Education. The State Board of Education shall hold a
hearing within 10 days after receiving the appeal request.

18.4.4 Throughout the appeals process, LCMCS shall remain closed at the
discretion of the District unless the State Board of Education orders the District to open LCMCS
and not terminate this Agreement.

18.5 Termination by LCMCS; Dissolution.

18.5.1 As provided in ORS 338.105(7), LCMCS’s governing body may only
terminate the Agreement or dissolve or close LCMCS at the end of a semester, unless the District
agrees to another date. If LCMCS intends to terminate this Agreement or dissolve or close
LCMCS, it shall give notice to the District at least 180 days prior to the proposed effective date
of the termination, closure or dissolution.

18.5.2 If LCMCS should cease operations for whatever reason, including, but not
limited to, the non-renewal or termination of this Agreement, or dissolution of LCMCS, it is
agreed that LCMCS governing board shall supervise and have authority to conduct the winding
up of the business and affairs of LCMCS; provided, however, that in doing so, the District does
not assume any liability incurred by LCMCS beyond the funds allocated to it by the District
under this Agreement. If LCMCS governing board fails to conduct such winding up in
accordance with applicable laws and standards, the District may take appropriate legal action to
do so. Upon dissolution, LCMCS must transfer all student education records to the District.

18.6 Effects of Termination or Dissolution. Until the effective date of termination of
this Agreement, the District shall continue to make the funding payments under Section 12. As
provided in ORS 338.105(5), termination of this Agreement shall not abridge LCMCS’s legal

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 24



authority to operate as a private or nonchartered public school. Upon dissolution or termination,
all permanent records connected to this Agreement shall be transferred to the District.

18.7 Assets Currently Owned by LCMCS; Property Inventory Control. LCMCS
shall maintain records of purchase orders for all assets relating to LCMCS that cost $500.00 or
more. These records shall indicate whether the assets were purchased with public funds (as
defined in Section 18.8) or non-public funds. No later than October 15 of each year that LCMCS
is in operation, LCMCS shall provide the District with a copy of this purchase order record for
the preceding fiscal year.

18.8 Definition of Public Funds. For purposes of this Contract, public funds shall
include any and all funds distributed to LCMCS:

18.8.1 By the District, pursuant to ORS 338.155 and ORS 338.165, and

18.8.2 By the Oregon Department of Education, including any and all federal
grant funds that LCMCS may apply for and be awarded by the Oregon Department of Education,
and

18.8.3 By any agency, division or branch of the United States Government, or
any entity created by an agency, division or branch of the United States Government.

18.9 Distribution of Assets upon Termination.

18.9.1 This Section 18.9 will apply if this Contract is terminated, at expiration of
the term (including all extensions and renewals), upon dissolution of LCMCS, or for any other
reason that LCMCS ceases operations as a public charter school under this Contract.

18.9.2 If any of the foregoing events in Section 18.9.1 occurs, all assets
purchased with public funds and still owned by LCMCS shall be given to the state Board of
Education in accordance with ORS 338.105(6). LCMCS will be entitled to retain ownership of
any asset that LCMCS has acquired through the expenditure of non-public funds.

18.9.3 The parties acknowledge that assets costing less than $500 may have little
value at the time this Section 18.9 applies. Therefore, LCMCS will not be held responsible by
the District for identifying assets costing less than $500 and purchased with public funds and
giving them to the state Board of Education, but the District does not waive any rights that the
state Board of Education may have to enforce ORS 338.105(6). If LCMCS does not maintain
records of purchase orders for all assets, or cannot provide records showing that an asset was
purchased with non-public funds, then it shall be assumed that the asset was purchased with
public funds, and upon termination the asset in question shall be given to the State Board of
Education pursuant to ORS 338.105(6).

19. Miscellaneous Provisions.

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 25



19.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, with Exhibits and the Application, contains
all terms, conditions and provisions of the agreement between the parties relating to creation and
operation of LCMCS and contains the entire understanding and all representations,
understandings, and discussions of the parties relating thereto. All prior agreements,
representations, drafts, statements, understandings, and discussions are merged herein and
superseded and cancelled by this Agreement. Neither party is relying upon any statement or
representation not embodied in this Agreement or in any other written agreement made
concurrently herewith.

19.2  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be
unenforceable or invalid by a court of law for any reason, the remainder of the Agreement shall
remain in effect, unless otherwise terminated by one or both of the parties in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement.

19.3 Amendment. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by written
agreement between LCMCS board of directors and the District Superintendent (or designee) or
District Board. If, at any time during the term of this Agreement, either party desires to amend
the Agreement, it may send the proposed amendment(s) to the other party, and thereafter the
parties will in good faith discuss and negotiate possible amendments. This subsection does not
impose on either party any duty to accept any amendment proposed by the other party.

19.4 No Waiver. The parties agree that no assent, express or implied, to any breach by
either of them of any one or more of the agreements expressed herein shall be deemed or be
taken to constitute a waiver of any succeeding or other breach.

19.5 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, subject to and construed
under the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to its conflicts of law provisions.

19.6 Assignment; Successors and Assigns. This Agreement may not be assigned by
LCMCS under any circumstances, it being expressly understood that the charter granted by this
Agreement runs solely and exclusively to LCMCS. This does not limit LCMCS’s right to enter
into contracts and Agreements to the full extent allowed to charter schools under Oregon law.
Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement bind
and benefit the legal representatives, successors and assigns of the parties.

19.7 Notice. Any notice, statement, demand, request, consent, approval or other
communication (collectively referred to in this Section 19.7 as “notices” or “notice”) required or
permitted to be given or made by either party, or its agent, to the other, pursuant to this
Agreement or pursuant to any applicable law or requirement of public authority, shall be in
writing and given by one of the following methods (with the effective date of the notice to be as
set forth below):

(a) By personal delivery to the person indicated on the execution page of this Agreement
(to be effective when actually delivered );

(b) By facsimile to the facsimile number set out on the execution page of this Agreement,
provided that the original notice is sent by one of the other methods described in this

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 26



Section or by first class U.S. Mail [notice by facsimile to be deemed effective when
receipt either is acknowledged by the addressee or its office or is confirmed by
confirming transmission equipment (provided this occurs before 5:00 p.m. Pacific
Time on a business day, otherwise it will be deemed effective on the next business
day)];

(©) By registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, with return receipt requested (to be
deemed effective two (2) days after mailing); or

(d) By nationally recognized reputable overnight courier, prepaid (to be deemed effective
on the date that the courier warrants that delivery will occur).

Notice sent by courier or mail shall be addressed to the other party [to the attention of the person
identified on the execution page of this Agreement] at the address set forth on the execution page

of this Agreement or such other person or address which may be designated by a party in writing.

19.8 Dispute Resolution; Mediation.

19.8.1 If any dispute arises between the District and LCMCS concerning this
Agreement, including, without limitation, an allegation of any breach or default, either party may
request mediation of the matter. The party requesting mediation shall do so by giving written
notice to that effect to the other party, specifying in the notice the nature of the dispute.
Mediation requires the consent of both parties, and nothing in this section shall be construed to
require either party to mediation without that party’s consent.

19.8.2 If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, either party may request the
Oregon Department of Education to appoint the mediator.

19.8.3 At any time during the mediation process, or if the parties are unable to
reach an agreement through mediation, either party may give notice to the other party and to the
mediator that it is terminating its participation in the mediation; after that, either party may
request a hearing before and decision by the District Board.

19.8.4 The parties shall share equally the fees and expenses of any mediator and
each party shall pay its own expenses incurred in any mediation.

19.8.5 As to any dispute that is not being determined through mediation, LCMCS
may request a hearing before and decision by the District Board.

19.8.6 LCMCS may appeal to the State Board of Education concerning those
matters within its jurisdiction under ORS Chapter 338.

19.9 Delegation by District. The parties agree and acknowledge that the functions
and powers of the District Board may be exercised by the Superintendent of the District, or by
the Superintendent’s designee and the functions of LCMCS may be exercised by the principal of
LCMCS, provided that any ultimate decision regarding renewal, non-renewal, or termination of
this Agreement may be made only by the District Board and the board of directors of LCMCS.

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 27



19.10 Prior Actions. As a condition precedent to this Agreement becoming effective
on the effective date specified above in Section 2.1, LCMCS shall have taken, completed and
satisfied on or before the date specified herein any action or obligation which is required to be
completed before such effective date, and failure to do so shall constitute grounds for the District

to declare this Agreement null and void.

19.11 LCMCS Authority to Enter Into Agreement. LCMCS expressly affirms that

the signatories on its behalf who sign below have the authority to enter into this Agreement on
behalf of LCMCS and that the Board of Directors of LCMCS has duly approved of this
Agreement. At District’s request, LCMCS shall provide to the District a copy of its written
resolution authorizing LCMCS to enter into this Agreement.

19.12 Definition of Business Day. For purpose of this Agreement, “business day”
means a day in which the District administrative offices are open. “Business day” does not
include (a) Saturdays, (b) Sundays, (c) official state holidays listed in ORS 336.010, (d) federal
holidays, (e) District scheduled spring vacation, (f) any day(s) in which the administrative office
is closed due to inclement weather, or (g) any day that the District administrative office is closed
due to action taken by, or ordered to be closed by, the District Board of Directors or the Board’s
designee, or the government of the City or County in which the District is located, or the State of

Oregon, or the federal government.

19.13 Incorporation of Application and Exhibits. Attached hereto and incorporated

herein by this reference are Exhibit A (The Application and LCMCS Response to Questions
dated 3.18.08); and Exhibit B (Goals and Evaluation, referred to in Section 10.3).

EXECUTED this day of July, 2012.

LEWIS AND CLARK MONTESSORI
CHARTER SCHOOL
an Oregon nonprofit corporation

By:
Scott Kilgo, Chair

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF GRESHAM-
BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT #10J

By:

Title: School Board Chairperson

Approved as to form:

Address for Notice Purposes:

Scott Kilgo, Chair

Lewis and Clark Montessori Charter School
14151 SE 242nd

Damascus, OR 97089

Telephone: 503-427-0803

Fax: 503-855-3017

Address for Notice Purposes:
Jim Schlachter, Superintendent
Gresham-Barlow School District
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, Oregon 97030
Telephone: 503-618-2450

Fax: 503-661-1589

July ,2012

CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT

PAGE 28



By:

District Legal Counsel

July ,2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 29



EXHIBIT B
TO CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT

CHARTER SCHOOL GOALS AND EVALUATION GUIDELINES

As provided in Section 10.3 of the Agreement, only the following specific goals relating to
student performance are to be considered in evaluating whether LCMCS has failed to meet the
requirements for student performance (and thus could be a basis for termination of this
Agreement) under ORS 338.105(1)(b).

If a conflict exists between any provision of this Exhibit B and Exhibit A (the charter application
and response questions submitted by LCMCS), this Exhibit B provision will govern and

supersede any provision contained in the charter application. Lorie A. Odegaard 6/22/12 3:31 PM
Deleted: LCMS

1. Oregon Statewide Assessments.

1.1.  Administering Assessments. LCMCS will administer the Oregon Statewide
Assessments to its students, administered on the same schedule as the District and as required by
state laws and regulations. The initial grades tested (once those grades have been added to the
LCMCS) will be 3" with additional grades added as they are added to LCMCS and as required
by state or federal law (No Child Left Behind Act). By September 15 of each year, LCMCS will
submit to District a list of all assessments used to measure student achievement.

1.2 Results. During the term of this Agreement, the average score for each student
subgroup in each grade level of LCMCS's students taking the Oregon Statewide Assessment(s)
shall meet or exceed scores of the District’s students for each student subgroup in each grade
level that have taken the statewide assessment or local assessment. Also, LCMCS’s average
scores and/or outcomes for the student groups identified in any state or federal accountability
system applying to the District (e.g. the Achievement Compact) shall meet or exceed the scores
of District students in those same groups.

1.2.1_For purposes of this Section 1.2, the following student subgroups shall be |

utilized when comparing student assessment scores: L°ie Odegaard 6/22/12 3:31 PM
Deleted: -

6] racial/ethnicity

(i)  students with disabilities

(iii)  Limited English Proficient (LEP)
(iv)  economically disadvantaged

1.2.2,For purposes of Section 1.2, student assessment scores shall be compared by | _
student subgroup when there is a statistically significant number of students in the subgroup. The Lorie A. Odegaard 6/22/12 3:31 PM
term “statistically significant” shall mean six (6) or more students.
Lorie A. Odegaard 6/22/12 3:31 PM
2. Classroom-based Assessment. Teachers will use classroom-based assessments based Deleted:

on the portfolios created by students and classroom observations. These portfolios are based on

EXHIBIT B TO CHARTER AGREEMENT Page 1



Montessori curriculum and State standards. Teachers will assess reading based on published
reading inventories, written and oral communication through student samples, and a classroom-
based assessment to identify a student's strength and weaknesses in mathematics computation,
problem solving and communication. Beginning in grade 3, teachers will use classroom based
assessments to assess students understanding of Science Concepts and vocabulary in addition to
Language Arts and Mathematics.

3. Parent Satisfaction. Parents' involvement with the education of their children attending
LCMCS will be maintained by consistent communication by LCMCS of their children's
progress. LCMCS will conduct annual surveys of parents about LCMS's operations to gain
additional information to drive quality management.

4. Reports of Assessment Results.

4.1 Reports to District. After LCMCS receives results of the assessments in Section
1, it will give the District a report of the results. LCMCS will also include assessment results in
Section 2 and 3 in its annual reports to the District.

4.2 Improvements in Methodology. The parties will continue throughout the term
of this Agreement to work together to improve the methodology for analyzing and reporting
achievement growth.

5. Addressing Deficiencies; School Improvement Plan. Either LCMCS or the District

may identify student performance that has fallen below these achievement goals. If that occurs,

LCMCS, with any assistance the District is able and willing to provide, will develop school

improvement plans (and include such plans as part of the annual reports) to address the identified

deficiencies. Such plans shall specify goals for improvement, timelines, and specific actions

different from normal school operations that will be taken to help achieve such goals. LCMCS’s |

annual reports will also discuss the results of implementation of school improvement plans. If
LCMCS fails to implement such a plan, the District may issue a written notice to LCMCS that it \ Deleted: LCMC's

must comply with the terms of the plan immediately. If LCMCS fails to comply with the terms

of the plan, the default section of the Charter Agreement will apply.

EXHIBIT B TO CHARTER AGREEMENT Page 2



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
Tim Drilling
DATE: July 12, 2012
RE: No. 19 - Charter School Renewal: Gresham Arthur Academy
Public Charter School
EXPLANATION: The Gresham Arthur Academy Public Charter School renewal was

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

TD:lc

presented to the board at the February 23 board work session, and
a public hearing was held March 1. At the April 5 business
meeting, the board conditionally approved the renewal, subject to
negotiation of a contract to address the requirement for local
governance of the charter school.

During contract negotiations, Gresham Arthur Academy agreed
to maintain the local board of directors for the Gresham charter
school, and this is reflected in the contract.

The next step in the renewal process is for the Gresham-Barlow
School District board of directors to approve the contract.

Tim Drilling
1. Charter School Agreement Between the Board of Directors of

Gresham-Barlow School District #10] and Gresham Arthur
Academy Public Charter School, Inc.

2. Exhibit B to Charter School Agreement, Charter School Goals

and Evaluation Guidelines

The administration recommends approval of the contract to renew
the Gresham Arthur Academy.

Move to approve the Charter School Agreement Between the
Board of Directors of Gresham-Barlow School District #10] and
Gresham Arthur Academy Public Charter School, Inc.



CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT

DATED: ,2012
PARTIES:  BETWEEN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT #10J (“District”)
AND: GRESHAM ARTHUR ACADEMY PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

an Oregon nonprofit corporation (“GAAPCS”)

RECITALS

A. On November 20, 2006, pursuant to ORS Chapter 338 the developer of the GAAPCS,
Mastery Learning Institute, Inc (“MLI”) submitted to the District an application (attached and
incorporated as Exhibit A) for formation of the Gresham Arthur Academy Public Charter School
GAAPCS to operate within the District.

B. The District Board held a public hearing on the provisions of the Application and
evaluated the criteria set forth in ORS 338.055 and District policies, and the District has
determined that the Application, as amended by this Agreement, complies with the purposes and
requirements of ORS 338 and District policies.

C. By resolution adopted March 1, 2007, the District Board conditionally approved the
Application and agreed to become the sponsor of the GAAPCS contingent upon the negotiation
and execution of a contract acceptable to GAAPCS and the District.

D. This Agreement, including the Application and its Exhibits, will constitute the agreement
between the parties regarding the governance and operation of the GAAPCS and the legal
authorization for the establishment of the GAAPCS under ORS 338.065(1).

E. GAAPCS requested a renewal of this Agreement and on March 1, 2012 the District held
a public hearing on the renewal in accordance with ORS 338.065(4).

F. The District agreed to a renewal on April 5, 2012 effective July 1, 2012, to be in effect
for a period of five years, subject to renewal in accordance with this agreement and ORS Chapter
338.

G. The parties desire that the GAAPCS be authorized to operate and conduct its affairs in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement and Oregon law.

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 1



CHARTER AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual understandings,
covenants, and payments herein described, the parties agree as follows:

1. Grant of Charter.

The Gresham-Barlow School District #10J Board of Education (referred to herein as either the
“District” or the “District Board”) has approved the GAAPCS’s charter school proposal
(“Application”), is the sponsor of GAAPCS known as the Gresham Arthur Academy Public
Charter School, Inc (“GAAPCS”) that is to be operated in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement, and hereby grants a charter pursuant to the terms herein.

2. Effective Date; Term:; Renewal.

2.1 Effective Date. When this Agreement has been duly executed by both the
District Board and the GAAPCS’s board of directors, it shall be legally binding on both parties
and shall act as the legal authorization for the establishment of the Gresham Arthur Academy
Public GAAPCS as a public charter school, as provided in ORS 338.065(1).

2.2 Term. The GAAPCS shall be permitted to operate the GAAPCS for a term of
five (5) school years, subject to the other terms of this Agreement. The first school year under

this renewal shall begin in September 2012, and thus this renewal term shall expire June 30,
2017.

2.3 Renewal of Term. Renewal of this Agreement will be governed by ORS
338.065.

3. Application is Incorporated:; Conflict between Application and Agreement.

The District accepts the Application of the developer MLI for the GAAPCS, including all the
terms and provisions therein, except as modified by this Agreement, and the Application is
incorporated into this Agreement. However, in the case of any conflict between any term of the
Application and any term of this Agreement, this Agreement shall govern. Furthermore, a
failure by GAAPCS to perform or fulfill any term or provision of the Application shall not be a
breach of this Agreement unless such failure is specifically described as a breach in this
Agreement.

4. [Not Used]

5. Grade Range of GAAPCS: Number of Students; Minimum.

5.1 Number of Grades. The GAAPCS may provide instruction to students in grades
kindergarten through fifth grade. On or before April 1 of each year of the GAAPCS’s operation,
the GAAPCS shall give notice to the District Board of the grades that will be included for the
school year beginning the following September.

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 2



5.2 Number of Students. The GAAPCS’s plan is to enroll between 25 and 30
students in each grade. In no event shall a class have more than 30 students enrolled.

5.3 Minimum Number of Students in School. As provided in ORS 338.115(5), the
GAAPCS shall maintain an active enrollment of at least 25 students.

54 Maximum Number of Students in School. The GAAPCS will enroll no more
than 180 students total.

6. Enrollment and Admissions.

6.1 Voluntary Enrollment; Who is Eligible. Student enrollment in the GAAPCS
shall be voluntary. All students who meet legal age requirements applicable to a particular grade
level [for example, minimum ages for children entering kindergarten and first grade] will be
eligible for enrollment. These requirements will be consistent with District policies relating to
admission of students into any grade. Other than the age of a student and the preferences
allowed by law (see Section 6.6), and the preference for District residents described in Section
6.8, there will be no criteria for selection of students. A student will be deemed admitted to and
enrolled in the GAAPCS when the student’s application has been unconditionally accepted by
the GAAPCS following completion of a phase of the enrollment process described below and
after conditions to such acceptance have been satisfied. Enrollment of special education students
is governed by Section 7.

6.2 Phased Enrollments; Deadlines. The GAAPCS may, in its discretion, elect to
conduct a series of open enrollments for each school year, provided the process conforms to this
Agreement. Each year, the GAAPCS will set deadlines by which applications must be received
for each phase of the enrollment process and will determine the number of students to be
admitted in each grade. These deadlines may change from year to year at the discretion of the
GAAPCS. The GAAPCS Board will approve any forms and policies that may otherwise be
needed to govern the enrollment process, and may change those from time to time as they
determine what works best. The Academy will accumulate all applications received on or before
the deadline for each phase of enrollment; applicants are not accepted on a "first come, first
served" basis, except as provided in Section 6.5 [after waiting list is exhausted].

6.3 Application Process; First Phase of Enrollment Process. Beginning on a date
set each year by the GAAPCS and up through the deadline for the first phase of enrollment set
under Section 6.2, prospective students may apply for admission to the GAAPCS for the school
year that begins the following September. For the first phase of the enrollment process, if the
number of applications received by the deadline for the first phase is less than or equal to the
number of students to be admitted for each grade as determined under Section 6.2, then all the
applications for that grade will be accepted (applications from nonresidents are governed by
Section 6.8). To illustrate, if the determined number of students to be admitted for a grade is 25,
and if 20 applications are received, then all 20 applicants will be accepted. The remaining five
“available spaces” will be filled in the second or later phases.

If the number of applications received for any grade is greater than the number of students to be
admitted for that grade, then the GAAPCS will conduct an equitable lottery, in a manner
determined by the GAAPCS and consistent with state law and District policy, to admit the

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 3



maximum allowed number of students for that grade and to create a waiting list for subsequent
admission should a space become available later. To illustrate, if the number of students to be
admitted for a grade is 25, and if 40 applications are received, then 25 applicants will be
accepted through the lottery process, and a waiting list of 15 can be determined [with order of
priority on the waiting list also determined through the lottery process].

To take into account the priority given by law to resident students (as provided in Section 6.8), if,
out of the 40 applications, 30 are from resident students and 10 are from nonresidents, then a
lottery will be held first as to the 30 resident applications and 25 will be accepted, with five
going on the waiting list. Then a lottery will be held among the 10 nonresidents to determine
order of priority on the waiting list.

6.4 Second and Additional Phases of Enrollment. If the GAAPCS receives fewer
applications than the maximum number of students allowed for any grade, then the GAAPCS
will set a second application deadline. The admissions process will be the same as with the first
phase, but will apply only with respect to the “available spaces,” if any, for each grade.
However, the GAAPCS may also accept additional applicants in order to create or expand a
waiting list for any grade.

Finally, if after the second enrollment there still remain “available spaces” in any grade, or the
GAAPCS desires to create or expand a waiting list for any grade, the GAAPCS may set a third
and additional application deadlines before the school year begins. The admissions process will
be the same as with the second phase, again applying only with respect to the “available spaces”
for each grade (or to create or expand a waiting list for any grade). Thereafter, including during
the school year, additional students who apply will be added to the waiting list in the order the
applications are received.

6.5 Use of Waiting List; Filling Spaces if No Waiting List. If at any time a student
who has been enrolled declines to attend the GAAPCS, or if an attending student withdraws or is

permanently expelled, the GAAPCS may admit the next student on its waiting list for the
applicable grade. The GAAPCS may enroll the first student who applies after a space becomes
available in a situation where (a) the final phase of enrollment under Section 6.4 has been
completed, or the space becomes available during the school year; and (b) either there is no
waiting list for the applicable grade or all students on the waiting list for that grade have already
enrolled or have been extended an offer to enroll and have declined.

6.6 Preferences After First Year. As provided in ORS 338.125, in the second and
following years of operation, the GAAPCS may give admissions preference to (1) students who
were enrolled in the GAAPCS in the prior year, and (2) applicants who have siblings who are
presently enrolled in the GAAPCS and who were enrolled in the GAAPCS in the prior year.

6.7  Nondiscrimination. As provided in ORS 338.125(2), GAAPCS may not limit
student admission based on race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, ethnicity, national origin,
disability, the terms of an individualized education program, income level, proficiency in the
English language or athletic ability, but may limit admission to students within a given age group
or grade level.

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 4



6.8 Nonresident Students; Limitations.

6.8.1 As provided in ORS 338.125(2), if space is available the GAAPCS may
admit students who do not reside in the District. At each phase of the enrollment process,
preference will be given to residents of the District. Nonresident applicants may be accepted to
fill any “available spaces” (including spaces on waiting lists) in accordance with this Section 6.8.

6.8.2 For ease of reference, all phases of enrollment for which the application
deadline is on or before May 1 will be referred to as “pre-May 1-phases”; and all phases that take
place after May 1 will be referred to as “post-May 1-phases.” “New applications” means
applications received as of the deadline that applies to any particular phase, as contrasted with
applications received at an earlier phase.

6.8.3 At each pre-May 1-phase, nonresident applicants will be placed on a
waiting list, the order of which will be determined by lottery at each phase (thus, those received
in the first phase will be placed in numerical order by lottery; those received in the second phase
will likewise be placed in order following the waiting list from the first phase, and so on for each
other pre-May 1-phase).

6.8.4 This subsection 6.8.4 applies to the final pre-May 1-phase. Any available
spaces for any grade as of the final pre-May 1-phase will be filled in the following order: (a) new
applications from resident students; (b) applications from nonresident students received at earlier
phases in the order determined by the lottery for each of those phases; and (c) new applications
from nonresident students. Applicants will be placed on the waiting list in the following order:
(1) resident students placed on the waiting list at earlier phases; (ii) new applications from
resident students at the final pre-May 1-phase; (ii1) nonresident students placed on the waiting
list at earlier phases; and (iv) new applications from nonresident students placed on the waiting
list at the final pre-May 1-phase. The students on the waiting list at that point have priority over
all students, resident and nonresident, who apply at a later phase (the post-May 1-phases).

6.8.5 This subsection 6.8.5 applies to the post-May 1-phases. Any available
spaces for any grade at each post-May 1-phase will be filled in the following order: (a) new
applications from resident students; and (b) new applications from nonresident students.
Applicants will be added to the end of any existing waiting list in the following order: (i) new
applications from resident students; and (ii) new applications from nonresident students.

6.8.6 The parties recognize that acceptance of a nonresident applicant at the
final pre-May 1-phase or at any post-May 1-phase could create uncertainty and unfairness
because of the possibility that the law requires that a resident applicant who is accepted at a later
phase must be given priority and thus could “bump” the previously accepted nonresident.
Therefore, the parties agree that once a nonresident is accepted in the manner described above,
the nonresident will not be “bumped” by a resident who has submitted an application as part of a
later phase of enrollment; if necessary, the parties will work together to seek a waiver of the
applicable state law.

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 5



6.8.7. In the event a nonresident student is admitted in GAAPCS, GAAPCS
agrees to:

(a) Provide written notice of the student’s enrollment to the District within 10
days. The written notice must include contact information for the enrolled
student’s parent or guardian.

(b) Provide written notice of the student’s withdrawal to the District within 10
days. The written notice must include contact information for the enrolled
student’s parent or guardian

6.9  Dual Enrollment. During a school year, if the GAAPCS learns that one of its
students remains enrolled at another private or public school, the GAAPCS will notify the other
school of this fact and will inform the student's parents that they should take whatever steps may

be required to have their child withdrawn from enrollment in the other school or from enrollment
in the GAAPCS.

7. Special Education Students.

7.1 Special Education Students; IDEA. In this Agreement, the term “special
education students” means children with disabilities to whom the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act (“IDEA”) applies.

7.2 Application and Enrollment.

7.2.1 The GAAPCS application form will ask if the student has an
Individualized Education Program (“IEP”’) under IDEA. For any prospective student with an
IEP, the GAAPCS will, immediately, or as soon as practicable, notify the IEP team leader (if
known) or the District liaison for special education issues. The latest date for the notification to
the district is the date on which the GAAPCS knows the student is admitted and eligible for
special education services. A representative from the GAAPCS will attend the IEP team meeting
at which the team will determine whether or not the GAAPCS is the appropriate placement. This
representative shall be a regular education teacher unless the district approves in advance of the
meeting that another GAAPCS representative will attend. If the IEP team cannot meet before the
GAAPCS holds its enrollment lottery under Section 6, then the IEP student(s) will be included in
the lottery as if the placement had been approved. Any student with an IEP whose application is
accepted will receive a conditional acceptance; the acceptance and enrollment will become final
when the IEP team has determined that the GAAPCS is the appropriate placement.

7.2.2 The GAAPCS will admit students without regard to their status as special
education students, if the student's IEP team determines that the school is the appropriate
placement. The parties intend by this process to ensure that the GAAPCS does not
unintentionally discriminate against enrolling special education students or otherwise violate
applicable laws.

7.3 Child Find; Accepted Students Later Determined to be Special Education
Students. GAAPCS will work closely with the District and any other referring school district to

ensure that the District’s Child Find responsibilities are carried out in good faith with respect to
students enrolled in GAAPCS. GAAPCS will ensure that at least one of its teaching staff has

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 6



been trained in the Child Find process, or if none have been so trained, GAAPCS will arrange for
at least one of its teaching staff to receive such training. GAAPCS will promptly notify the
District if a GAAPCS student is suspected of having a disability and may need evaluation to
determine eligibility for special education and will comply with the District’s practices and
policies for referral of any District student for evaluation. Any student referred for evaluation
shall remain enrolled at GAAPCS until an IEP team determines that GAAPCS is not the
appropriate placement for that student.

7.3.1 GAAPCS shall provide a list of newly admitted and enrolled students on a
monthly basis so that the District is able to identify students who are in the evaluation process.

7.4 Administering the IEP’s.

7.4.1 GAAPCS will work closely with the District to ensure that special
education and related services are provided. The parties recognize there will likely be several
methods or “delivery mechanisms” for providing these services, and because there is no way to
know in advance the specific needs of all special education students who will enroll at GAAPCS,
there is no way to specify in this Agreement anything more than a general framework or set of
principles for seeing to it that the IEP's are administered.

7.4.2  The following shall apply:

(a) The GAAPCS will comply with all District policies and regulations
(including those regarding discipline) and the requirements of state and
federal law concerning the education of children under IDEA.

(b) Each IEP team must include a District representative and appropriate
District specialists. The GAAPCS will have a teacher on the IEP team of
each enrolled special education student. The GAAPCS will work closely
with the rest of the IEP team to determine how to meet the goals of the
IEP, and how to arrange for the special accommodations and services
required. The IEP team will continue to evaluate the placement during the
school year, as the IEP team deems appropriate. The GAAPCS will not
change the student's program without IEP team action. GAAPCS shall
provide the accommodations and modifications to the regular education
curriculum and instruction called for the in the student’s IEP. GAAPCS
teachers will assist the district in the development of progress reports
related to annual IEP goals. GAAPCS teachers will cooperate with the
district in evaluation and reevaluation process, including completing
teacher observation/behavior checklists, and sharing results of academic
assessments and work samples.

(©) GAAPCS staff will comply with training required by an IEP team for
delivery of services to a GAAPCS student, although the District is
responsible for providing special education services. The District will pay
the costs of any training of GAAPCS staff that the IEP team determines is
required to accomplish the implementation of an IEP for a student. This is

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 7



limited to costs for substitutes, consultants, course fees, and necessary
supplies and materials.

(d) The District has the discretion to determine which specialized programs
will be offered on site at the GAAPCS facility. For those services that the
IEP team, the District, and the GAAPCS mutually agree would be best
delivered by District employees, the GAAPCS will make every reasonable
effort to work closely with District staff to assist in the effective delivery
of the services. This might include either on-site or pull-out service
delivery.

(e) For those services that the IEP team, the District, and the GAAPCS
mutually agree would be best delivered by GAAPCS employees, the
GAAPCS and the District may negotiate a contract under which the
District will compensate the GAAPCS for such special services.

€y} Special education transportation will only be provided to a GAAPCS
special education student if it is a related service on the student's IEP.

(g) GAAPCS shall protect all personally identifiable student information
relating to special education students attending GAAPCS and will
maintain a complete special education file.

(h) GAAPCS will cooperate with district in the event the district is required to
participate in a special education administrative complaint or due process
proceeding.

7.5 Funding for Special Education Students. ORS 338.165 governs funding
relating to special education students. The funds from the Oregon Department of Education
representing the ADMw for GAAPCS special education students shall be retained by the
District. Any portion of these funds payable to the GAAPCS for services provided under Section
7.4 would be governed by the separate contract described in Section 7.4.2(e).

8. School Year: School Dav: Hours of Operation.

The GAAPCS may be flexible in its calendar and in the scheduling of its daily activities,
provided it conforms to any requirements of state law. However, the GAAPCS anticipates that
its annual calendar shall generally match the calendar of the District, and the GAAPCS may
maintain a typical nine-month school year for its regular academic program. If the GAAPCS
adopts a calendar different from the District's calendar that results in additional service costs to
the District for services the GAAPCS either requests or requires under separate contract on those
days that the GAAPCS is open but the District is not open (for example, costs of providing
special education services), the GAAPCS shall reimburse the District for these costs. The
number of instructional hours during each school year shall comply with requirements of state
law.

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 8



9. Records.

The GAAPCS shall comply with all record keeping requirements of federal and state law and
shall provide any reports, as necessary, to meet the District’s reporting obligations to the Oregon
Department of Education. Before the first year of operation, and from time to time thereafter as
state requirements change, the District shall provide the GAAPCS with a list of records and
information required for the District to meet its state reporting requirements. The GAAPCS shall
comply with all applicable federal and state laws concerning the maintenance, retention and
disclosure of student records, including, without limitation, the Oregon Public Records Law. All
records established and maintained in accordance with this Agreement shall be open to
inspection by the District.

10. Program and Curriculum, Goals, and Evaluation.

10.1 Acceptance by District of Program and Curriculum.

10.1.1 The District accepts the curriculum and program design of the GAAPCS
as set forth in the Application and agrees to waive any District program and curricular
requirements that are not incorporated into such curriculum design. The District’s intent is to
allow the GAAPCS, within the requirements of state law, to promote and implement new,
innovative, and flexible programs, curricula, learning environments, and learning methods.

The GAAPCS agrees to obtain prior approval from the District before making a
fundamental change to the educational program outlined in its Application. A fundamental
change to the educational program means (i) discontinuing use of the Direct Instruction Model
for teaching reading, writing, mathematics and spelling, or (ii) substantially changing the use of
the Oregon State Standards for social sciences and science, or (ii1) adopting a curriculum that
does not meet then-applicable state standards. The District may, at its sole discretion, approve or
disapprove fundamental changes in the educational program.

10.1.2 The parties agree that the Application sets forth the overall goals,
standards and general operational policies of the GAAPCS, and that the Application is not a
complete statement of each detail of the GAAPCS’s operation. To the extent that the GAAPCS
desires to implement specific programs, policies, procedures or other specific terms of operation
that supplement or otherwise differ from those in the Application, the GAAPCS shall be
permitted to implement such programs, policies, procedures and specific terms of operation,
provided that they are consistent with the goals, standards and general operational policies set
forth in the Application, this Agreement and ORS chapter 338.

10.1.3 The parties will collaborate in efforts to help GAAPCS fifth grade
students prepare for their transition from fifth grade at the GAAPCS to sixth grade at another
District school. Such collaboration may include arranging for visits by District counselors and
other District staff to meet with GAAPCS fifth grade students and visits by the students to other
District schools where the students might attend sixth grade. The GAAPCS will, from time to
time, present to the District ideas or a plan on how best to help students succeed in that
transition, and the District can respond with comments or its own ideas and suggestions.

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 9



10.2 Responsibilities of GAAPCS. The GAAPCS is responsible for doing the
following in compliance with state law:

10.2.1 Designing and implementing its curriculum and other components of its
educational program as set forth in the Application.

10.2.2 Conforming to all state requirements concerning subjects, academic
content, and other educational matters.

10.2.3 Providing required services, if any, to students who are English language
learners (ESL students) under ORS 336.079 and other provisions of the law.

10.2.4 Providing required services, if any, to academically low achieving
students.

10.2.5 Implementing the state-required assessments as provided in ORS
338.115(1)(j). The GAAPCS will send a list of all assessment to be used to measure student
achievement by September 15 of each year.

10.2.6 Surveying its student population for eligibility for free and reduced
lunches under federal and state law if it elects to provide lunch for its students.

104 Goals and Evaluation. Although the GAAPCS has many goals, many of which
are set forth in the Application, only the specific goals relating to student performance that are
set forth in Exhibit B are to be considered in evaluating whether the GAAPCS has failed to meet
the requirements for student performance (and thus could be a basis for termination of this
Agreement) under ORS 338.105(1)(b).

10.5 Annual Report. The GAAPCS will submit an annual report to the District and
the State Board of Education in accordance with ORS 338.095(2) on the performance of the
GAAPCS and its students by October 1 of each year applicable to the preceding fiscal/school
year. This report will include information necessary to make a determination of compliance with
the requirements of ORS Chapter 338. This report will include, among other things, information
relating to the goals and evaluation described in Section 10.4. The parties agree that the District
will be responsible for obtaining an independent charter review for the purpose of this annual
evaluation. The GAAPCS will reimburse the District for the costs of this review up to the
amount of $7,500.

11. School Facility and Transportation.

11.1  Facility

11.1.1 The GAAPCS will be located at the Mountain View Church site, 1890 NE
Cleveland Ave., Gresham, OR 97030 for the foreseeable future.

11.2  Approvals and Permits; Payment of Expenses. The GAAPCS is responsible
for obtaining all necessary permits and approvals relating to use of the facility, including
building and occupancy permits, and any health and safety approvals. The GAAPCS has full

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 10



responsibility for all costs related to its facility and any playground equipment, other equipment,
furniture, and fixtures; such responsibility includes purchase costs, rental, utilities, maintenance,
repair, cleaning, and replacement.

11.3 Transportation. The District is not responsible for providing transportation by
bus or otherwise of any students to the GAAPCS. However, the District will allow GAAPCS
students to ride on District buses to and from the GAAPCS, to the extent seats are available for
such students; this does not obligate the District to add or extend existing bus routes or other
transportation services, as provided in ORS 338.145(2). The District will give the GAAPCS a
two-week notice if a bus on a particular route has consistently become too full to transport
GAAPCS students so that parents have time to make other arrangements. The parties recognize
that many of the GAAPCS students may not be able to use existing District bus routes for
transportation to and from the GAAPCS.

For any District student who does not have transportation to and from the GAAPCS, the
GAAPCS will make efforts to arrange for car pooling with other GAAPCS families. With
respect to arranging transportation for its students, however, this Agreement does not impose on
the GAAPCS an obligation to lease or purchase buses, vans, or other vehicles; to employ or
contract with drivers of such vehicles or with transportation service providers; or to incur
expenses for insurance, fuel, repairs, or maintenance in connection with transportation for its
students.

12. Financial Matters; Funding;: Annual Budgets; Annual Audit.

12.1 No Tuition; Fees. The GAAPCS will not charge tuition to students, except as
may be allowed under ORS 339.155 or other applicable law. As noted in ORS 338.115(1), the
following laws shall apply to the GAAPCS: ORS 339.141, ORS 339.147, and ORS 339.155. In
accordance with state law, the GAAPCS may charge reasonable fees for instructional materials,
after-school programs, and student activities. The GAAPCS shall waive all fees for indigent
students in accordance with applicable federal and state law.

12.2 Annual Funding.

12.2.1 Keeping Count. The GAAPCS shall identify and count, and keep
accurate records of, its number of enrolled students and their days present and absent;
attendance; special education students; students eligible for and enrolled in an English as a
Second Language program under ORS 336.079; and other data required in order to calculate
average daily membership, weighted average daily membership (ADMw), and related terms
necessary to determine funding under state law, particularly ORS 338.155 and 327.013. The
GAAPCS shall use the District’s student information system and shall be responsible for proper
input of required information.

12.2.2 Calculating ADMw and Funding.

(a) For each school year, the District shall provide funding to the GAAPCS in
accordance with ORS 338.155(2), as that formula may be changed from
time to time. Until the law is changed, the funding shall be 80% of the

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 11



(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

District’s “Charter School Rate,” as determined by the State of Oregon
Department of Education; multiplied by the GAAPCS ADMw.

The GAAPCS shall determine its ADMw for the period to be covered by
reports given to the District [using projected ADMw for the first reports
specified below].

The calculation of the additional amounts under ORS 327.013 shall
include, but not be limited to, an additional 0.5 for each student in average
daily membership eligible for and enrolled in an English as a Second
Language program under ORS 336.079.

In addition, to take into account the “poverty factor” under ORS 327.013,
and as required by ORS 338.157, the parties will use the same percentage
used in calculating the District’s adjusted poverty factor, as that
percentage may be changed from time to time. To illustrate, suppose the
poverty factor used for the District is 16% of ADM; assume the ADM for
the GAAPCS is 100 students; then 100 would be multiplied by 16%; and
this would be multiplied by 0.25; thus, a total of 4.0 would be added to the
GAAPCS’s ADM in calculating ADMw.

This Agreement will be changed to conform to any changes in state law
relating to the calculation of ADMw or otherwise that affects funding of
charter schools.

12.2.3 Reports to District. The GAAPCS shall give written reports to the
District, containing the data set forth in Sections 12.2.1 and 12.2.2, on or before the tenth (10™)
day of each of the following months of each school year: July, August, September, October,
November, December, January, February, March, April, and May. The July and August reports
(and possibly the September report), and thus the payments due from the District based on those
reports, will be based on the GAAPCS projected ADMw.

12.2.4 Dates of Payments by District to GAAPCS.

(2)

(b)

Pursuant to ORS 338.155(8), the District shall send payment to the
GAAPCS in the percentages set out by applicable law (generally 8.33%
per month but currently 16.67% in July) within 10 days after receiving
payments from the State School Fund pursuant to ORS 327.095.

The parties recognize that there may be fluctuations from month to month
in the total sum on which the monthly percentage amounts are calculated
due to fluctuations in the GAAPCS ADMw during a school year, as well
as due to possible changes in the state’s determination of the general
purpose grant or GAAPCS's Rate, and thus the amount payable by the
District to the GAAPCS may change from month to month. There will be
an adjustment with the final [May or June] payment, as provided in state
law, to reflect changes in calculation of ADMw and changes, if any, in the
general purpose grant amount or GAAPCS's Rate, as well as changes with

July 2012

CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 12



respect to funding during prior school years that may be based on final
calculations of ADMw and the general purpose grant amount or
GAAPCS's Rate that are not finalized until after the end of a school year.

12.2.5 End of State Funding. The financial commitment on the part of the
District contained in this Agreement is subject to annual appropriation by the State of Oregon,
and the District has no obligation to fund GAAPCS operations if State funding does not occur.

12.3 Annual Budgets. On or before May 1 of each year, the GAAPCS shall submit to
the District its proposed budget for the following school year, so that the District can review it as
part of its consideration of the GAAPCS’s financial stability. The GAAPCS shall be responsible
for all costs associated with school operations, including the costs of subcontracting for goods
and services, except as expressly provided in this Agreement.

12.4 Fiscal Agent. The GAAPCS shall act as its own fiscal agent.

12.5 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the GAAPCS shall begin on July 1 of each year
and end on June 30 of the subsequent year.

12.6 Financial Records. Audits and Accounting Reports. The GAAPCS shall
maintain and retain appropriate financial records in accordance with all applicable federal and
state laws. The GAAPCS shall have audits performed in compliance with any applicable laws,
as such laws may be changed from time to time. At the present time, ORS 338.095(2) requires
the GAAPCS to have an annual audit of the accounts of the GAAPCS prepared in accordance
with the Municipal Audit Law, ORS 297.405 to 297.555 and 297.990, and requires that the
annual audit be forwarded to the District, the State Board of Education, and the Department of
Education. GAAPCS shall provide a copy of its financial audit by October 15 of each year.

12.7 Financial Management. GAAPCS shall operate in accordance with generally
accepted standards of fiscal management applicable to Oregon nonprofit corporations, provided
that GAAPCS’s accounting method shall comply in all instances with governmental accounting
requirements that explicitly apply to charter schools. Subject to this Agreement, GAAPCS
through its Board of Directors shall be fiscally responsible for its own operations within the
limitations of any funding provided by the District and other revenues derived by GAAPCS.
GAAPCS’s budget and accounting system must be compatible with the District’s budget and
accounting system.

12.8 Other Sources of Funds for GAAPCS:; Fund Raising. In addition to the
funding under Section 12.2, the GAAPCS may accept gifts, donations, grants and loans,
including those described in ORS 338.155(9) and ORS 338.185. The GAAPCS shall comply
with all state and federal laws regarding reporting of charitable contributions. The GAAPCS
shall record all gifts, donations, loans, and grants in the financial records required in Section
12.6. As provided in ORS 338.125(10), the GAAPCS may conduct fund-raising activities, but it
shall not require a student to participate in fund-raising activities as a condition of admission to
the GAAPCS.

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 13



13. Governance and Operation.

13.1 Corporate Status; Governing Board.

13.1.2 The GAAPCS is and will remain an Oregon nonprofit corporation
throughout the term of this Agreement. The GAAPCS shall govern and operate the GAAPCS as
set forth in this Agreement, and the governing board of the GAAPCS will be the board of
directors of the GAAPCS.

13.1.2 At the request of the District, the GAAPCS will give the District a copy of
its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. If the GAAPCS makes any changes to its Articles of
Incorporation or Bylaws, it will give copies of the changes to the District. If the District believes
that any such changes violate either this Agreement or state or federal law, it will so notify the
GAAPCS. If the GAAPCS agrees, it will make necessary changes to the Articles or Bylaws to
conform to this Agreement or the applicable law; if the parties do not agree, the matter will be
resolved under Section 19.8.

13.1.3 The GAAPCS’s Bylaws will include a provision specifying that upon
termination of this Agreement or dissolution of the GAAPCS, the assets of the GAAPCS that
were purchased with public funds shall be given to the State Board of Education, as provided in
ORS 338.105(6).

13.1.4 The GAAPCS’s Bylaws will include a provision requiring that there shall
be a majority of the GAAPCS’s directors whose legal residence is within the boundaries of the
School District. GAAPCS shall provide the addresses of these majority directors of GAAPCS in
the GAAPCS’s annual report under paragraph 10.5 of this agreement.

13.2 Exempt Status under Section 501(¢)(3) of Internal Revenue Code. The
GAAPCS has obtained a letter from the IRS stating that the GAAPCS is qualified as an exempt
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

13.3  Nonreligious, Nonsectarian Status. As provided in ORS 338.035(7), the
GAAPCS shall not be affiliated with any nonpublic sectarian school or religious institution. As
provided in ORS 338.115(4), the GAAPCS shall not violate the Establishment Clause of the First
Amendment to the United States Constitution or section 5, Article I of the Oregon Constitution,
or be religion based.

13.4 Public Meetings. The GAAPCS and its Board of Directors, when acting as the
Governing Body of the GAAPCS, are subject to the provisions of the Oregon Public Meetings
Law, ORS 192.610 to 192.690.

13.5 Operational Powers. Subject to applicable federal and state laws and any
restrictions in this Agreement, the GAAPCS and the GAAPCS shall have authority to exercise
independently all powers granted to nonprofit corporations and charter schools under Oregon
law.

13.5.1 GAAPCS may enter into a contract with MLI for management of
GAAPCS’s operations and educational programming, subject to the District’s prior approval of

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 14



the management contract between GAAPCS and MLI. The management contract between
GAAPCS and MLI is attached and incorporated in this agreement as Exhibit A. If GAAPCS
elects to enter into a management contract with MLI, neither MLI nor GAAPCS will assign its
interests in the contract to any third party without the School District’s prior written consent.

13.5.2 In the event GAAPCS enters into a management contract with MLI to
provide employees, including a school administrator for GAAPCS, GAAPCS agrees to provide

at least a .5 FTE school administrator to oversee the GAAPCS’s charter school operation on site.

14. Employment Matters.

14.1 GAAPCS is Employer. All provisions of this Section 14 are subject to state and
federal laws and applicable collective bargaining agreements, if any. The District shall not be
the employer of any employees of the GAAPCS or the GAAPCS. The GAAPCS may choose to
enter into contracts to provide services to the School or to fulfill responsibilities of the GAAPCS
under this Agreement, in which case the people actually providing the services or fulfilling the
responsibilities will be employees of such contractor; otherwise, the GAAPCS will be the
employer of the staff at GAAPCS. The GAAPCS shall control the selection of employees.

14.1.1 In the event GAAPCS enters into a management contract with MLI for the
use of MLI employees to run the day to day operations of the charter school, GAAPCS shall
assure that MLI’s employees working at GAAPCS are subject to all of the provision of Section
14 of this agreement.

14.2  Staff Hiring, Compensation, Benefits, PERS.

14.2.1 The GAAPCS governing board, in its sole discretion, has complete
authority to hire, evaluate, promote, discipline, supervise, and terminate GAAPCS employees,
and to set all terms and conditions of employment, including all decisions regarding
compensation and benefits. The GAAPCS will be responsible for providing substitutes for all
GAAPCS teachers requiring substitutes.

14.2.2 At least one-half of the total full-time equivalent (FTE) teaching and
administrative staff at the GAAPCS shall be licensed in accordance with ORS 338.135(7). For
any individual hired as a teacher, the GAAPCS shall provide the District with evidence of
certification, if any, or other qualification within 60 days after the individual’s initial date of hire.
In addition, no later than August 15 of each year the GAAPCS will send to the District a list of
all licensed (teaching) staff, their licensure and their Highly Qualified status with the Teachers
Standards and Practices Commission.

14.2.3 For any employee of the District who chooses to work for the GAAPCS,
any leave of absence from the District shall be governed by ORS 338.135.

14.2.4 Licensed and classified staff and other employees of the GAAPCS will not
be included in the District’s respective bargaining units. Employee membership in a labor
organization and collective bargaining shall be governed by ORS 338.135.

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 15



14.2.5 Pursuant to ORS 338.135(5), the GAAPCS shall participate in the Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS) for its employees.

14.2.6 All staffing changes in the GAAPCS must be reported to the District via
email within five business days. The District will send an all-staff database document to the
GAAPCS each summer with the District’s current information about GAAPCS staff. The
GAAPCS must revise and update the document as necessary, and return it to the District no later
than August 15.

14.3 Employee Records. The GAAPCS shall be responsible for establishing and
maintaining personnel records for its employees, and for the maintenance, retention and
disclosure of employee records, all in compliance with all applicable federal and state laws. The
GAAPCS shall meet any and all reporting obligations to the Teacher Standards and Practices
Commission (“TSPC”) regarding its employees.

14.4 Criminal Records Checks. As provided in ORS 338.115(1)(g), 326.603,
326.607, and 342.232 (relating to criminal records checks) shall apply to the GAAPCS. The
GAAPCS shall not knowingly employ an individual (i) for whom a criminal background
investigation has not been initiated or (i) who has been convicted of an offense that would
preclude that individual from working in a public school in Oregon. No later than August 15th
of each school year that the GAAPCS is in operation under this Agreement, the GAAPCS shall
provide to the District a list containing the names and job positions of all its employees. Such
list shall also indicate for each employee the date of initiation of the criminal background
investigation required by Oregon law.

15. Application of and Compliance with Laws.

15.1 Compliance with Laws:; Non-Exemption from Certain Laws. The GAAPCS
shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations (including Oregon
Administrative Rules developed by the Oregon Department of Education regarding charter
schools). As provided in ORS 338.115(1), although statutes and rules that apply to school
district boards, school districts or other public schools shall generally not apply to the GAAPCS,
the following laws shall apply to the GAAPCS:

a. Federal law.

b. ORS 192.410 to 192.505 (Public Records Law).

c. ORS 192.610 to 192.690 (Public Meetings Law).

d. ORS 297.405 to 297.555 and 297.990 (Municipal Audit Law).

e. ORS 181.534, 326.603, 326.607, 342.223 and 342.232 (Criminal Records Checks).
f. ORS 337.150 (Textbooks)

g. ORS 339.141, 339.147 and 339.155 (Tuition and Fees).

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 16



h. ORS 659.850,659.855 and 659.860 (Discrimination).
i. ORS 30.260 to 30.300 (Tort Claims).
j. Health and safety statutes and rules.

k. The statewide assessment system developed by the Department of Education under ORS
329.485(2).

1. ORS 329.045 (Academic Content Areas).

m. Any statute or rule that establishes requirements for instructional time provided by a school
each day or during a year.

n. ORS 339.250(12) (prohibition of infliction of corporal punishment).

0. ORS 339.370, 339.372, 339.388 and 339.400(reporting of child abuse and sexual conduct);
and

p. ORS Chapter 338.
g. ORS 326.565, 326.575, 326.580 (student records).

r. ORS 329.451 (high school diploma, modified diploma, extended diploma and alternative
certificate).

s. ORS 329.496 (physical education).

t. ORS 339.326 (notice concerning students subject to juvenile court petitions).
u. ORS Chapter 657 (Employment Department Law)

v. ORS 339.119 (consideration for educational services).

w. Any statute or rule that is listed in this Agreement.

15.2 Waiver. As provided in ORS 338.025(2), the GAAPCS may apply to the State
Board of Education to grant a waiver of any provision of ORS Chapter 338. The GAAPCS shall
give the District a copy of any application for a waiver promptly after submitting it and shall
give the District a copy of any grant of a waiver promptly after receiving it.

15.3 Amendment of Agreement to Conform to New and Changed Laws. The
parties intend that where this Agreement refers to federal or state law that they be bound by any
amendment to such laws, upon the effective date of such amendments, unless such amendments
do not apply to charter schools. To illustrate, under Section 12.6 of this Agreement, the
GAAPCS is required to have an annual audit prepared in accordance with the Municipal Audit
Law, because ORS 338.095(2) requires this to be done. However, if ORS 338.095(2) were to be
amended so that different audit standards were to apply to charter schools, the parties intend that

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 17



thereafter they would be bound by the law as amended; the GAAPCS would not be required to
continue to have audits performed in accordance with the Municipal Audit Law, notwithstanding
the language in Section 12.6. If, at any time during the term of this Agreement, the state amends
existing statutes or develops any new rules, regulations or statutes that may affect the terms of
this Agreement, change restrictions or requirements on the GAAPCS, or otherwise affect the
GAAPCS, the GAAPCS and the District shall review this Agreement and conform it
accordingly.

15.4 School Policies. The GAAPCS shall adopt policies as may be required by law
and may in its discretion adopt other policies governing operation of the GAAPCS; the GAAPCS
shall make such policies available for review at the District’s request.

16. Insurance and Indemnification.

16.1 Insurance; Proof; Renewals. The GAAPCS shall, at its own expense, secure
and retain and provide proof of insurance of the types and in the amounts set forth in this Section
16. As provided in ORS 338.115(13), prior to beginning operation, the GAAPCS shall show
proof of such insurance to the District; copies of certificates of insurance shall suffice as proof.
If the GAAPCS fails to provide such a certificate within ten (10) days after demand by District,
District may purchase the insurance required and bill the GAAPCS. The GAAPCS shall procure
and pay for renewals of such insurance prior to the time of expiration of such policies, and the
GAAPCS shall deliver to District certificates of such renewal policies before the expiration of
any existing policy.

16.2 Property Insurance. The parties anticipate that the GAAPCS will enter into a
lease or other agreement relating to the GAAPCS facility. The GAAPCS shall ensure that such
lease or other agreement provides that (a) the facility is to be insured under an all-risk or special
forms policy of insurance [such insurance may be purchased by the owner of the building or by
the GAAPCS]; and (b) such policy is a replacement cost policy on an “all risk of direct physical
loss basis,” including earthquake and flood perils.

16.3 Commercial General Liability Insurance.

16.3.1 The GAAPCS shall maintain a commercial general liability insurance
policy (occurrence form) with respect to the GAAPCS facility and the operation of the
GAAPCS, in accordance with this Agreement. The policy shall be in effect no later than when
the GAAPCS, or any of its employees, agents, or subcontractors, enters the School facility to do
any work in connection with the School facility. The GAAPCS shall maintain such a policy
thereafter throughout the term of the Agreement, including all extensions and renewals.

16.3.2 Subject to the following sentence, the limit of the GAAPCS policy shall
be a minimum of $1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage per occurrence,
$3,000,000 annual aggregate covering the GAAPCS, the governing board, employees and
volunteers against liability for damages because of personal injury, bodily injury, death or
damage to property including the loss of use thereof. Coverage to include, but not limited to,
contractual liability, advertisers’ liability, employee benefits liability, professional liability and
teachers’ liability. The minimum limits of liability may be satisfied by using a combination of
commercial general liability insurance and commercial excess/umbrella liability insurance

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 18



(following form). In addition, the GAAPCS’s policy shall contain coverage for premises
medical payments in a minimum amount of $10,000.

16.3.3 Such policy shall provide for contractual liability coverage with respect to
the indemnity obligation set forth in Section 16.9 of this Agreement.

16.4 Liability Insurance for Directors and Officers. The GAAPCS shall procure
and maintain liability insurance for directors and officers in an amount not less than $1,000,000
each loss, $3,000,000 annual aggregate, covering the GAAPCS, the GAAPCS, the governing
board of the GAAPCS, employees, and volunteers against liability arising out of wrongful acts
and employment practices. Continuous “claims made” coverage will be acceptable, provided the
retroactive date is on the effective date of this Agreement.

16.5 Business Auto Liability Insurance. The GAAPCS shall procure and maintain
business auto liability insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit
covering the GAAPCS, the governing board, employees and volunteers against liability for
damages because of bodily injury, death or damage to property, including the loss of use thereof
arising out of the ownership, operation, maintenance or use of any automobile. The policy will
include underinsured and uninsured motorist vehicle coverage at the limits equal to bodily injury
limits.

16.6 Workers’ Compensation Insurance. The GAAPCS shall procure and maintain
workers’ compensation insurance pursuant to ORS chapter 656 on all GAAPCS employees.
Employers’ liability insurance will be maintained with limits of $100,000 each accident,
$100,000 disease each employee and $500,000 each policy limit;

16.7 Honesty Bond. The GAAPCS shall procure and maintain an honesty bond to
cover all employees and volunteers of the GAAPCS. Limits are to be determined by the
GAAPCS governing board, but no less than $25,000. Coverage shall include faithful
performance and loss of moneys and securities.

16.8 Policy Requirements. The insurance policies required by this Agreement (i)
with respect only to the commercial general policy under Section 2 and the business auto liability
policy under Section 4, shall name the District as an additional insured; (ii) shall be issued for
periods of not less than one year; (ii1) shall be issued by insurance companies admitted to do
business in the State of Oregon; and (iv) shall contain a provision that they cannot be cancelled,
reduced in amount, substantially modified, or not renewed without thirty (30) days prior written
notice to the other party.

16.9 Indemnification.

16.9.1 GAAPCS Indemnifies District. To the extent not covered by insurance
or otherwise barred by the Oregon Tort Claims Act in ORS Chapter 30, the GAAPCS agrees to
indemnify and hold the District, its Board, agents and employees harmless from all liability,
claims and demands on account of injury, loss or damage, including, without limitation, claims
arising from (1) the possession, occupancy or use of property of GAAPCS (including after
school use of buildings by outside groups), its faculty, students, patrons, employees, guests or
agents; (2) civil rights violations, bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, death, property
loss or damage or any other losses of any kind whatsoever which arise out of or are in any

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 19



manner connected with GAAPCS’s operations. This indemnification shall not apply to any
liability claims or demands resulting from the negligence or wrongful act or omission of any
District Board member, officer, agent, or employee. The GAAPCS agrees to indemnify, hold
harmless and defend the District from all contract claims in which the GAAPCS or the GAAPCS
has obligated the District without the District’s prior written approval. This indemnification
shall not apply to any damages incurred regarding any act or omission of the GAAPCS or the
GAAPCS that is later determined to be required by law or this Agreement. The foregoing
provision shall not be deemed a relinquishment or waiver of any kind of applicable limitations of
liability provided in the Oregon Tort Claims Act. GAAPCS shall assure that any management
contract between it and MLI shall contain a provision in which MLI agrees to defend, indemnify
and hold harmless District from all liability, claims and demands resulting from MLI’s
employees or agents.

16.9.2 District Indemnifies GAAPCS. To the extent not covered by insurance
or otherwise barred by the Oregon Tort Claims Act in ORS Chapter 30, District agrees to
indemnify and hold the GAAPCS and the GAAPCS, its Board, agents and employees harmless
from all liability, claims and demands on account of injury, loss or damage, including without
limitation, claims arising from civil rights violation, bodily injury, personal injury, sickness,
disease, death, property loss or damage or any other losses of any kind whatsoever which arise
out of or are in any manner connected with District’s operations. This indemnification shall not
apply to any liability claims or demands resulting from the negligence or wrongful act or
omission of any GAAPCS or GAAPCS Board member, officer, or employee. This
indemnification shall not apply to any liability claims or demands resulting from the negligence
or wrongful act of any District employee working at the GAAPCS whose negligent or wrongful
act or omission is caused or directed by the GAAPCS or the GAAPCS. This indemnification
shall not apply to any damages incurred regarding any act or omission of the District or District
Board that is later determined to be required by law or this Agreement. The foregoing provision
shall not be deemed a relinquishment or waiver of any kind of applicable limitations of liability
provided in the Oregon Tort Claims Act.

16.9.3 Survival of Indemnification. This indemnification, defense and hold
harmless obligation on behalf of the GAAPCS and the District shall survive the termination of
this Agreement. Any indemnified party shall have the right, at its own expense, to participate in
the defense of any suit, without relieving the indemnifying party of any of its obligations
hereunder.

17. Relationship between District and GAAPCS.

17.1 Full Faith and Credit. The GAAPCS agrees that it will not extend the faith and
credit of the District to any third person or entity. The GAAPCS acknowledges and agrees that it
has no authority to enter into a contract that would bind the District. The GAAPCS’s governing
board has the authority to approve contracts to which the GAAPCS or the GAAPCS is a party,
subject to the requirements and limitations of the Oregon Constitution, state law, and the
provisions of this Agreement.

17.2 District Disclaimer of Liability. The parties to this Agreement expressly
acknowledge that the GAAPCS is not operating as the agent, or under the direction and control,

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 20



of the District Board except as required by law or this Agreement, and that the District Board
assumes no liability for any loss or injury resulting from:

17.2.1 The acts or omissions of the GAAPCS (or the GAAPCS), its directors,
trustees, agents or employees;

17.2.2 The use and occupancy of the building occupied by the GAAPCS or any
matter in connection with the condition of such building; or

17.2.3 Any debt or contractual obligation incurred by the GAAPCS (or
GAAPCS).

18. Termination.

18.1 Grounds for Termination. As provided in ORS 338.105(1), the grounds for
termination of this Agreement by the District are as follows:

(a) Failure to meet the terms of the Agreement or ORS Chapter 338.

(b) Failure to meet the requirements for student performance stated in this
Agreement.

(©) Failure to correct a violation of a federal or state law that is described in
ORS 338.115.

(d) Failure to maintain insurance as described in this Agreement.
(e) Failure to maintain financial stability.

) Failure to maintain, for two or more consecutive years, a sound financial
management system.

18.2 Notice of Breach: Opportunity to Cure; Dispute Resolution.

18.2.1 The parties recognize that the grounds for termination in Section 18.1 may
involve subjective judgment and may involve disputes between the parties as to whether proper
grounds for termination exist, and therefore the following process is agreed to as a means for
dealing with alleged breaches of this Agreement.

18.2.2 If the District believes that any breach of this Agreement by the GAAPCS
has occurred, it will give the GAAPCS written notice setting forth the alleged breach.

18.2.3 If the GAAPCS agrees that a breach has occurred, the GAAPCS will cure
the breach within thirty (30) days after the District notice was given. If, however, the breach is
such that the GAAPCS, by acting with due diligence, could not reasonably complete the cure
within such time, the GAAPCS shall not be in default unless the GAAPCS either (a) fails to
commence to cure the breach within such 30-day or other specified period, or (b) fails to

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 21



diligently prosecute to completion all steps necessary to completely remedy the breach as soon as
is reasonably practicable after the District gives such notice.

18.2.4 If the GAAPCS does not agree that a breach has occurred, the GAAPCS
will give the District a written explanation of the reasons why it believes no breach has occurred.
The parties will then attempt in good faith to resolve their differences, and either party may at
any time demand resolution of the dispute under Section 19.8.

18.3 Notice of Intent to Terminate; Hearing; Appeal.

18.3.1 If the breach by the GAAPCS has not been timely cured, or if it cannot be
cured, and if the matter is not being resolved by mediation, then the District may decide to
terminate this Agreement, in which case it will give the GAAPCS 60 days prior written notice of
its intent to terminate this Agreement. Such notice shall state the grounds for termination.

18.3.2 The GAAPCS may appeal the District’s decision to terminate this
Agreement directly to the District Board. GAAPCS may respond to the allegations in the
District’s written notification by offering documentary evidence and oral argument. The District
bears the burden of proving the allegations in the written notification by a preponderance of the
evidence. GAAPCS has the burden of proof for any affirmative defense to the allegations by a
preponderance of the evidence.

18.3.3 The Board’s decision may only be appealed to the Oregon Department of
Education according to ORS 338.105(3).

18.4 Prompt Termination for Health and Safety Reasons.

18.4.1 As provided in ORS 338.105(4), notwithstanding sections 18.1—18.3, the
District may terminate this Agreement immediately and close the GAAPCS if the GAAPCS is
endangering the health or safety of its students.

18.4.2 The GAAPCS governing body may request a hearing from the District on
the termination of this Agreement under this subsection 18.4. The District shall hold a hearing
within 10 days after receiving the request.

18.4.3 The GAAPCS governing body may appeal a decision of the District under
this subsection 18.4 to the State Board of Education. The State Board of Education shall hold a
hearing within 10 days after receiving the appeal request.

18.4.4 Throughout the appeals process, the GAAPCS shall remain closed at the
discretion of the District unless the State Board of Education orders the District to open the
GAAPCS and not terminate this Agreement.

18.5 Termination by GAAPCS; Dissolution.

18.5.1 As provided in ORS 338.105(7), the GAAPCS governing body may only
terminate the Agreement or dissolve or close the GAAPCS at the end of a semester, unless the
District agrees to another date. If the GAAPCS intends to terminate this Agreement or dissolve

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 22



or close the GAAPCS, it shall give notice to the District at least 180 days prior to the proposed
effective date of the termination, closure or dissolution.

18.5.2 If the GAAPCS should cease operations for whatever reason, including,
but not limited to, the non-renewal or termination of this Agreement, or dissolution of the
GAAPCS, it is agreed that the GAAPCS governing board shall supervise and have authority to
conduct the winding up of the business and affairs of the GAAPCS; provided, however, that in
doing so, the District does not assume any liability incurred by the GAAPCS beyond the funds
allocated to it by the District under this Agreement. If the GAAPCS governing board fails to
conduct such winding up in accordance with applicable laws and standards, the District may take
appropriate legal action to do so.

18.6  Effects of Termination or Dissolution. Until the effective date of termination of
this Agreement, the District shall continue to make the funding payments under Section 12. As
provided in ORS 338.105(5), termination of this Agreement shall not abridge GAAPCS’s legal
authority to operate as a private or nonchartered public school. Upon dissolution or termination,
all permanent records, including student education records, shall be transferred to the District.

18.7 Assets Currently Owned by GAAPCS: Property Inventory Control. The
GAAPCS shall maintain records of purchase orders for all assets relating to the GAAPCS that
cost $500.00 or more. These records shall indicate whether the assets were purchased with
public funds (as defined in Section 18.8) or non-public funds. No later than October 15th of
each year that the GAAPCS is in operation, the GAAPCS shall provide the District with a copy
of this purchase order record for the preceding fiscal year.

18.8 Definition of Public Funds. For purposes of this Contract, public funds shall
include any and all funds distributed to the GAAPCS:

18.8.1 By the District, pursuant to ORS 338.155 and ORS 338.165, and

18.8.2 By the Oregon Department of Education, including any and all federal
grant funds that the GAAPCS may apply for and be awarded by the Oregon Department of
Education, and

18.8.3 By any agency, division or branch of the United States Government, or
any entity created by an agency, division or branch of the United States Government.

18.9 Distribution of Assets upon Termination.

18.9.1 This Section 18.9 will apply if this Contract is terminated, at expiration of
the term (including all extensions and renewals), upon dissolution of the GAAPCS, or for any
other reason that the GAAPCS ceases operations as a public charter school under this Contract.

18.9.2 If any of the foregoing events in Section 18.9.1 occurs, all assets
purchased with public funds and still owned by the GAAPCS shall be given to the state Board of
Education in accordance with ORS 338.105(6). The GAAPCS will be entitled to retain
ownership of (a) any asset that is listed on Exhibit C and is identified as being purchased with

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 23



non-public funds, and (b) any other asset that the GAAPCS has acquired through the expenditure
of non-public funds.

18.9.3 The parties acknowledge that assets costing less than $500 may have little
value at the time this Section 18.9 applies. Therefore, the GAAPCS will not be held responsible
by the District for identifying assets costing less than $500 and purchased with public funds and
giving them to the state Board of Education, but the District does not waive any rights that the
state Board of Education may have to enforce ORS 338.105(6). If the GAAPCS does not
maintain records of purchase orders for all assets, or cannot provide records showing that an
asset was purchased with non-public funds, then it shall be assumed that the asset was purchased
with public funds, and upon termination the asset in question shall be given to the State Board of
Education pursuant to ORS 338.105(6).

19. Miscellaneous Provisions.

19.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, with Exhibits and the Application, contains
all terms, conditions and provisions of the agreement between the parties relating to creation and
operation of the GAAPCS and contains the entire understanding and all representations,
understandings, and discussions of the parties relating thereto. All prior agreements,
representations, drafts, statements, understandings, and discussions are merged herein and
superseded and cancelled by this Agreement. Neither party is relying upon any statement or
representation not embodied in this Agreement or in any other written agreement made
concurrently herewith.

19.2  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be
unenforceable or invalid by a court of law for any reason, the remainder of the Agreement shall
remain in effect, unless otherwise terminated by one or both of the parties in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement.

19.3 Amendment. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by written
agreement between the GAAPCS and the District Superintendent (or designee) or District Board.
If, at any time during the term of this Agreement, either party desires to amend the Agreement, it
may send the proposed amendment(s) to the other party, and thereafter the parties will in good
faith discuss and negotiate possible amendments. This subsection does not impose on either
party any duty to accept any amendment proposed by the other party.

19.4 No Waiver. The parties agree that no assent, express or implied, to any breach by
either of them of any one or more of the agreements expressed herein shall be deemed or be
taken to constitute a waiver of any succeeding or other breach.

19.5 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, subject to and construed
under the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to its conflicts of law provisions.

19.6 Assignment; Successors and Assigns. This Agreement may not be assigned by
the GAAPCS under any circumstances, it being expressly understood that the charter granted by
this Agreement runs solely and exclusively to the GAAPCS. This does not limit the GAAPCS’s
or the GAAPCS’s right to enter into contracts and Agreements to the full extent allowed to
charter schools under Oregon law. The parties recognize that this provision does not limit

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 24



GAAPCS’s right to enter into a management contract with MLI for its operations as set forth in
Section 13.5 above. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the provisions of
this Agreement bind and benefit the legal representatives, successors and assigns of the parties.

19.7 Notice. Any notice, statement, demand, request, consent, approval or other
communication (collectively referred to in this Section 19.7 as "notices" or "notice") required or
permitted to be given or made by either party, or its agent, to the other, pursuant to this
Agreement or pursuant to any applicable law or requirement of public authority, shall be in
writing and given by one of the following methods (with the effective date of the notice to be as
set forth below):

(a) By personal delivery to the person indicated on the execution page of this
Agreement (to be effective when actually delivered );

(b) By facsimile to the facsimile number set out on the execution page of this
Agreement, provided that the original notice is sent by one of the other
methods described in this Section or by first class U.S. Mail [notice by
facsimile to be deemed effective when receipt either is acknowledged by
the addressee or its office or is confirmed by confirming transmission
equipment (provided this occurs before 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time on a
business day, otherwise it will be deemed effective on the next business
day)];

(©) By registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, with return receipt
requested (to be deemed effective two (2) days after mailing); or

(d) By nationally recognized reputable overnight courier, prepaid (to be
deemed effective on the date that the courier warrants that delivery will
occur).

Notice sent by courier or mail shall be addressed to the other party [to the attention of the person
identified on the execution page of this Agreement] at the address set forth on the execution page

of this Agreement or such other person or address which may be designated by a party in writing.

19.8 Dispute Resolution; Mediation.

19.8.1 If any dispute arises between the District and the GAAPCS concerning
this Agreement, including, without limitation, an allegation of any breach or default, either party
may request mediation of the matter. The party requesting mediation shall do so by giving
written notice to that effect to the other party, specifying in the notice the nature of the dispute.
Mediation requires the consent of both parties, and nothing in this section shall be construed to
require either party to mediation without that party’s consent.

19.8.2 If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, either party may request the
Oregon Department of Education to appoint the mediator.

19.8.3 At any time during the mediation process, or if the parties are unable to
reach an agreement through mediation, either party may give notice to the other party and to the
mediator that it is terminating its participation in the mediation; after that, either party may
request a hearing before and decision by the District Board.

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 25



19.8.4 The parties shall share equally the fees and expenses of any mediator and
each party shall pay its own expenses incurred in any mediation.

19.8.5 As to any dispute that is not being determined through mediation, the
GAAPCS may request a hearing before and decision by the District Board.

19.8.6 The GAAPCS may appeal to the State Board of Education concerning
those matters within its jurisdiction under ORS Chapter 338.

19.10 Delegation by District. The parties agree and acknowledge that the functions
and powers of the District Board may be exercised by the Superintendent of the District, or by
the Superintendent’s designee, provided that any ultimate decision regarding renewal, non-
renewal, or termination of this Agreement may be made only by the District Board.

19.11 Prior Actions. As a condition precedent to this Agreement becoming effective
on the effective date specified above in Section 2.1, the GAAPCS shall have taken, completed
and satisfied on or before the date specified herein any action or obligation which is required to
be completed before such effective date, and failure to do so shall constitute grounds for the
District to declare this Agreement null and void.

19.12 GAAPCS Authority to Enter Into Agreement. The GAAPCS expressly
affirms that the signatories on its behalf who sign below have the authority to enter into this
Agreement on behalf of the GAAPCS and that the Board of Directors of the GAAPCS has duly
approved of this Agreement. At District’s request, the GAAPCS shall provide to the District a
copy of its written resolution authorizing the GAAPCS to enter into this Agreement.

19.13 Definition of Business Day. For purpose of this Agreement, “business day”
means a day in which the District administrative offices are open. “Business day” does not
include (a) Saturdays, (b) Sundays, (c) official state holidays listed in ORS 336.010, (d) federal
holidays, (e) District scheduled spring vacation, (f) any day(s) in which the administrative office
is closed due to inclement weather, or (g) any day that the District administrative office is closed
due to action taken by, or ordered to be closed by, the District Board of Directors or the Board’s
designee, or the government of the City or County in which the District is located, or the State of
Oregon, or the federal government.

[This space intentionally left blank to allow the signatures to remain on one page.]

July 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT PAGE 26



19.14 Incorporation of Application and Exhibits. Attached hereto and incorporated

herein by this reference are Exhibit A (The Application); Exhibit B (Goals and Evaluation,
referred to in Section 10.4); and Exhibit C (List of assets, referred to in Section 18.7).

EXECUTED this day of July, 2012.

GRESHAM ARTHUR ACADEMY

CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.
an Oregon nonprofit corporation

By:

Title:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF GRESHAM-
BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT #10J

By:

Title: School Board Chairperson

Approved as to form:

By:

District Legal Counsel

Address for Notice Purposes:
Charles Arthur

President of the MLI Board
13717 SE Division Street
Portland, OR 97236
Telephone: 503-252-3753
Fax: 503-761-4143

Address for Notice Purposes:
Jim Schlachter

Superintendent
Gresham-Barlow School District
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, Oregon 97030
Telephone: 503-618-2450

FAX: 503-661-1589

July 2012

CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT

PAGE 27



EXHIBIT B
TO CHARTER SCHOOL AGREEMENT

CHARTER SCHOOL GOALS AND EVALUATION GUIDELINES

As provided in Section 10.4 of the Agreement, only the following specific goals relating to
student performance are to be considered in evaluating whether the Charter School has failed to
meet the requirements for student performance (and thus could be a basis for termination of this
Agreement) under ORS 338.105(1)(b).

If a conflict exists between any provision of this Exhibit B and Exhibit A (the charter application
submitted by Arthur Academy), this Exhibit B provision will govern and supersede any

provision contained in the charter application.

1. Oregon Statewide Assessments.

1.1.  Administering Assessments. The Charter School will administer the Oregon
Statewide Assessments to its students, administered on the same schedule as the District and as
required by state laws and regulations. The initial grades tested (once those grades have been
added to the Charter School) will be 3™, 4™ and 5™, with additional grades added as required by
state or federal law (No Child Left Behind Act).

1.2 Results.

1.2.1 Of all Charter School students in each grade, regardless of time in
attendance, the total percentage in that grade who either meet or exceed state standards in
tested content areas will be at least as high as the total percentage of the District's
students in the same grades who either meet or exceed state standards. Also, the Charter
School’s average scores and/or outcomes for the student groups identified in any state or
federal accountability system applying to the District (e.g. the Achievement Compact)
shall meet or exceed the scores of District students in those same groups.

1.2.2 At any time that federal or state regulations require higher performance
levels, the Charter School will meet or exceed such levels.

1.3 ELL Assessments. The Charter School will administer Oregon's English
Language Learner (ELL) assessments on an annual basis to all students who qualify.

2. Stanford Achievement Test.

2.1 Assessment. The Charter School plans to use the Stanford Achievement Test
(referred to as “SAT” or “Stanford”) as its method of measuring and reporting student
achievements in grades K, 1 and 2. The Charter School will administer the test in the spring for
all students in grades K, 1 and 2, and in the fall for new students in those grades. .

July 2012 EXHIBIT B TO CHARTER AGREEMENT Page 1



2.2 Results.

2.2.1 Of those special education students who have an IEP and whose 1Q is 69
or lower, each student’s IEP will include expected test results, if any.

2.2.2  In the spring testing utilizing the Stanford, more than 50% of the students
will score above average [above the 50th percentile] on both the reading and math in each

grade in the school.

3. Reports of Assessment Results.

3.1 Reports to District. After the Charter School receives results of the assessments
in Sections 1 and 2, it will give the District a report of the results. The Charter School will also
include assessment results in its annual reports to the District.

3.2 Improvements in Methodology. The parties will continue throughout the term
of this Agreement to work together to improve the methodology for analyzing and reporting
achievement growth.

4. Addressing Deficiencies; School Improvement Plan. Either the Charter School or the
District may identify student performance that has fallen below these achievement goals. If that
occurs, the Charter School, with any assistance the District is able and willing to provide, will
develop school improvement plans (and include such plans as part of the annual reports) to
address the identified deficiencies. Such plans may specify goals for improvement, timelines,
and specific actions different from normal school operations that will be taken to help achieve
such goals. The Charter School’s annual reports will also discuss the results of implementation
of school improvement plans. If the Charter School fails to implement such a plan, the District
may issue a written notice to the Charter School that it must comply with the terms of the plan
immediately. If the Charter School fails to comply with the terms of the plan, the default section
of the Charter Agreement will apply.

5. Non-Academic Performance Objectives.

5.1 Parent Satisfaction. The Charter School will conduct an annual survey of parent
satisfaction. At least one of the questions will ask parents to rate either their overall satisfaction
or the overall quality of education of their child or children. Using a scale of 1 through 4 (e.g.
highly satisfied, satisfied, fairly satisfied, and not satisfied), the survey results will show that at
least 80% of parents consider their overall satisfaction or the education their child receives at the
Charter School to be either the highest or second highest rating (e.g. highly satisfied or satisfied,
rating it a 1 or 2 on the 1-4 scale). The Charter School will include the results of this survey in
its annual report to the District.

5.2 Voluntary Parental and Community Involvement. Parental and community

involvement in the Charter School will be maintained at consistently high levels and will be
reported in the Annual Report.

July 2012 EXHIBIT B TO CHARTER AGREEMENT Page 2



	00 00 Cover
	00 01 Agenda
	01 00 06-14-12 Budget Hearing Minutes
	01 01 06-14-12 Regular Meeting Minutes
	02 00 Personnel
	03 00 AGSA and Confidential Memorandums of Understanding
	03 01 AGSA and Confidential Memorandums of Understanding
	03 02 AGSA and Confidential Memorandums of Understanding
	04 00 Superintendent's 2012-2015 Employment Agreement
	05 00 Obsolete-Surplus Items
	05 01 Obsolete-Surplus Items
	06 00 Stiudent Accident Insurance and Health Coverage Renewal
	06 01 Student Accident Insurance and Health Coverage Renewal
	OR Renewal Ltr - 6-11-12
	OR.122.13.final (2)

	07 00 District Advisory Council (DAC) Report
	07 01 District Advisory Council (DAC) Report
	08 00 Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation Update
	09 00 Election of Chair and Vice-Chair
	10 00 Annual Procedural Business
	11 00 Evaluation of the Superintendent
	12 00 Open Meadow Alternative School Contract
	12 01 Open Meadow Alternative School Contract
	13 00 Financing Energy Efficiency Projects
	13 01 Financing Enegy Efficiency Projects
	13 02 Financing Energy Efficiency Projects
	14 00 Alternative Education Programs for 2012-13
	14 01 Alternative Education Programs for 2012-13.xls
	15 00 Tuition and Fees for 2012-13
	16 00 Date, Time and Place of 2012-13 Board Meetings
	16 01 Date, Time and Place of 2012-13 Board Meetings
	17 00 Public Charter School Renewal Gresham-Barlow Web Academy
	17 01 Public Charter School Renewal Gresham-Barlow Web Academy
	18 00 Public Charter School Renewal Lewis & Clark Montessori
	18 01 Public Charter School Renewal Lewis & Clark Montessori
	18 02 Public Charter School Renewal Lewis & Clark Montessori
	19 00 Public Charter School Renwal Update Gresham Arthur Academy
	19 01 Public Charter School Renwal Update Gresham Arthur Academy
	19 02 Public Charter School Renwal Update Gresham Arthur Academy

